Notice of Meeting

Surrey Police and Crime Panel
Date & time
Tuesday, 24
November 2020
at 10.30 am

Place
Remote meeting

Contact
Amelia Christopher
Room 122, County Hall
02082132838

We’re on Twitter:
@SCCdemocracy

amelia.christopher@surreycc.gov.uk

Please note that due to the COVID-19 situation this meeting will
take place remotely.
Please be aware that a link to view a live recording of the meeting
will be available on the Surrey Police and Crime Panel page on the
Surrey County Council website. This page can be accessed by
following the link below:
https://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=250&Year=0
If you have any queries relating to accessing this agenda please email
amelia.christopher@surreycc.gov.uk

Members
Cllr David Reeve (Chairman)
Cllr Hazel Watson (Vice-Chairman)
Cllr Victor Lewanski
Cllr Christine Elmer
Cllr John Furey
Cllr Fiona White
Cllr John Robini
Cllr Josephine Hawkins
Cllr Will Forster
Cllr Bernie Spoor
Cllr Andrew Povey
Cllr Bob Milton
Mr Philip Walker
Mr Martin Stilwell

Epsom & Ewell Borough Council
Mole Valley District Council
Reigate & Banstead Borough Council
Elmbridge Borough Council
Runnymede Borough Council
Guildford Borough Council
Waverley Borough Council
Surrey Heath Borough Council
Woking Borough Council
Spelthorne Borough Council
Surrey County Council
Tandridge District Council
Independent Member
Independent Member

Page 1 of 5

PART 1
IN PUBLIC
1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
The Chairman to report apologies for absence.

2

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

(Pages 1 16)

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on (15 September 2020)
as a correct record.
3

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the
meeting or as soon as possible thereafter
(i) Any disclosable pecuniary interests and / or
(ii) Other interests arising under the Code of Conduct in respect of
any item(s) of business being considered at this meeting
NOTES:
 Members are reminded that they must not participate in any
item where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest

4



As well as an interest of the Member, this includes any
interest, of which the Member is aware, that relates to the
Member’s spouse or civil partner (or any person with whom the
Member is living as a spouse or civil partner)



Members with a significant personal interest may participate in
the discussion and vote on that matter unless that interest
could be reasonably regarded as prejudicial.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS
To receive any public questions.
Note:
Written questions from the public can be submitted no later than
seven days prior to the published date of the annual or any ordinary
public meeting, for which a written response will be circulated to Panel
Members and the questioner.

5

SURREY POLICE GROUP FINANCIAL REPORT FOR MONTH SIX
FINANCIAL YEAR 2020/21
The purpose of this report is to inform the Police and Crime Panel of
the Surrey Police Group (i.e. OPCC and Chief Constable combined)
of the financial position as at the 30 September 2020 as well as a
prediction for the situation at the end of the year.

Page 2 of 5

(Pages 17 24)

6

OFFICE OF THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER MONTH
SIX FINANCIAL UPDATE 2020/21 AND ESTIMATE FOR YEAR
END OUTTURN

(Pages 25 28)

The purpose of this report is to inform the Police and Crime Panel of
the OPCC’s financial performance at Month 6 for the 2020/21 financial
year together with an estimate of the year end outturn against budget.
7

POLICE AND CRIME PLAN 2018-2021 - PROGRESS

(Pages 29 42)

The PCC published a refreshed Police and Crime Plan in May 2018
for the period 2018 to 2020. This built on the previous plan issued in
2016. The refresh was informed by emerging crime trends,
consultation, scrutiny of current force performance and meetings and
visits with Surrey Police, public and partners. This report provides an
update on how the plan has been met to date, noting that the current
plan has been extended to May 2021.
8

HMICFRS INSPECTION REPORTS

(Pages 43 48)

This report provides a summary of the findings regarding Surrey
Police, from the latest inspection reports by Her Majesty’s
Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire and Rescue Services
(HMICFRS) which is the independent inspection body for policing. The
Police and Crime Panel’s role is to ensure that the Police and Crime
Commissioner for Surrey (PCC) is taking into account inspection
reports and the recommendations therein when holding the Chief
Constable of Surrey Police to account.
9

HOME OFFICE REVIEW OF POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONERS PART ONE

(Pages 49 92)

In July 2020, the Home Office announced that it would be undertaking
a review of the role of Police and Crime Commissioners (PCCs), the
first such exercise since their inception in 2012. The intention is to
‘sharpen accountability, scrutiny and transparency’ and ensure that
PCCs put the ‘law-abiding silent majority’ at the centre of decisionmaking. The review is in two parts. The first took place over the
summer and has been reported to Ministers (though not yet publicly)
in October.
The Home Office’s Terms of Reference for the first part of the review
are attached to this paper, as is the PCC’s full response; as well as
the Surrey Police and Crime Panel’s response on the Home Office’s
PCC Review: Part-one – Response to Local Government
Association’s (LGA) Key Research Questions, the LGA’s response –
17 September 2020, and the National Association of Police, Fire and
Crime Panels’ – NAPFCP response.
10

BUILDING THE FUTURE - UPDATE
The purpose of this report is to update the Panel on key aspects of
delivery for the strategic change programme ‘Building the Future’
(BTF) since the Panel’s last meeting in September 2020.

Page 3 of 5

(Pages 93 94)

11

FEEDBACK ON PERFORMANCE MEETINGS BETWEEN THE
POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER AND CHIEF CONSTABLE

(Pages 95 98)

One of the main responsibilities of the Police and Crime
Commissioner (PCC) is to hold the Chief Constable to account for
delivery of the Police and Crime Plan. David Munro has set up a
governance framework to discharge this duty. The main part of this
framework is to hold six-weekly Performance Meetings where the
Chief Constable reports on progress against the Police & Crime Plan
and other strategic issues. This is supplemented by workshops and
one to one discussions between the PCC and Chief Constable, and
other senior officers, when required. This report provides an update
on the meetings that have been held and what has been discussed in
order to demonstrate that arrangements for good governance and
scrutiny are in place.
12

COMMISSIONER'S QUESTION TIME

(Pages 99 100)

For the Panel to raise any issues or queries concerning crime and
policing in Surrey with the Commissioner.
Notes:
The deadline for Member’s questions is 12.00pm four working days
before the meeting (18 November 2020).
13

SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL ANNUAL REPORT 20192020

(Pages 101 112)

In accordance with best practice for scrutiny and transparency as
noted in Schedule 3 – In-Year Monitoring Information Requirements of
the Home Office Grant Agreement, an annual report by Police and
Crime Panels is an important Key Performance Indicator (KPI) to be
monitored and reported on.
This is a newly introduced report which provides a summary of the
activity of the Surrey Police and Crime Panel during July 2019 - May
2020 and the next annual report of the Panel will be aligned to its
annual meeting in June 2021.
14

SURREY PCP BUDGET MID-YEAR CLAIM 2020

(Pages 113 116)

The Surrey Police and Crime Panel has accepted a grant from the
Home Office to meet the costs of the Panel, including the
administrative support. This purpose of this paper is to report on the
use of the grant in 2020 (April 2020 - September 2020), as noted in
the Panel’s mid-year claim submission to the Home Office submitted
by the 31 October 2020 deadline.
15

COMPLAINTS RECEIVED SINCE THE LAST MEETING
To note complaints against the Police and Crime Commissioner and
the Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner received since the last
meeting of the Police and Crime Panel.

Page 4 of 5

(Pages 117 120)

16

RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK
PROGRAMME

(Pages 121 140)

To review the Recommendations Tracker and Forward Work
Programme.
17

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
The next public meeting of the Police and Crime Panel will be held on
5 February 2021.

Joanna Killian
Chief Executive
Surrey County Council
Published: Monday, 16 November 2020

Note: This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council's internet site - at
the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being filmed. The
images and sound recording may be used for training purposes within the Council.
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the representative of Legal and Democratic
Services at the meeting.

Page 5 of 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 2
MINUTES of the meeting of the SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL held at
10.30 am on 15 September 2020, remotely via Microsoft Teams.
These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Panel at its next meeting.
Members:
(*Present)
*Councillor Andrew Povey
*Councillor David Reeve (Chairman)
*Councillor Victor Lewanski
*Councillor Hazel Watson (Vice-Chairman)
*Councillor Fiona White
Councillor John Furey
*Councillor John Robini
*Councillor Will Forster
*Councillor Josephine Hawkins
*Councillor Christine Elmer
*Councillor Bernie Spoor
Councillor Bob Milton
*Mr Philip Walker
*Mr Martin Stilwell
In attendance
Steve Owen-Hughes - Director - Community Protection & Emergencies (SCC) and
Chief Fire Officer for Surrey Fire & Rescue Service
Councillor Jonathan Essex - Reigate and Banstead Borough Council
39/20

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

[ITEM 1]

Apologies were received from Councillors Bob Milton and John Furey.
Councillor Bernie Spoor joined the meeting at 11.15am (noted in item 8).
40/20

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

[ITEM 2]

The minutes of the meeting held on 30 June 2020 were agreed as a true record
of that meeting.
41/20

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS

[ITEM 3]

There were none.
42/20

PUBLIC QUESTIONS

[ITEM 4]

One question was received from Councillor Jonathan Essex (Reigate and
Banstead Borough Council) on behalf of a member of the public. The response can
be found attached to these minutes as Annex A.
A supplementary question was asked by Councillor Jonathan Essex and the
response can be found below.

120

Page 1

2

2

 Supplementary question asked by Councillor Jonathan Essex on behalf of a
resident:
The questioner stated that since the coronavirus crisis started there had been an
increase in speeding and in anti-social behaviour locally in terms of motorbike
gatherings; and a drop in Community Speedwatch.
Concerning the original question, he noted that the rise in overt drug dealing in a
sheltered older persons housing area - covered by CCTV - at the same time every
week all with no clear on the ground police response was a concern. He queried
that with an extra 150 officers budgeted by 2021/22 whether there would be a
return to more on the ground community police presence in Surrey, such as
neighbourhood policing especially where there was still a lower level of people
movement due to the pandemic. Due to the return to higher police numbers as a
result of funding replacing those officers lost due to Government cuts, he asked the
PCC if areas without officers would be provided with them and if there would be a
shift in approach to community policing.
Response:
The Surrey Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) replied that Surrey Police used
its resources available to crack down on drugs and associated anti-social
behaviour. It was a scourge in the county as it was nationally, and Surrey Police
had a zero-tolerance policy; urging Panel members, residents and Surrey
councillors to report incidents of drug dealing to Surrey Police via 101 - or 999 if
there were security implications.
He positively commented that Surrey Police had made several good arrests of
county lines drug dealers during lockdown. He provided assurance that there would
be more police on the ground, noting that the force was in the first third of their
recruitment programme with high grade trainee police officers slowly filtering onto
the ground. Further details on recruitment was included as item 8 in the agenda.
The PCC noted that he had asked for a report from Surrey Police last year on how
big the force should be, the answer was just over 500 more staff and police
officers. By the end of March 2021 Surrey Police were expected to be halfway
there, although future funding for the next financial year was uncertain. He replied
that there would be a change of strategy as the biggest emphasis on recruiting was
to allocate more officers on neighbourhood policing teams and every ward in the
county would have a named police officer or an appropriate officer such as a Police
Community Support Officer (PCSO) going forward. The PCC was concerned that
there might not be an uplift in funding next year because of Covid-19 and strained
public finances, and that Surrey Police’s retention rate was only satisfactory.
43/20

APPOINTMENT OF CO-OPTED INDEPENDENT MEMBERS

[ITEM 5]

Witnesses:
Amelia Christopher - Committee Manager, Surrey County Council (SCC)

121

Page 2

2

Key points raised in the discussion:
1.
2.

The Committee Manager welcomed the Panel’s two new proposed co-opted
independent members.
She explained that as of 7 February 2020 the Police and Crime Panel
approved to run an open recruitment process to appoint two new co-opted
independent members due to the vacancies. Adding that two candidates had
been recommended after a robust cross-party selection panel involving a
series of questions to the candidates.

RESOLVED:
1.

2.

That Mr Philip Walker was appointed to the vacant role of co-opted
independent member on the Surrey Police and Crime Panel for a four year
term.
That Mr Martin Stilwell was appointed to the vacant role of co-opted
independent member on the Surrey Police and Crime Panel for a four year
term.

Actions/further information to be provided:
None.
The Chairman welcomed the newly appointed co-opted independent members.
44/20

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN (MTFP) UPDATE 2020/21 TO 2024/25
[ITEM 6]
Witnesses:
David Munro - Surrey Police and Crime Commissioner
Kelvin Menon - Chief Finance Officer & Treasurer, Office of the Police and Crime
Commissioner (OPCC)
Key points raised in the discussion:
1.

2.

3.

The PCC noted that at present Surrey Police was at a reasonably healthy
financial position. Going forward, it was a worry that the collection rate of
Council Tax would decrease as a result of Covid-19 and people being on
furlough or unemployed unable to pay that tax. He added that future funding
from Government was uncertain, but they were still committed to have a
fundamental review of police funding and the formula, which was positive as
Surrey Police’s share was unfair.
A Panel member queried the assumptions made about increasing costs
because of salary increments and if the figure in the report was a net figure, as
the increasing cost annually suggested that the overall workforce was going up
salary scale and rather than keeping a balance between junior and senior staff.
The Chief Finance Officer & Treasurer responded that the increments were the
net costs as the workforce was ageing.
A Panel member queried the shortage of capital reserves which was unusual as
the force had a lot of property assets to sell off and it would be a shame to use
its limited revenue for capital. The Chief Finance Officer & Treasurer responded
122

Page 3

2

4.

5.

6.

7.

that the level of capital grant received was small at approximately £400,000 a
year so capital receipts made up the rest of capital funding. The force had
ambitious capital programmes which included investment in vehicles and ICT as
well as the new Surrey Police headquarters in Leatherhead.
Responding to a Panel member’s query on where the savings would come from
in response to the deficit over the next four years, the Chief Finance Officer &
Treasurer noted that the levels of savings noted were only predictions based on
assumptions. Increasing efficiency through greater utilisation of remote working
and ICT as well as the rationalisation of estates would lead to some savings but
delivering those levels of savings in line with previous years would be a
challenge.
- The PCC added that he hoped that he would not have to take many
savings out of the budget and that national finances going forward would
be strained.
A Panel member queried the report which stated that 3.5% of Council Tax might
not be collected due to Covid-19 which equated to approximately £5 million and
whether the lack of house building contributed to that. The Chief Finance Officer
& Treasurer responded that Surrey had a growth in the tax base every single
year but this year there was no predicted increase in the tax base as building
was slow due to Covid-19.
Regarding the predicted deficit in Council Tax the Panel member noted that the
PCC had written to Government and to Surrey MPs on the Council Tax deficit
and asked whether it would be appropriate for the Panel to write to them as well
asking them for support to meet that cost of Covid-19 - the Panel agreed to add
that point to the recommendations. The Chief Finance Officer & Treasurer
explained that he had been working closely with treasurers in the other Surrey
districts and borough as well as Surrey County Council to assess what they
thought the shortfall would be on Council Tax collection this year. The latest
assessment was 3.5% and Government had said that the deficit could be spread
over the next three years, they had not however indicated whether they would
make the shortfall up - he welcomed the Panel’s support in writing to the
Government and Surrey MPs.
- The PCC responded that yes it would be helpful if the Panel reported their
concerns to the Government and Surrey MPs and that PCCs had noted
their collective concerns through the Association of Police and Crime
Commissioners (APCC).
The Chairman queried that if 1% of the Home Office grant equated to
approximately £0.7million were the force anticipating an approximately 10%
percent rise in Home Office Grant funding from £69.5 million at present to £76.7
million for 2021/22. In response the Chief Finance Officer & Treasurer believed
that the figure was the overall Home Office grant including the uplift and would
provide a fuller response in due course.

RESOLVED:
The Panel:
1.
2.

Noted the initial outcome of the forecast, the likely need for additional savings
and the challenge that this will present.
Noted the current assumptions being employed in the scenarios and the risks
therein.
123

Page 4

3.
4.

Commented as appropriate.
Agreed to write to Surrey MPs and the Government raising its concerns on the
predicted 3.5% deficit in Council Tax collection.

Actions/further information to be requested:
1.
2.

45/20

R26/20 - The Panel will write to Surrey MPs and the Government raising its
concerns on the predicted 3.5% deficit in Council Tax collection.
R27/20 - The Chief Finance Officer & Treasurer would clarify the apparent 10%
rise in the Home Office Grant funding from £69.5 million at present to £76.7
million for 2021/22; and whether it was the overall Home Office grant including
the uplift.

CORONAVIRUS

[ITEM 7]

Witnesses:
David Munro - Surrey Police and Crime Commissioner
Alison Bolton - Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer, Office of the Police and Crime
Commissioner (OPCC)
Steve Owen-Hughes - Director - Community Protection & Emergencies (SCC) and
Chief Fire Officer for Surrey Fire & Rescue
Key points raised in the discussion:
1. The PCC introduced the report and hoped that it showed how the OPCC and
Chief Constable had been active in supporting a variety of people and
organisations to cope with coronavirus. He thanked the OPCC staff and Surrey
Police for quickly identifying key areas of need during the pandemic and doing
their best to provide support.
2. He highlighted that the report had been written a week ago and there had been
changes since including the ‘rule of six’. He had spoken to the Chief Constable on
the new restrictions and noted that Surrey Police would still maintain the four Es:
encourage, educate, explain and enforce. Policing was done by consent, with
enforcement as a last resort.
3. A Panel member queried the new enforcement arrangements for the ‘rule of six’
which included the provision of Covid-19 secure marshals organised through
councils - with a register of environmental health officers compiled to offer support
- and if Surrey Police had enough resources required should greater enforcement
be necessary. In response, the PCC noted that yes there were enough police
officers to provide enforcement particularly if the majority of residents obeyed the
rules.
4. The PCC noted that the introduction of Covid-19 secure marshals was a surprise
and no further details had been provided from Government on the matter. He had
spoken to the Chief Constable and there were no plans for the Surrey Police to
actively recruit such marshals as that was down to local councils. At present,
Surrey Police and the JETs were the only body with enforcement powers. The
PCC added that he was happy to consider a small amount of initial funding to
councils to establish such marshals.
5. A Panel member was grateful that Surrey Mediation had been supported by the
OPCC and asked approximately how much funding had been given to the partner.

124

Page 5

2

2
6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

The PCC responded that he was a firm supporter of Surrey Mediation and details
would be provided on the funding in due course.
The Vice-Chairman asked what action or additional resources Surrey Police
would deploy to enforce the ‘rule of six’ so that residents had confidence that they
will be kept safe; particularly concerning beauty spots with large crowd gathering
to enjoy the good weather. In response, the PCC provided reassurance that there
was an ongoing police presence at the beauty spots including Box Hill and
Frensham Ponds - he asked residents not to go to busy beauty spots as Covid-19
remained a threat.
Panel members were concerned that the Government’s announcement of Covid19 secure marshals had raised the public’s expectation on enforcement and
asked if the Panel could be kept informed on the implications on enforcement and
any involvement of Surrey Police. The Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer
noted that the Chief Constable would be present at the Panel’s October informal
meeting and could provide an update on Covid-19 secure marshals.
A Panel member asked if it would have been helpful to have received a briefing
from the Government on the Covid-19 secure marshals. The PCC responded that
yes all forces preferred more timely and detailed communications from the
Government. He added that the Association of Police and Crime Commissioners
(APCC) made regular requests for early and thorough briefings, but in fairness he
noted the fast-moving situation.
A Panel member noted that the Panel should express its thanks to Surrey Police
and the OPCC for their work during Covid-19, going beyond their usual duty. The
PCC responded that he had a virtual meeting with four hundred police officers
yesterday, thanking them for their work.
The Director - Community Protection & Emergencies (SCC) and Chief Fire Officer
for Surrey Fire & Rescue noted that he was also the director of the Surrey
Community Protection Group and was the chair of Surrey’s Local Resilience
Forum (LRF). He provided clarity on Covid-19 secure marshals, noting that:
- Currently, two boroughs and districts in Surrey had marshals. He was liaising
with the Director of Public Health (SCC) on the provision of marshals and the
LRF’s Strategic Co-ordinating Group (SCG) - co-chaired by the Chief
Constable - would be meeting on Wednesday to discuss the matter and what
their role would be.
- Regarding enforcement although it was primarily Surrey Police’s role, public
health, trading standards and local authority safety advisory groups had a
role in joint enforcement.
- Over the summer the beauty spots were monitored by borough and district
council emergency planning teams, rangers, Surrey Police and Surrey Fire &
Rescue Service; and would continue to be monitored.
- As chair of the LRF, he offered thanks to Surrey Police for its outstanding
work over the last six months. In response the PCC returned the compliment,
praising the collective effort of all the emergency services, district and
borough councils and Surrey County Council.
The Chairman queried why only two Citizens Advice groups had received the
Ministry of Justice funding. In response, the PCC noted that the reason why was
because those two groups were at the forefront in providing domestic abuse
services in the county. All the groups were aware of the funding and the OPCC
would continue to look at their bids.

125

Page 6

12. An independent member queried whether the Surrey LRF and Surrey Local
Outbreak Engagement Board were the same. In response the PCC clarified that
they were separate bodies.
13. Referencing the co-commissioning of enhanced substance misuse support, the
independent member asked if there was any intention to liaise with both
Alcoholics, and Narcotics Anonymous which could offer support and were selffunded. The PCC responded that he did not have the detail of which
organisations were being liaised with regarding that co-commissioning and he
would provide a follow-up.
RESOLVED:
The Police and Crime Panel noted the report and their appreciation to Surrey Police,
and Surrey Fire & Rescue Service for all their efforts during the pandemic.
Actions/further information to be provided:
1. R28/20 - The PCC will clarify how much funding is given to Surrey Mediation, in
providing anti-social behaviour support.
2. R29/20 - The Panel is to be kept updated on the provision of Covid-19 secure
marshals and any enforcement involvement of Surrey Police.
- The Chief Constable to provide an update at the Panel’s October informal.
3. R30/20 - The PCC will look into the organisations being liaised with regarding the
co-commissioning of enhanced substance misuse support and to consider both
Alcoholics, and Narcotics Anonymous.
46/20

SURREY POLICE RECRUITMENT AND WORKFORCE PLANNING

[ITEM 8]

Councillor Bernie Spoor joined the meeting at 11.15am
Witnesses:
David Munro - Surrey Police and Crime Commissioner
Key points raised in the discussion:
1. A Panel member asked how Surrey Police’s unplanned leaver rate of 5.8%
compared to other forces. In response, the PCC noted that the force was in the
top half of other forces regarding the leavers rate. He feared that it was at an
artificially low number as people did not want to change jobs due to Covid-19.
2. A Panel member queried the summary of the distribution of new staff and officers
across various strategies and how that correlated to the overall Police and Crime
Plan. The PCC responded that there was a more detailed breakdown on the
distribution of new staff and officers by 2021/22 and he would look into whether
that could be shared with the Panel as Part 2 confidential information.
3. A Panel member welcomed the plans to recruit and attract more candidates from
Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) and other under-represented groups but
was surprised that there were no statistics included on the percentage of BAME
staff and officers currently in the force. The PCC responded that diversity included
all the protected characteristics and not just race. According to the 2011 Census
Surrey had a BAME population of 9.6%, Surrey Police had a % BAME workforce
126

Page 7

2

2

of 5.0% overall, with 4.6% for police officers and 5.4% for police staff. The target
for police officers was 5% and he thought that figure was out of date as Surrey
had become more diverse.
4. The PCC stressed that he took diversity seriously and had special engagement
teams to attract a greater diversity of candidates.
RESOLVED:
That the Police and Crime Panel noted the Surrey Police plans for recruitment and
workforce planning.
Actions/further information to be provided:
1. R31/20 - The PCC will look into whether the more detailed breakdown on the
distribution of the newly recruited staff and officers by 2021/22 could be shared
with the Panel as Part 2 confidential information.
47/20

BUILDING THE FUTURE – UPDATE

[ITEM 9]

Witnesses:
David Munro - Surrey Police and Crime Commissioner
Key points raised in the discussion:
1. The PCC introduced the report and noted that the project was going well including
the building design which would incorporate the greater use of remote and agile
working as a result of Covid-19.
2. He explained that he would have liked to have announced the chosen architects
publicly but there were final legal matters to resolve.
3. A Panel member queried whether there was a timeline for the disposal of the six
sites and whether there would continue to be some form of police presence on
those sites in the interim. The PCC responded that there was no specific timeline
as the disposal of the sites could happen at end of project, in at least four to five
years.
4. A Panel member noted the concerns of his constituents regarding the closure of
Reigate police station earmarked for disposal and whether that would be replaced
by a small neighbourhood office. In response, the PCC pledged that there would
be a physical building with standard police presence in every single borough and
district in county. The PCC added that Reigate police station was outdated, and
expensive and non-local functions would move into the new headquarters at
Leatherhead. He reassured the Panel member that the Reigate local policing
effort would remain in Reigate.
5. Referring to the disposal of existing estate, a Panel member asked whether the
Panel could receive the report on the sensitivity analysis on capital receipts of the
six sites carried out in June 2020 to reflect changes to the residential housing
market, which was considered by the PCC at the August Building the Future
Board. The PCC responded that he would need to consider this request, as it
included sensitive information concerning the amount resulting from Mount
Browne’s disposal.
6. A Panel member asked whether the PCC was able to inform the Panel on who
the other partners would be as a result of the possible co-location in the new
127

Page 8

Leatherhead headquarters. The PCC responded that he could not give the
specific names of the partners as discussions were at an early stage. He
emphasised that the new headquarters would serve the primary needs of Surrey
Police and would not be compromised by other partners’ needs.
RESOLVED:
The Panel noted the contents of the report.
Actions/further information to be provided:
1. R32/20 - The PCC to consider whether he is able to share with the Panel the
sensitivity analysis on capital receipts of the six sites earmarked for disposal,
reported to August’s Building the Future Board.
48/20

POLICE COMPLAINTS REFORM

[ITEM 10]

Witnesses:
David Munro - Surrey Police and Crime Commissioner
Alison Bolton - Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer, Office of the Police and
Crime Commissioner (OPCC)
Key points raised in the discussion:
1. The PCC explained that the Government had decreed that PCCs should be
responsible for the appellate function, with changes to legislation coming into
effect on 1 February 2020 in the Police (Complaints and Misconduct)
Regulations 2020. He explained that like the majority of PCCs, he chose Model
1 in which most elements of handling police complaints remained with the police
themselves, but an appeals function provided by the PCC’s office was available
to complainants once their complaints had gone through the Professional
Standards Department (PSD) and Local Resolution had been exhausted.
2. He noted two fears as a result of the change to the complaints system, firstly
that there would be a spike in the number of complaints as people saw another
avenue to complain about - which had been realised so that meant more work
and money. He hoped that it was a spike and not a plateau. Secondly, that any
changes to the wider complaints process would take away the responsibility of
individual police offices in dealing with incidents and complaints directly where
they occur. That was not an issue for Surrey where Model 1 had been adopted.
3. The PCC praised the work of the Complaints Review Manager, Nick Wainwright,
who had complete delegated power under the regulations to deal with appeals.
4. A Panel member referred to the process of complaint resolution, particularly the
three different types of categories of complaint and that the OPCC only had
responsibility in the Schedule 3 - Otherwise by Investigation category. He
queried whether that would that be the case under Models 2 and 3. In response,
the PCC noted that he was unsure of the member’s point and noted that he did
not see any benefit to the OPCC or the complainant for Models 2 and 3.
- The Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer added that it was her
understanding that the appeal function would be the same for whichever
Model was chosen as the Models chosen dictated how much of the overall
complaints process would be taken on rather than any difference in the
appeal function - she would check that point.
5. The Chairman thanked the OPCC for the comprehensive report.

128

Page 9

2

2

RESOLVED:
The Police and Crime Panel noted the update to the management of the new
complaints regulations within the OPCC.
Actions/further information to be provided:
1. R33/20 - The Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer will look into whether the
responsibility of the OPCC for the three different types of categories of complaint
would be different across the three Models.
49/20

FEEDBACK ON PERFORMANCE MEETINGS BETWEEN THE POLICE AND
CRIME COMMISSIONER AND CHIEF CONSTABLE [ITEM 11]
Witnesses:
David Munro - Surrey Police and Crime Commissioner
Key points raised in the discussion:
1.

The Chairman queried the rollout of the new body worn video system as he
thought that every officer had such a system by default. In response, the PCC
noted that relating to officers tackling domestic abuse there was a minority who
did not have that system yet but would get one with the continuing rollout.
Officers who requested one or that were in a high public contact role had that
system already.

RESOLVED:
The Police and Crime Panel noted the update on the PCC’s Performance Meetings.
Actions/further information to be provided:
None.
50/20

COMMISSIONER'S QUESTION TIME

[ITEM 12]

Witnesses:
David Munro - Surrey Police and Crime Commissioner
Key points raised in the discussion:
1.

Councillor John Robini:

Highlighted the news article - BBC - the day before which reported that the computer
system for the Surrey, Sussex and Thames Valley police forces could be scrapped.
He noted concern as there had been several failures of computer systems across the
forces and Surrey Police over the years, spending a lot of money starting projects but
not finishing them. In response, the PCC explained that he was happy to give a Part 2
briefing after the meeting on that computer system, EQUIP, to Panel members and
stressed that no decision had been made on the status of the project by the three
forces.

129

Page 10

2

RESOLVED:
The Police and Crime Panel raised any issues or queries concerning Crime and
Policing in Surrey with the Commissioner.
Actions/further information to be provided:
1. The PCC will provide an update in Part 2 after the meeting on EQUIP, relating to
R7/20 on the recommendations tracker.
51/20

COMPLAINTS RECEIVED SINCE THE LAST MEETING

[ITEM 13]

Witnesses:
Amelia Christopher - Committee Manager, Surrey County Council (SCC)
Key points raised in the discussion:
1. The Committee Manager noted that one complaint had been received since the
last Panel meeting in June 2020.
2. The Committee Manager commented that in line with the Panel’s Complaints
Protocol, the Complaints Sub-Committee reviewed the complaint in August and
concluded that the PCC had not breached his code of conduct and acted
appropriately, recommending no further action.
RESOLVED:
The Panel noted the content of the report and that the Complaints Sub-Committee
had received one complaint since the last Panel meeting.
Actions/further information to be provided:
None.
52/20
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF POLICE, FIRE AND CRIME PANELS (NAPFCP)
……..[ITEM 14]
Witnesses:
Amelia Christopher - Committee Manager, Surrey County Council (SCC)
Key points raised in the discussion:
1.

2.
3.

The Committee Manager introduced the report noting that last November the
Chairman of the National Association of Police, Fire and Crime Panels
(NAPFCP) had asked the Panel whether it wished to express an interest in
joining the National Association.
The Committee Manager summarised that the NAPFCP was a collaborative
forum of other Police (Fire) and Crime Panels to share best practice.
She explained that a previous barrier to joining in the past was the annual
£500 subscription fee which could not have been funded through the Home
Office grant. In November 2019, NAPFCP agreed at its AGM to waive that fee
and so it was an opportune time for the Panel to join.

130

Page 11

2

4.

The Vice-Chairman proposed that the Panel should join the NAPFCP as it
would provide a useful forum to share best practice with other panels nationally
and as it was free of charge - the Panel agreed.

RESOLVED:
The Police and Crime Panel considered the proposal and agreed to become a
member of the National Association of Police, Fire and Crime Panels.
Actions/further information to be provided:
1. R34/20 - The Committee Manager will write to the Chairman of the National
Association of Police, Fire and Crime Panels (NAPFCP) noting the Panel’s
decision to become a member.
53/20

SURREY PCP BUDGET 2019-20

[ITEM 15]

Witnesses:
Amelia Christopher - Committee Manager, Surrey County Council (SCC)
Key points raised in the discussion:
1.

2.

The Committee Manager explained that as a result of Panel member feedback
on last year’s budget report, the report for 2019-20 was more detailed. It
included an explanation as to where the underspend went, clarified the
Employee Costs breakdown based on the percentages of salary costs and
provided more detail on the webcasting, members’ expenses, printing and
postage costs as well as refreshments.
She highlighted that the ongoing Home Office grant funding section had been
added, which explained that a mid-year claim between April-September 2020 for
half of the grant would be submitted by end of October and that report could be
brought back to November’s Panel.

RESOLVED:
The Police and Crime Panel noted the report.
Actions/further information to be provided:
1. R35/20 - The summary of the Panel’s mid-year claim between April-September
2020 will be provided to the Panel at its next meeting so ongoing expenditure in
relation to the Home Office grant can be kept track of.
54/20
RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME
………….[ITEM 16]
Witnesses:
Amelia Christopher, Committee Manager, Surrey County Council (SCC)

131

Page 12

2

Key points raised in the discussion:
1. The Committee Manager and Chairman thanked the OPCC for their
comprehensive responses in completing the majority of actions on the
recommendations tracker. The Committee Manager noted that the remaining
few would be completed by end of the year or early 2021.
2. The Committee Manager noted that in relation to recommendation R14/20, a
report had been annexed to the tracker noting the work of the Problem Solving
Occurrence Team.
3. The Vice-Chairman thanked the OPCC for their response to recommendation
R23/20, but asked the PCC whether the provision of two off-road motorbikes
would be sufficient to respond to crimes across the large rural areas in Surrey.
The PCC responded that he would like to have the funding to deploy more offroad vehicles with trained officers to tackle rural crime and anti-social behaviour.
There would potentially be more opportunities for provision and deployment
once the force was at full capacity.
4. The Chairman encouraged Panel members to email in any items to be added to
the forward work programme.
RESOLVED:
The Panel noted the Actions & Recommendations Tracker and provided input into
the Forward Work Programme.
Actions/further information to be provided:
None.
55/20

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

[ITEM 17]

The next meeting of the Police and Crime Panel will be on 24 November 2020 (most
likely via Teams).
The private informal meeting for Panel Members with the Chief Constable will take
place on 27 October 2020.

Meeting ended at: 11.51 am
_____________________________________________________________
Chairman

132

Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

Annex A

2

SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
PUBLIC QUESTION RESPONSE
15 September 2020

INTRODUCTION
The Panel have received the following question from Councillor Jonathan Essex
(Reigate and Banstead Borough Council) on behalf of a member of the public:
“Just over a year ago the police precept for Surrey increased significantly
with a promise of around 100 extra officers. There used to be community
policing - but this was replaced with ‘policing in your neighbourhood’
which discontinued much of the local presence of ‘community policing’.
Please can you confirm the breakdown and numbers of the new officers in
post, over and above the existing and plans for increasing community
policing in Surrey going forward.”

The response to this is broken down into two parts. Firstly, the breakdown and
numbers of new officers in post. Secondly, the plans for increasing community
policing.
In terms of officers in post, the overall numbers of police officers in the last few
years are as follows:
2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

Budgeted
Officers

1874

1917

2022

Actual numbers
as at 31st March

1882

1928

To be published
in 2021

The OPCC tends to work on budgeted numbers as actual numbers can fluctuate
on a daily basis, depending on whether there has been a recent intake or how
many officers have recently left the organisation. However, the actual numbers
are published by the Government as a snapshot in time at the end of March each
year, which provides an indication of actual numbers in post.
All newly recruited officers will be posted to neighbourhood teams as their first
posting. However, this does not mean that all new funded ‘posts’ are in these
teams. There are newly created posts across the organisation according to
operational need. The posts been placed into four priority areas:

Page 15

2






Prevention and proactivity – this includes preventative activity and
neighbourhood policing - including 22 neighbourhood specialist officers in
2019/20 and 8 in 2020/21 and 11 additional Youth Intervention Officers
Vulnerability – focussing on people and communities that need more
support and assistance - including additional officers working on tackling
and investigation Domestic Abuse and Sexual Abuse
Understanding and meeting demand – investment to better understand
demand and forecast to meet that demand - including officers working in
first level contact with victims to resolve cases
Operational efficiencies and enablers – investing in areas of the business
that continue to support the front-line, enable investment and deliver
greater efficiencies - including officers working in the Criminal Justice
department to build court case files

A more detailed report on workforce planning is provided to this panel meeting.
It is worth noting that the precept has also paid for an increase in operational
police staff - including Police Community Support Officers and specialist
investigative staff.
In terms of future plans to improve community policing, this is one of the PCC’s
key three areas for improvement in 2020/21. As such, he asked the Chief
Constable earlier in the year as to how this will be achieved by the force. The
response was as follows:
“Despite the current pandemic, recruitment of police officers has continued at
pace with 181 officers having joined the Force during 2019/2020 with a cohort
of 42 recruits due in May 2020. By next month we will have achieved our
headcount target, following the 2019/20 precept investment, which will see the
Neighbourhood Policing Team (NPT) at establishment thereby allowing
recruitment to commence of our new Neighbourhood Specialist Officer posts
(22 from 2019/20 precept increase and 8 from 2020/21 precept) and 11
additional Youth Intervention Officers. An internal and external recruitment
campaign is in the planning stages with the aim of attracting the very best
officers into these positions. This will see many more officers working in their
communities on prevention and problem solving activity along with increased
engagement with the county’s young people.”
RESOLVED:
The Police and Crime Panel noted this response.
LEAD/ CONTACT OFFICER:
TELEPHONE NUMBER:
E-MAIL:

Johanna Burne, Head of Performance and
Governance
01483 630200
SurreyPCC@surrey.pnn.police.uk

Page 16

Item 5
SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
SURREY POLICE GROUP FINANCIAL REPORT FOR MONTH SIX
FINANCIAL YEAR 2020/21

5

24 NOVEMBER 2020

1) Purpose of Report
The purpose of this report is to inform the Police & Crime Panel of the Surrey
Police Group (i.e. OPCC and Chief Constable combined) of the financial
position as at the 30th September 2020 as well as a prediction for the situation at
the end of the year. A report on the OPCC financial performance is included
elsewhere on this agenda.
2) Revenue Financial Performance as at the 30th September 2020
I am pleased to report that at as at the 30th September 2020 it is predicted that
the Surrey Police Group will have an underspend of £0.7m against a net budget
of £250.0m. This is after taking in to account unbudgeted net expenditure of
£2.3m on Coronovirus costs which is explained in more detail later in this paper.
A detailed report of spending against individual budgets is included in Appendix
A to this report. This shows actual and estimated expenditure against budget
both by portfolio and cost centre. Further information is provided below in inform
the panel on major cost centre variances:
a) Wages and Salaries
The variances for these areas have been summarised in the table below:
Sep-20

Year to Date
Actual

Police Officer Pay

Budget

Full Year
Variance

Forecast

Budget

Variance

66,962,329

60,150,154

6,812,175

119,092,466

120,299,519

2,565,380

2,311,924

253,456

5,035,461

4,504,998

530,463

35,790,108

36,732,000

(941,892)

74,295,835

73,466,612

829,223

828,006

497,284

330,722

1,588,243

1,126,571

461,672

Other Employee Expenses

2,382,236

1,950,768

431,468

4,551,817

3,901,334

650,483

Temporary or Agency Staff

1,635,570

313,137

1,322,433

2,461,287

625,669

1,835,618

Police Officer Overtime
Police Staff Pay
Police Staff Overtime

Restructure, Training & Conference Costs
Total

(1,207,053)

1,191,750

961,956

229,794

1,895,910

1,846,425

49,485

111,355,378

102,917,223

8,438,155

208,921,019

205,771,128

3,149,891

Page 17

It is clear from the table above that Wages and Salaries are predicted to be
overspent by £3.1m by the end of the year. This is due to a number of reasons:
5

Police Officer Pay
Due to the phasing of officer recruitment being mainly in the latter half of the
year this has resulted in an underspend. Although current officer number of
1,967 are below the budgeted number of 2,038 it is anticipated that officer
numbers will be 2,103 by the end of the year.
Police Officer and Staff Overtime
Officer and Staff overtime continues to be above budget due to shortfalls in
staffing and Covid pressures. Further details are given in the table below. This
shows that despite being overspent overtime costs per head are still predicted
to be less than most of the preceeding 5 years. Work is being done to further
reduce these costs.
Police Overtim e

Budget
£'000

Actual
£'000

Variance
£'000

Variance
%

Average
per FTE

2020-21

4,505

5,035

530

12%

2,531

2019-20

3,554

4,826

1,272

36%

2,577

2018-19

4,030

4,270

240

6%

2,241

58%

3,417

71%

3,516

Variance
%

Average
per FTE

2017-18

4,232

6,688

2,456

2016-17

3,839

6,568

2,729

Staff Overtim e

Budget
£'000

Actual
£'000

Variance
£'000

2020/21

1,127

1,588

462

41%

886

2019/20

1,129

1,562

433

38%

945

2018/19

1,561

1,454

-107

-7%

882

1,853

212

13%

1,101

1,622

281

21%

2017/18
2016/17

1,641
1,341

Police Staff Pay
Although Police staff numbers are under budget 144 FTE under budget
resulting in an underspend of £5.2m this has been offset by the assumed
vacancy margin of 6% in the budget equivalent to £4.6m. In addition pay
rates have been higher than budgeted resulting in an overspend overall.
Other employee expenses
The predicted overspend here relates mainly to additional Covid costs for local
PPE.

Page 18

Agency Costs
There is a forecast overspend of £1.8m. The majority of this relates the cost
of an additional 30 investigative assistants plus returning and retired officer
reemployed to assit with Covid.

5

Precept and Uplift Investment
I am pleased to report that we are on track to meet the targets for new staff
funded by the precept investment and uplift grant by the end of the year.
Expected increase at March 2021

Investment
provided

At 31/3/21

FTE

FTE

Police Officers – Uplift growth

78

78

Police Staff – Uplift growth

0

0

Police Officers – Precept growth

26

26

Police Staff – Precept growth

52.5

52.5

Total

156.5

156.5

Employee Group

Forecast

b) Non-pay Budgets
The current variances and predictions for these budgets are summarised in
the table below:
Sep-20

Year to Date
Actual

Budget

Full Year
Variance

Forecast

Budget

Premises Related Expenditure

6,452,538

5,596,365

856,173

10,341,763

10,457,077

Transport Related Expenditure

1,951,222

2,678,513

(727,291)

4,455,075

5,326,681

18,422,797

17,224,853

1,197,944

37,943,229

34,057,689

Supplies & Services
Capital financing and Finacial Reporting
Grants & Income
Total

(484,490)

Variance
(115,314)
(871,606)
3,885,540

3,077,280

(3,561,770)

5,654,565

6,154,565

(15,011,690)

(6,008,951)

(9,002,739)

(18,055,841)

(11,758,583)

(6,297,258)

(500,000)

11,330,377

22,568,060

(11,237,683)

40,338,790

44,237,429

(3,898,639)

The reasons for significant variances are as follows:




Transport underspends are due to insurance costs being lower than predicted.
Most of the overspend on Supplies and Services is due to local and national PPE
which has been offset by additional income in the form of a Government grant.
Income is predicted to be above budget due to grants received for Covid
reimbursement, additional income for Surrey officers seconded to regional units and
income from tenants at the new HQ site in Leatherhead.

c) Delivery of Savings for 2020/21
All the savings were taken at the beginning of the financial year and deducted from
budgets. Out of the total £1.4m savings £500k of ICT savings are still to be identified.

Page 19

Based on assumptions in respect of income and costs it is estimated that £20m of
savings will be needed over the next 4 years. Work is being done at the moment to
identify these should they be required. This situation may change depending on the
outcome of the Settlement later in the year.
5

3) Capital expenditure to the 30th September 2020
The capital budget for 2020/21 was approved by the PCC in February 2020 totalling
£10.5m with an additional £7.5m capital slippage from 2019/20 and in year changes
bringing the total budget for the year to £17.023m. Details of actual and estimated spend
against budget are shown in the table below:

Capital Summary

2020/21 Total
Budget
£

2020/21

Forecast
Forecast

Actuals
£

Variance
£

£

ICT Strategy

6,150,930

1,174,319

4,730,648

(1,420,282)

Commercial and Finance Services

5,030,056

923,630

5,029,967

(89)

Specialist Crime

326,336

110,736

327,537

1,201

Operations

823,893

172,564

172,564

(651,329)

3,846,991

644,218

2,877,470

(969,521)

845,000

472,759

1,306,941

461,941

17,023,206

3,498,226

14,445,127

(2,578,079)

Corporate Services (Surrey)
Local Policing
Total

The Force runs a flexible programme managing schemes over a rolling 2 year period
enabling schemes to be bought forward or deferred.
The main variances are as follows:





ICT – Windows 10, Office 365, MMD Deviceand DEVIS programs moved in to next
year.
Operations – largest variances on Tasers, ANPR and equipment.
Corporate – New HQ expenditure moved in to 2021/22.
Local Policing – Overspend in the main is on STORM a new crime recording and data
system.

The Home Office only provides a grant of £0.2m for Police Capital Expenditiure. Hence of
the estimated £14.4m capital expenditure it is anticipated that £9.2m will be funded from
borrowing, £4.2m from revenue with the remaining £1m from Capital Receipts and
Government Grant.

Page 20

4) Reserves and Treasury Investments
At the start of the year there were reserves totalling £19.5m of which £11.4m are
earmarked and £8.1m non earmarked. During the year so far earmarked reserves
have been used on insurance claims, ill health retirement and the PCC Covid
grants for voluntary groups. The non earmarked reserves represent just over 3%
of the net budget which puts them at the lower end of reserves required to deal
with financial uncertainty. Any underspend for the year will usually be transferred
to reserves – however this will not take place until the year end.
At the end of September £22.6m was held for investment by Surrey County
Council under the SLA on an overnight basis and on which interest is paid. In
March 2019, the PCC also entered into an external loan with PWLB for £15.6m in
order to purchase land for Building the Future.
5) Covid Costs
The operational response to the COVID 19 pandemic has resulted in additional
unplanned costs which consist of the salary costs of police officers and staff,
employee overtime, premises, lost income and supplies & services, the most
significant cost for the Personal Protective Equipment (PPE). After some delay
the Home Office have allowed Police Forces to claim for medical grade PPE but
no other costs such as overtime etc. It is expected that the PPE costs, which total
£3.1m, will be received in November. The Home Office have announced that
Surrey will receive £388k from the £30m Covid Surge Fund and also claim a
proportion of net income lost on the same basis as local authorities.
An estimate of the total costs for the year of the COVID-19 pandemic together
with any anticipated grants are shown in the table below. These costs are included
within the overall financial forecast. There may be additional costs, such as for
the disposal of PPE or a second lockdown, that could increase this figure still
further.
Surrey
Expenditure

£'000

National PPE

2,275

Local PPE

850

Other Local Costs

2,696

Total Forecast Costs

5,821

Forecast Income

-3,513

Net Forecast

2,308

Total PPE cost (for information)

3,125

Page 21

5

As a result of Covid some costs have been reduced such as those for travel and
training and these savings are also reflected in the forecast.
5

6) Risks to the Forecast
There are a number of risks which may impact on the delivery or the forecast.
These are:
 Covid costs may be higher than predicted due to the pandemic lasting
longer or becoming mreo intense;
 Overtime costs may rise signifincatly due to sickness and operational
pressures
 Capital recipts may not be achieved due to market conditions
7) Equalities and Diversity Implications
There are none arising from this report.
8) Summary
Despite the Force incurring additional unfunded costs as a result of Covid of
£2.2m it is still predicting to come in under budget by £0.7m. This, coupled with
the delivery of the precept and uplift posts, will be real achievement if it can be
carried through to the year end. However there are still a number of ucnertainties
in the second half of the year around Covid, staffing etc which will need to be
watched carefully to keep the finances on track. However at the moment there is
every reason to be optimistic.
Whilst some of the Capital projects do not appear to be proceeding as quickly as
intended this has allowed a more measured approach to be taken in some areas
and also to reduce the amount of money the force has to find or borrow to fund
these projects. That said the largest project – Building the Future for the new HQ
– is still proceeding to plan.
Looking forward in to next year the continued uncertainty over Government
funding and Council Tax coupled with increasing costs pressures will all make for
a very tough budget. It is likely that significant savings will be required and difficult
decisions taken however through the continued prudent management of this
years budget I believe we will be as best placed as we can be to meet those
challenges.

David Munro, Police & Crime Commissioner for Surrey

Page 22

Lead Officer:

Kelvin Menon, Treasurer & Chief Finance Officer – OPCC

Telephone Number:

01483 638724

E-mail:

kelvin.menon@surrey.pnn.police.uk

Page 23

5

Appendix A
th

Revenue Budget and Estimated Outurn for 2020/21 as at 30 September 2020

Sep-20

Year to Date

Full Year

5
Actual

Budget

Variance

Forecast

Budget

Variance

Portfolio
Local Policing

19,640,650

18,251,010

1,389,640

39,372,457

37,012,451

2,360,006

Operations

6,311,546

2,766,375

3,545,171

5,377,456

5,629,290

(251,834)

Specialist Crime

8,585,249

10,238,034

(1,652,785)

18,867,379

21,037,565

(2,170,186)

Corporate Services Sussex

707,692

643,158

64,534

1,473,115

1,282,738

190,377

Corporate Services Surrey

3,650,927

3,372,005

278,922

7,693,003

6,751,154

941,849

Information & Communication Technology

9,252,222

7,959,452

1,292,770

16,801,979

15,462,894

1,339,085

People Services

3,788,390

3,480,353

308,037

6,717,190

6,968,548

(251,358)

Equip

1,484,980

557,329

927,651

2,533,148

1,114,673

1,418,475

146,236

16,992,825

(16,846,589)

29,190,510

32,300,662

(3,110,152)

66,962,329

60,150,154

6,812,175

119,092,466

120,299,519

(1,207,053)

120,530,222

124,410,695

(3,880,473)

247,118,704

247,859,494

(740,790)

2,155,533

1,074,588

1,080,945

2,141,105

2,149,063

(7,958)

122,685,755

125,485,283

(2,799,528)

249,259,809

250,008,557

(748,748)

(125,260,191)

(117,564,180)

(7,696,011)

(250,008,562)

(250,008,562)

-

(2,574,436)

7,921,103

(10,495,539)

(748,753)

(5)

(748,748)

66,962,329

60,150,154

6,812,175

119,092,466

120,299,519

(1,207,053)

2,565,380

2,311,924

253,456

5,035,461

4,504,998

530,463

35,790,108

36,732,000

(941,892)

74,295,835

73,466,612

829,223

828,006

497,284

330,722

1,588,243

1,126,571

461,672

Commercial and Finance Services
Non-Delegated

Operational Policing Total
PCC for Surrey Police

Total Police Fund
Funding

Grand Total
Cost Type
Police Officer Pay
Police Officer Overtime
Police Staff Pay
Police Staff Overtime
PCSO Pay

-

-

PCSO Overtime

-

-

PO Injury, Ill Health & Death Pensions

1,229,920

1,061,358

168,562

2,122,727

2,122,727

0

Other Employee Expenses

1,152,316

889,410

262,906

2,429,090

1,778,607

650,483

Temporary or Agency Staff

1,635,570

313,137

1,322,433

2,461,287

625,669

1,835,618

Restructure, Training & Conference Costs

1,191,750

961,956

229,794

1,895,910

1,846,425

49,485

Premises Related Expenditure

6,452,538

5,596,365

856,173

10,341,763

10,457,077

(115,314)

Transport Related Expenditure

1,951,222

2,678,513

(727,291)

4,455,075

5,326,681

(871,606)

Supplies & Services

14,886,245

15,431,513

(545,268)

34,377,202

30,509,052

3,868,150

Third Party Payments

3,536,551

1,793,340

1,743,211

3,566,027

3,548,637

17,390

407,348

3,077,280

(2,669,932)

6,154,565

6,154,565

(0)

41,070

-

41,070

(500,000)

-

(500,000)

(932,908)

-

Capital financing and contributions
Transfers to Revenue and Capital Reserves
Reconciling Man. Accs & Stat. Financial Reporting.
Grants & Income

Sub Total
Funding

Grand Total

(932,908)

-

(15,011,690)

(6,008,951)

(9,002,739)

(18,055,841)

(11,758,583)

(6,297,258)

122,685,755

125,485,283

(2,799,528)

249,259,809

250,008,557

(748,748)

(125,260,191)

(117,564,180)

(7,696,011)

(250,008,562)

(250,008,562)

-

7,921,103 (10,495,539)
Page 24

(748,753)

(5)

(748,748)

(2,574,436)

Item 6
SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
OFFICE OF THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER
MONTH SIX FINANCIAL UPDATE 2020/21 AND ESTIMATE FOR
YEAR END OUTTURN
24 NOVEMBER 2020
SUMMARY:
The purpose of this report is to inform the Police & Crime Panel of the OPCC’s
financial performance at Month 6 for the 2020/21 financial year together with an
estimate of the year end outturn against budget.
1.

Introduction
In the first six months of the year spending is generally in line with the budget
with the exception of some grants which have been paid for up front but are
funded over the year.
With regard to the estimated year end outturn I am pleased to report that it is
anticipated that there will be a small underspend of £7,958. This represents
0.3% of the total OPCC budget.

2.

Individual Significant Budget Variances
There are only two significant variances to report at the 6th month point. The
first relates to the timing of payment of grants to voluntary bodies and the
receipt of grant monies from the Government. The second relates to £305k of
the special COVID grants I made to voluntary bodies which is going to be
funded from reserves in the second half of the year.
There are no major variances predicted for the end of the year.

See Appendix A – Budget and Costs to 30th September 2020
RECOMMENDATIONS
The Police & Crime Panel is invited to comment and note the financial performance of
the Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner for Surrey for the nine-month period
ending 30th September 2020
David Munro, Police & Crime Commissioner for Surrey

Page 25

6

Lead Officer:

Kelvin Menon, Treasurer & Chief Finance Officer – OPCC

Telephone Number:

01483 638724

E-mail:

kelvin.menon@surrey.pnn.police.uk

6

Page 26

APPENDIX A – Budget and Costs to 30th September 2020
Team

Subjective

Year to Date
Actual

PCC Costs

Police Staff Pay
Training Costs
Transport Related Expenditure
Supplies & Services
Income & Expense

OPCC Staff, Office and Advisory Costs

Police Staff Pay
Other Employee Expenses
Training Costs
Premises Related Expenditure
Transport Related Expenditure
Supplies & Services
Income & Expense

Victim Services

Police Staff Pay
Training Costs
Transport Related Expenditure
Supplies & Services
Grants Paid to outside bodies
Government grant
Income & Expense

Community Safety Fund

Supplies & Services
Income & Expense

ICV Sundry Costs

Training Costs
Premises Related Expenditure
Supplies & Services
Income & Expense

Communications

Training Costs
Premises Related Expenditure
Supplies & Services
Income & Expense

Audit Committee

Committee allowances
Training Costs
Transport Related Expenditure
Supplies & Services
Income & Expense

Covid 19 grants

Supplies & Services
Transfers to Reserves
Income & Expense

Overall Total PCC

45,913

Budget

Full Year
Variance

Forecast

Budget

Variance

297
12

44,376
1,002
2,550
426

1,537
(1,002)
(2,253)
(414)

91,825
1,429
3,585
543

88,750
2,000
5,100
850

3,075
(571)
6
(1,515)
(307)

46,222

48,354

(2,132)

97,381

96,700

681

385,263
(61)
23,745
4,250
135,266

382,146
1,770
10,128
26,754
7,626
119,262

3,117
(1,770)
(10,189)
(3,009)
(3,376)
16,004

762,039
2,942
9,406
52,738
12,444
253,669

764,310
3,530
20,260
53,490
15,230
238,480

(2,271)
(588)
(10,854)
(752)
(2,786)
15,189

548,463

547,686

777

1,093,238

1,095,300

(2,062)

53,217
1,183
337,505
1,281,305
(1,032,976)

52,068
924
2,016
324
642,102
(684,570)

1,149
(924)
(833)
337,181
639,203
(348,406)

127,863
1,533
2,433
337,836
1,281,305
(1,728,459)

104,130
1,840
4,020
640
1,284,210
(1,369,137)

23,733
(307)
(1,587)
337,196
(2,905)
(359,322)

640,234

12,864

627,370

22,512

25,703

(3,191)

607,115

400,002

207,113

799,615

800,000

(386)

607,115

400,002

207,113

799,615

800,000

(386)

66
467

1,050
750
2,298

(1,050)
(684)
(1,831)

1,586
1,696
2,759

2,100
1,500
4,600

(514)
196
(1,841)

533

4,098

(3,565)

6,041

8,200

(2,159)

498

857
(944)
25,145

1,000
24,000

(143)
(944)
1,145

(944)
5,258

12,000

(498)
(944)
(6,742)

4,314

12,498

(8,184)

25,059

25,000

59

2,867

2,892
510
258
426

(25)
(510)
(258)
(426)

5,740
1,020
250
250

5,780
1,020
510
850

(40)
(260)
(600)

2,867

4,086

(1,219)

7,260

8,160

(900)

305,786

45,000

260,786
-

590,000
(500,000)

90,000

500,000
(500,000)

305,786

45,000

260,786

90,000

90,000

(0)

2,155,533

1,074,588

1,080,945

2,141,105

2,149,063

(7,958)

Page 27

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 7
SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
POLICE AND CRIME PLAN 2018-2021 – PROGRESS
24 NOVEMBER 2020
INTRODUCTION

7

The PCC published a refreshed Police and Crime Plan in May 2018 for the period 2018
to 2020. This built on the previous plan issued in 2016. The refresh was informed by
emerging crime trends, consultation, scrutiny of current force performance and meetings
and visits with Surrey Police, public and partners.
The six objectives set out in the 2018-2020 plan are as follows:







Tackling crime and keeping people safe
Building confident communities
Supporting victims
Preventing harm
Making every pound count
A Force fit for the future

The plan is available on the website of the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner
(OPCC) or in paper copy on request. This report provides an update on how the plan
has been met to date. The current plan has been extended to May 2021, with a renewed
emphasis from the PCC on three areas in 2020/21:




More Police Officers and Frontline Staff
Better Crime Prevention
More crimes solved

Plans are in place to meet the recruitment of all police officers and front-line staff funded
by the Government uplift programme and local precept funding. A large number of
projects have been directed towards crime prevention, detailed below in the report.
Surrey Police has developed plans to improve solve rates.
1.1

Tackling Crime and Keeping People Safe

The headline actions to achieve this priority are set out in the plan as follows:
 Combatting the threat of terrorism
 Preventing and solving crimes that cause most harm
 Serious and Organised Crime
 Problem solving
 Maintaining a local policing presence
 Dealing with crime and anti-social behaviour
 Contacting the police

Page 29



7

Roads policing

The OPCC has worked closely with partners first to develop an analysis of the current
context and a rapid review of the evidence relating to serious youth violence and more
recently taking this information and developing a strategy. The work has focused on
creating a shared vision and the principles by which we will work. The action plan
focuses on early intervention and prevention, supporting individuals, families and
communities, effective responses to perpetrators and victims and ensuring the
partnership is equipped with the knowledge and skills to deliver the programme of work.
It is hoped along with tackling serious youth violence we will also be in a better position
to bid for national funding from projects like the Youth Endowment Fund or for the
Violence Reduction Units.
The OPCC has been scrutinising the Force and working with partners to ensure the
various response to Surrey and Sussex Control Strategy moves forward. The Serious
and Organised Crime Partnership is now well established and has been overseeing
the threats in this area during the pandemic. Especially the work around drug related
harm, where the OPCC has been supporting the Force lead to develop a delivery plan.
The OPCC has also been working closely with Surrey County Council to ensure the
delivery of the Engage Project which is the introduction of targeted support in custody
to support young people.
One of the key pieces of work the OPCC has been working on with Surrey Police is the
communications around Serious and Organised Crime. The See the Bigger Picture
branding and communication strategy has been agreed. This provides all partners a
vehicle to develop targeted messages around the four Ps (prevent, protect, pursue,
prepare) relating to the drug-related harm, Fraud and cybercrime, exploitation and
modern slavery.
The OPCC has also been particularly keen to support and work on preventing fraud
and cybercrime. Fraud continues to rise and this accelerated during lockdown, shifting
to online fraud. The OPCC has supported the Victim Navigators in the Witness and
Victim Care Unit who have been recruited during the lockdown and are starting to
support vulnerable victims. The OPCC is also supporting Surrey Police in the
development of the Volunteer Fraud Prevention Programme which will aim to give
every victim of fraud in Surrey crime prevention advice specific to their crime type. This
is an exciting project which we hope to link with community groups and local partnership
to build a network of support and information to prevent fraud amongst our communities.
As part of Operation Swordfish the PCC has supported Surrey Police’s Road’s Policing
Unit in delivering targeted patrols in areas of Surrey which have been suffering with AntiSocial vehicle use. The PCC committed funding to support specific activity in August in
the Mole Valley area to target anti-social motorcycle use. This culminated in a
Partnership Action Day over the Bank Holiday weekend.
Parking continues to be an area of concern for many communities and due to ongoing
effort by the OPCC, anti-social parking now forms part of the Community Harm
Partnership Group action plan. The OPCC has also established an Anti-Social Parking

Page 30

Problem Solving Group which is looking at hot spot areas and how through partnership
activity improvements can be made for the local community. The OPCC is also actively
lobbying government for changes to how parking is enforced and will be responding to
the Department for Transport’s consultation on Pavement Parking.
The PCC continues to support victims of Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) and advocate
for a better response from partners and government. The OPCC was part of the Surrey
working group that reviewed the Surrey Community Trigger Framework to ensure it
meets national recommendations and the PCC was part of the launch in February 2020.
As part of this launch the PCC along with the Chief Constable and other partners signed
up to the ASB Pledge, committing to putting victims at the heart of the Trigger processes.
The OPCC also provides victims who have submitted a trigger but are not happy with
the outcome an option to review the way the review was carried out. The Surrey OPCC
is one of only 4 OPCCs in the country to offer this.
The OPCC continues to commission the ASB support service. The service goes from
strength to strength. It is now part of Surrey Mediation and victims can be referred into
the organisation and the best course of support then agreed and allocated. During
lockdown, Anti-social Behaviour increased and while some can be attributed to people
breaking the social distancing rules there is evidence of people struggling with
neighbours and in their communities. Surrey Mediation have shifted to online support
and have received additional PCC funding to increase their paid coaches in light of the
increase in ASB. They have reported a significant increase in referrals in quarter one
and these are generally more complicated and the dispute harder to resolve. They are
predicting almost a 50% increase on last year’s referrals for the ASB Support.
Surrey OPCC has also been supporting Surrey Police in tackling the Anti-Social
Behaviour in our public and open spaces. As the lockdown lifted, much of the community
tensions was centred on young people and how they were adhering to the social
distancing guidance. The PCC funded Surrey Clubs for Young People to work with
Surrey Police Neighbourhood Teams to engage with young people to discuss the
lockdown rules, respect for the community and how they might access support. Other
organisations such as East Surrey YMCA, The Matrix Trust and Eikon have been
running online sessions (and where possible face to face engagement) and detached
youth work has been funded through the Community Safety Fund.
Times to answer 101 calls have been impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic. The contact
centre has had to priorities 999 call answering. The contact centre usually operates from
one large open-plan office allowing effective supervision and demand management.
However, to ensure social distancing requirements, contact centre staff have been
spread across five different sites. There have also been staff shortages with people
isolating. This has all impacted on performance with average times increasing from just
over 1 minute to around 3 minutes in the last few months. The force is now reviewing its
Covid-19 plans and aiming to improve answering times.
On a more positive note, Surrey Police has introduced other ways of contacting the
police over the last few months. Surrey residents can now contact the force via
Facebook or Twitter and receive a response as if they had made a 101 contact. The

Page 31

7

Surrey Police website now also has a Chatbox function. This has allowed more people
to make contact in ways which fit with their preferred methods of contact.

1.2

Building Confident Communities

The headline actions to achieve this priority are set out in the plan as follows:
7







Engagement with Surrey Police
Encourage communities to get involved
Working with all of Surrey’s diverse communities
Children and young people
Partnership problem solving

The PCC is proud to have worked for many years with the Surrey Minority Ethnic
Forum (SMEF), a community organisation representing 40 grass-root multi-ethnic
community groups. SMEF’s mission is to work together to find solutions to the social
and economic challenges faced by the communities they represent. Each of the groups
supports between 30 to 100 people – a total of between 1,200 and 4,000 families.
Since 2016, the PCC has funded and supported the SMEF Active Communities
programme. The programme delivers activities that bring people together to understand
a range of complex social issues, including domestic abuse, harmful traditional
practices, drug and alcohol abuse, child exploitation and the grooming of children
through the internet. Work is targeted towards increasing understanding of these issues,
as well education around rights and responsibilities, and how to access support.
Whilst Surrey is a green county perceived as white and affluent, this affluence sits
alongside areas of high deprivation, including areas where there are larger Black Asian
and Minority Ethnic (BAME) communities. SMEF’s experience of working with BAME
communities has highlighted the barriers that women in particular face in achieving their
full potential, as well as the isolation that BAME residents can experience with few
opportunities to mingle.
Through our work with SMEF, we are connecting BAME communities with specialists in
these areas - building up their own knowledge and community resources to tackle issues
together. SMEF is also a key partner involved in developing the county’s response to
hate crime, with SMEF Chair, Neelam Devesher, chairing the Surrey Police Hate Crime
Scrutiny Panel. The Active Communities programme raises awareness of this type of
crime and encourages all communities to report any incidences with confidence.
This community based work has been impacted like many projects by Covid-19, and I
am pleased to have extended additional support during this time to enable SMEF to
reach the most vulnerable residents.
The PCC continues to heavily support services that work with and care for young
people in Surrey. With many other funding sources for services that support young
people in the county reducing this year, the OPCC has been working carefully on
ensuring that the Community Safety Fund is providing a range of vital services and
opportunities for young people. To date, £166,246.50 has been awarded to providers of

Page 32

services for children and young people. Key commissioned services includes the
Crimestoppers’ Fearless Worker who acts as a bridge between young people and the
Police, enabling young people to keep safe and inform the authorities of crime without
any fear. The project, which focuses on prevention, empowers young people to make
informed decisions by building resilience.
The PCC has also supported the establishment of the Guildford Youth Café in Guildford
Town Centre. A disused building was turned into a space that can be used in the day
by the community and by after-school clubs and then in the evening by youth workers
to engage and support young people in their learning and discovery space.
Over the summer the OPCC supported the development of two applications to the
Government’s Youth Endowment Fund. The first for dedicated targeted support for
young people at risk of being drawn into criminal exploitation. The second for the
development of the Junior Citizen Scheme. While both bids for central government
funding were unsuccessful, the projects continue with OPCC support. Especially the
Junior Citizen’s project where a task and finish group is looking to digitalise the content
and make the work more sustainable and relevant to the threats facing young people in
Surrey.
The OPCC has been closely watching the development of the Force’s new Prevention
and Problem Solving Team. The team will bring together Problem Solving, ASB,
Partnership and areas such as the Youth Engagement Officers and Designing Out
Crime Officers into one team so as to bring consistency and a better response to tackling
issues across Surrey with partners. The PCC is pleased with the progress and his office
has worked closely with the team, especially in developing new initiatives around
schools and the development of partnership products. During the lockdown, through the
team and Op Apollo, hot spot maps were produced around Anti-social Behaviour. These
were sent to partners so targeted action could be taken on repeat addresses/areas of
ASB. The PCC supported activity including Public Space Protection Orders (PSPOs)
and, where necessary, funded CCTV to ensure the work was successful.
1.3

Supporting Victims

The headline actions to achieve this priority are set out in the plan as follows:





Supporting victims of crime and anti-social behaviour
Providing specialist services
Ensuring value for money and collaboration
Supporting victims and witnesses through the Criminal Justice System

The OPCC has continued to work hard to ensure that all victims of crime in Surrey
receive appropriate support, to help them cope and recover from their experiences. The
office has continued to support and invest in the development of the new Victim and
Witness Care Unit, opened in April 2019. All victims of crime in Surrey are now
automatically referred into the unit at the point a crime is reported, with subsequent
contact based on an individual’s need and vulnerability. Individuals can also self-refer,
or use the dedicated website (victimandwitnesscare.org.uk) to find local specialist
support services.

Page 33

7

The impact of COVID-19 has inevitably resulted in court delays, and we have worked
closely with Surrey Police to uplift staffing levels within the Unit to ensure the needs of
victims and witnesses are met during this difficult time. We have also supported the
embedding of specialist support within the Unit, including two dedicated fraud case
workers and an Independent Domestic Violence Advisor (IDVA).

7

The office also commissions local specialist services that can provide support for
victims of specific, ‘high harm’ offences - including domestic abuse (DA), rape and
serious sexual offences - predominately delivered by independent, third sector
providers. All these services are available to victims, irrespective of gender and whether
the crime has been formally reported to the police.
In addition to maintaining our existing provision of local services, in April 2020 the OPCC
worked with Surrey County Council and Surrey Police to launch a new formally
contracted DA Outreach Service, bringing together various services that had
historically been commissioned separately. We were also able to secure additional
funding from the Ministry of Justice to allow the expansion of our Child Independent
Sexual Violence Advisor service, delivered by Surrey & Border Partners NHS Trust.
Despite a tight budget, we have also sought to launch new services, including a new
Modern Slavery Navigator who works in partnership with the Surrey Police to provide
specialist support to victims of modern slavery in Surrey. This post alone has allowed
for the provision of strategic advice on 280 modern slavery investigations, cared for 83
victims with full support plans, rescued 36 victims alongside the Police and trained 723
police officers and 825 other stakeholders.
Furthermore, the OPCC also worked with the Ministry of Justice to secure over £330,000
of funding to support our local specialist services mitigate against the impact of COVID19. In response to the crisis, the PCC also quickly made available £500,000 from his
operational reserve to enable local support services to adapt their delivery and ensure
help was available for those in need, with over £430,000 having been allocated.
The Office has continued to work closely with all our local partners to support the
development of new support services. In addition to the previously mentioned DA
Outreach Service, the OPCC is also currently working with NHS England, regional PCCs
and police forces to re-commission our Sexual Assault and Referral Centre (SARC),
looking for joint opportunities and efficiency savings.
The Office has also worked hard to make our funding more transparent, with public
facing dashboards now available for all our commissioning budgets. We have also
streamlined and moved our application processes entirely online, helping to ensure that
all local providers have the opportunity to approach us with ideas and solutions.
A full breakdown of expenditure for 2020/21 can be found here: https://funding.surreypcc.gov.uk/funding-stats/

Page 34

1.4

Preventing Harm

The headline actions to achieve this priority are set out in the plan as follows:






Identifying vulnerable people and reducing harm
Supporting those with mental health needs
Help for those with multiple needs
Missing people
Reducing reoffending

The OPCC continues to work with the Surrey High Intensity Partnership Programme
(SHIPP). It has been calculated (through the use of the Surrey Police funding
methodology of £44 per officer per hour) that since the first SHIPP plan was introduced
in March 2017, SHIPP has made a total saving of £402,851 or £134,095 per year.
Performance data relating to demand reduction on health services is being calculated
by Surrey & Borders Partnership (SABP). Once available, this data will include demand
relating to ambulance, s136, in-patient admissions and A&E presentations.
Plans are already in place to develop the SHIPP programme further during 2020/21
which includes two key areas:




Extending referrals into the SHIPP team to include under 18s. This supports the
‘breaking the cycle’ piece of work headed up by the Head of Surrey Public
Protection and is a response to the increasing use of s136 powers in Surrey for
children and young people. This increase has been directly linked to the repeat
use of s136 detentions in a small cohort of young people who are also presenting
regularly to health services.
Develop work with high users of services in Surrey who are supported by Catalyst
High Intensity team (drug and alcohol abuse). This work has been initiated and
is currently exploring the work of both Catalyst and SHIPP to identify closer
working opportunities.

SABP are continuing with the recruitment of 2 further care coordinators following a
period of delay. This will be crucial in expanding the capacity of SHIPP and allow for the
progression as outlined above.
National recognition has been received following SHIPP’s support of the National High
Intensity Network.
Another way the OPCC aims to prevent harm is through support to Surrey Adults
Matters (SAM). There are now 29 active SAM clients and 2 further new referrals,
pending Quadrant panel approval. There are 9 females and 20 males in this cohort.

Page 35

7

7

Complex Need
Mental Health sect 136
Mental Health - other
Alcohol
Substance misuse
Alcohol and substance misuse
Domestic Abuse Survivor
Violent Offender
In prison this quarter
Frequent hospital flyer
In hospital this quarter
Offending – other incl. ASB

Clients affected
3
10
13
4
5
4
3
4
2
6
3

The above table provides a breakdown of the main issues the clients are dealing with.
It should be noted that some clients are experiencing a combination of these issues.
Additionally, 4 clients have either ASD/ADHD or a learning disability. 5 clients have been
homeless during this quarter, 3 having had their homelessness addressed in some way.
One SAM client voluntarily withdrew themselves from the programme, having stopped
drinking and secured accommodation with support from the process. Another client has
also stopped drinking and is doing well in supported housing. One client is waiting for a
housing association allocation after completing 4 months of engaging with services and
causing no further anti-social behaviour. A previously prolific offender has just secured
a private rented room and has not offended since leaving prison at the start of the quarter
and they are engaging with drug and alcohol services. These positive outcomes have
been achieved due to the involved agencies providing an enhanced support service,
outside of their normal roles. However, this may not be sustainable in the longer term if
numbers requiring this enhancement increases.
Team Around the Person (TAP) meetings continue to be held for all clients. Some
clients have joined by telephone and some have spoken to the senior partnership
manager outside of the meeting with their keyworker. One client chose to communicate
their wishes by email.
These meetings are showcasing multi-agency action planning at its best. It is pivotal to
understanding a client’s journey and looking at the issues and obstacles that are
preventing them moving forward. Professionals involved in this process have worked
above and beyond to reach solutions for several clients. However, a lack of suitable
accommodation is the overriding obstacle for most of the cohort. Additionally, a lack of
generic outreach support to help clients meet their basic needs is also in short supply.
To date, the SAM Senior Partnerships Manager has been funded by the OPCC but
having seen the huge value of the post, Surrey County Council have recently confirmed
it will become permanent.

Page 36

Police and partners have been working to support victims of cuckooing. The objectives
of the intervention work are, through specialist assertive outreach, to:






Provide immediate support system to victims of cuckooing including visiting
clients in custody, providing pay-as-you-go phones, practical help and support
Provide harm reduction and facilitate access to substance misuse treatment,
wider health services, support and recovery for victims
Support the victim to comply with the criminal justice process
Support the police with partial or full Closure Orders
Engage with other drug users using the premises via texting to offer access to
prescribing services and other support services

Benefits of the cuckooing intervention to date include:


A total of 154 clients supported with a range of different needs, helping to
reduce crime, harm and antisocial behaviour, and reduce the risk of revictimisation of those cuckooed.



Improved safeguarding of individuals and reduced community impact.



A total of 63 tenancies saved to date, and a significant number of others helped
to maintain theirs.



Improved access to services, with a total of 216 referrals and re-engagements
with a range of services including housing and tenancy support, debt advice, GP,
mental health, substance misuse & prescribing services, social services,
wellbeing, advocacy, benefits, and domestic abuse.



An innovative preventative approach based on a list of ‘indicators of risk of
cuckooing’ that has been developed as a result of the project to help predict,
identify and prevent exploitation at the earliest opportunity.



A cost-benefit of the intervention to the wider system of £2.29 per £1 spent,
and a net saving (after the cost of the intervention is deducted) of £3,382 per
month, giving a conservative net saving to date of just over £67,600.

To date this service has been wholly funded (approx. £52K per annum) by Surrey
Police/OPCC. With current funding arrangements due to expire in April 2021 the OPCC,
through the Surrey Adults Matter Partnership, is engaging with commissioners in partner
agencies to seek sustainable long term funding for this service.
A new Substance Misuse Service has been developed with Surrey County Council
and the Criminal Justice System (CJS). The system and individual pressures as a result
of COVID 19 within the Criminal Justice System has resulted in an increased risk to
those residents who have found it difficult to confront their offending and drug and
alcohol misuse behaviour. They are a small cohort in the overall population who tend to
have difficulty in engagement with treatment, possess health risks including blood borne
virus infection and are susceptible to harm or death from overdose and repeat offending
resulting in custodial sentences.

Page 37

7

The drivers for this project include increased population as a result of early prison
release schemes and court delays due to Covid-19 and increased risks of drug misuse
deaths as drug markets re-open after lockdown.
The cost of this service is £112,871 for 12 months but funding will be sourced as follows:
o
o
o
o
o

7

OPCC Coronavirus Fund – £52,871
OPCC Reducing Reoffending Fund – £25,000
OPCC Community Safety Fund – £15,000
Surrey Police (S27 funds) – £10,000
National probation service - £10,000

The service will be delivered by two Substance Misuse/Nurse Specialists delivering a
greater intensity of care planned, structured interventions and targeting those (60
service users) who would have previously been unsuccessful in sustained engagement.
The package will be a collaborative approach between specialist teams in i-access,
Surrey Police and the National Probation Service (NPS).
There are also currently a number of new reducing reoffending fund projects that
have recently been supported by the OPCC. These include:






Guildford Action - project costs £4,760. Most of Guildford Action’s service users
are experiencing homelessness, temporary housing and a lifetime of custodial
sentences and substance misuse which in turn decreases secure housing
opportunities. Guildford Action will be assertive in picking up people upon release
to ensure a benefit application is made, get ID for registration with a GP, housing
register etc. and try to secure a benefit advance to reduce risk of offending early
on. Guildford Action will target initially all those who have just been released from
prison but the project will also be open to those who have been convicted or
received a custodial sentence within the past 12 months.
The Outside Link - Project Costs £5,000 - The learners consists of young people
aged 18-25 years who have been to prison and are looking at furthering their
career within the music industry or to gain music knowledge which can be used
in their future music roles. The course lasts six weeks, one day a week for three
hours. Due to the current pandemic learning is commencing online via Zoom.
Learners are set weekly tasks to complete and email their assignments over to
be assessed and to be provided with weekly feedback.
The Restorative Justice (RJ) Training Company - Project Costs £4,500. The
RJ training company will provide a Restorative Justice Intervention service for
cases referred to the Restorative Justice Hub that fall outside of current provision
delivered within Checkpoint (adults) and the Restorative Youth Intervention. The
director, Mike Ledwidge, has been delivering RJ interventions and training for
over 20 years.

Page 38

1.5

Making Every Pound Count

The headline actions to achieve this priority are set out in the plan as follows:






Preserving the front-line
Eliminate waste and inefficiency
Collaboration
Funding
Effective and efficient Criminal Justice System

A briefing note has been provided to the panel on workforce plans. Despite Covid-19
restrictions, Surrey Police is currently on track to meet the increase in front-line police
officers and police staff due to Government Uplift funding and precept increases. By the
end of March next year the force plans to have met the establishment of 2021 police
officers, 104 more than in March 2020.
Delays to the criminal justice system have been a key concern for the PCC during the
pandemic and the panel was updated on this matter at its last meeting. The PCC
continues to chair regular meetings of the Local Criminal Justice Board where this issue
is kept under review. A multi-agency gold group has now been called which will provide
a more ‘laser focus’ on addressing the delays and backlog in the courts. In Surrey, all
work in the Magistrates Court that was halted in lockdown has been re-listed and more
trial slots are opening up. In the Crown Courts, building works and a portacabin at
Guildford will enable the courts to be back to normal capacity in January 2021. However,
the backlog and consequent impact on victims and witnesses (and the services that
support them) cannot be underestimated.
The PCC has written this month to Her Majesty’s Courts and Tribunal Service and the
Ministry of Justice to ask for clarity on the future use of video technology for police
witnesses called to summary trials. ‘Live Links’ has the potential to save considerable
amounts of officer time by allowing police officers to remotely attend court and is
currently widely used in Surrey. However, there is a need for more certainty on the
technology used to support this facility to ensure it is properly operated and coordinated
for all participants.
1.6

A Force Fit for the Future

The headline actions to achieve this priority are set out in the plan as follows:





Estates strategy
Technology
Being an attractive employer
Ability to meet future demands

The Panel has received regular reports on the Building the Future Programme (BTF),
the main strand of which is the development of a new, modern, fit-for-purpose
Headquarters facility in Leatherhead.
Under the BTF programme, the PCC has also been considering a revised housing
strategy for Surrey Police. The strategy will look at how best to use the Force’s current

Page 39

7

property portfolio to both achieve best value through any disposals, but also to consider
how property could be used to improve officer recruitment and retention. This could
include the development of more affordable housing for rent, conversion of existing
dwellings to more suitable premises, or concentrating housing provision in those areas
of the county where there is most demand.
Surrey Police continues to make best use of technology, using Mobile Data Terminals
and completing a roll-out of Body Worn Video technology.
7

Recruitment events are taking place, including specific online events aimed at
attracting a more diverse group of recruits.
Workforce planning is underway for 2021/22. This will take into account current and
future demand and propose investment meet those demands.
1.7

Other Commitments in the Plan

In addition to the six priorities, a number of over-arching commitments are made within
the plan by the PCC: accountability; partnership; finance; equalities and diversity; and
the Strategic Policing Requirement. Partnership activity is detailed throughout this
report. Finance, Equality and Diversity and the Strategic Policing Requirement have all
been scrutiny topics in recent PCC Performance Meetings held with the Chief
Constable.
1.8

Performance Measures

There are no specific measures set out in the plan. Performance against the plan is
monitored in detail at the PCC’s performance meetings and webcasts for every other
meeting. The Force Performance Board also measures progress every month. For
continuity, attached is the scorecard used for the last two years to assess progress
against the plan (Appendix A). At the request of the panel, police recorded crime data
has also been included, with the addition this time of figures on High Harm crimes, as
requested by the panel (Appendix B).
RECOMMENDATION:
That the Police and Crime Panel notes the progress made against the Police and
Crime Plan 2018-2021.

LEAD/ CONTACT OFFICER:
TELEPHONE NUMBER:
E-MAIL:

Johanna Burne, Head of Performance
and Governance – OPCC
01483 630200
SurreyPCC@surrey.pnn.police.uk

Page 40

Appendix A: Police and Crime Plan Performance Measures
Measures (2016-2020 plan)
% of public from survey believing
that the police deal with antisocial behaviour and crimes that
matter in their area1
Positive Outcome Rate2 for
crimes against vulnerable people
(sexual offences, domestic
abuse, child abuse and hate
crime)
HMIC grade for protecting
vulnerable people
% of victims of crime surveyed3
satisfied with police service

Baseline
2015/16
78.7%

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

77.1%

71.6%

71.3%

26.5%

19.5%

17.5%

13.3%

2020/21 to
date
74%
(to June 2020)

13.2%

7
Inadequate

Good

Good

Good

Not yet
available
67.7%
(to July 2020)

NA

NA

NA

61.3%

Average time taken to answer
101 call 4
% people who feel confident in
neighbourhood police1

Not
available
91.2%

1 min 51
secs
89.6%

1 min 9 secs

1 min 14 secs

87.9%

88.1%

% residents who say they feel
safe walking alone after dark 1

87.9%

84.9%

85.0%

86.0%

86.0%
(to June 2020)

% of force budget spent on frontline policing5

71%

67.5%
(VFM Profile
2018)

65.8%
(VFM Profile
2019)

Not yet
available

Number of police officers on
front-line6

1677

69.9%
(VFM
Profile
2017)
1754

1741

1643

1661

For counter terrorism plans in
place and updated to satisfaction
of PCC

Not
applicable

PCC
content
with plans
in place

PCC
currently
content with
plans

PCC currently
content with
plans in place
– although still
kept under
review

PCC currently
content with
plans in place
– although still
kept under
review

2 mins 11 secs
(to Aug 2020)
89.3%
(to June 2020)

Source: Surrey’s Joint Neighbourhood Survey
A positive outcome is where a crime has resulted in a: charge/ summons, caution/ reprimand a penalty notice,
warning, a community resolution of been taken into consideration at court. The rate is the number of positive
outcomes in a period as a percentage of crimes recorded in that period (not necessarily relating to the same
crimes).
3
New survey methodology using text feedback was introduced in April 2019 so previous results are not
comparable and have been removed from the table.
4
Time to answer = time taken for a contact centre operator to speak to the caller. Changed from previous 60
second target to give a better overall measure of performance
5
Source- HMIC annual value for money statement. Front-line includes visible (patrol, response etc.) and nonvisible (call-handling, public protection investigators etc.)
6
Data taken from Home Office Police Workforce statistics and Home Office definition of front-line. Numbers are
Full-Time Equivalents. Front-line includes visible front-line and non-visible front-line posts.
1
2

Page 41

Appendix B: Crime Measures Requested by the Panel - Latest Data

Levels of Crime

7

2019/20
April to
Sept 2019

2020/21
April to
Sept 2020

Change

% change

Serious Sexual

894

804

-90

-10.1

Robbery

225

231

6

2.7

Domestic burglary

2139

1363

-776

-36.3

Vehicle crime

2807

2256

-551

-19.6

Violence with injury

3704

3503

-201

-5.4

6964

6665

-299

-4.3

38295

35318

-2977

-7.8

2019/20
April to
Sept 2019
45

2020/21
April to
Sept 2020
56

Change

11

2019/20 %
Outcome
rate*
5.0%

31

30

-1

13.8%

13.0%

Domestic burglary

119

82

-37

5.6%

6.0%

Vehicle crime

133

58

-75

4.7%

2.6%

Violence with injury

678

624

-54

18.3%

17.8%

917

855

12.9%

13.2%

5205

4816

13.6%

13.6%

High Harm (includes domestic
violence, sexual offences and
child abuse)7
Total notifiable offences8

Positive Outcomes

Serious Sexual
Robbery

High Harm (includes domestic
violence, sexual offences and
child abuse)
Total notifiable offences

-62
-389

2020/21 %
Outcome
rate*
7.0%

Added at the Panel’s request. This will include some offences already counted above e.g. sexual offences, some
of the violence offences (where domestic/ child abuse).
8
NB this is not a summary of the crimes detailed above but is the total of all offences required to be notified to the
Home Office.
7

Page 42

Item 8
SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
HMICFRS INSPECTION REPORTS
24 NOVEMBER 2020
SUMMARY
Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire and Rescue Services
(HMICFRS) is the independent inspection body for policing.
HMICFRS carries out the following types of inspections:







An annual inspection of all police forces with individual published reports.
This is known as PEEL – Police Effectiveness, Efficiency and Legitimacy.
Each of the three elements are graded. There are four possible grades:
inadequate, requires improvement, good, outstanding.
National thematic inspections – where a specific policing issue is inspected
using a sample of between 6 and all 43 forces, depending on the issue.
These issues are chosen either by HMICFRS or by the Home Secretary.
Joint inspections with other agencies, e.g. inspections on custody facilities
with HM Inspectorate of Prisons.
Commissioned inspections – A Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) or
the Home Secretary can commission HMICFRS to carry out a force-level
inspection on a particular topic.

As well as reporting on the inspections, HMICFRS also publishes data and
information. This includes annual Value for Money profiles.
HMICFRS reports do not link directly with performance data, although they may
take performance information into account during their inspections. They are
aimed at providing a qualitative assessment of policing activity.
The PCC’s role in inspections is to receive the reports and publish comments on
the recommendations made by HMICFRS. The PCC should then use the findings
to scrutinise the police force performance, particularly in areas which contribute to
the achievement of the Police and Crime Plan.
The Police and Crime Panel’s role is to ensure that the PCC is taking into account
inspection reports and the recommendations therein when holding the Chief
Constable to account.

Page 43

8

HMICFRS REPORTS FOR SURREY
Since the last report to the Panel in April 2019, the following reports relating to
Surrey Police have been published:


The annual PEEL (Police Effectiveness, Efficiency and Legitimacy)
inspections reported in September 2019

The PEEL inspections grade against the 3 areas overall and sub-categories within
each area. The grades received in the 2019 PEEL inspection, as well as the
previous year, are shown below:
8
Effectiveness overall
- Preventing crime
- Investigating crime
- Protecting vulnerable people
- Tackling serious and organised crime
Efficiency overall
- Meeting current demand and using
resources
- Planning for the future
Legitimacy Overall
- Fair treatment of the public
- Ethnic and lawful workforce
behaviour
- Fair treatment of the workforce

2019
Good
Outstanding
Good
Good
Good
Requires Improvement
Requires Improvement

2017
Good
Good
Good
Good
Good
Good
Good/ Requires
Improvement1

Requires Improvement
Good
Good
Good

Good
Good
Good
Good

Good

Requires
Improvement

In summarising the ‘efficiency’ rating of requires improvement, HMICFRS noted
that the Force has less understanding of the demand for its services than in
2017. The Force knows it needs to analyse data more effectively to understand
demand but tends to rely on professional judgement instead. HMICFRS noted
that in 2017, the Force hired more staff and that at the time of inspection,
workloads appeared manageable. However, staff sometimes felt that they didn’t
have sufficient resources to manage work properly. The report also noted that
the Force could be deemed inefficient because it avoid the risk of doing anything
wrong.
HMICFRS can make recommendations within their reports, including where a
good assessment has been made. These recommendations require a specific
response to HMICFRS from the PCC, having first sought comment from the Chief
Constable. In the reports covered above, no recommendations were made by
HMICFRS. The inspectorate can also identify Areas for Improvement. These are

1

Meeting current demand and using resources were separate questions in 2017

Page 44

up to forces to consider whether and how they will implement and don’t require a
specific response from the PCC. In the 2019 PEEL inspection, HMICFRS did
highlight some Areas for Improvement as follows:


















The force should review its processes for assessing risk in the control room.
This is to make sure risk is not being reassessed inappropriately, incidents are
not downgraded too early and opportunities to safeguard vulnerable victims are
not missed.
The force should improve how it monitors the allocation of crime to ensure
that DASH (Domestic Abuse, Stalking, Harassment) risk assessment
processes are used appropriately, and investigations are allocated to the
most appropriately trained officers.
The force should do further work to gain a better overview of current demand
for its services, including hidden demand. This is so it can make best use of its
resources to meet the needs of the public.
The force should ensure the way it prioritises and allocates demand takes full
account of the risks of inadvertently suppressing demand.
The force should ensure its aversion to risk is not constraining ideas and
creating unnecessary bureaucracy and internal demand.
The force should develop clearer longer-term plans which are shared with the
workforce and consider projected future demand, resourcing requirements and
changing public expectations. The force should use these plans to define
distinct priorities.
The force should develop financial plans to cover all future budgeting scenarios
and show how it intends to mitigate any reduction in service provision because
of a financial shortfall.
The force should undertake appropriate activities to understand fully its
workforce’s capacity and capability to identify any gaps in meeting future
requirements, put plans in place to address these, and carry these out.
The force should ensure that information and intelligence on its staff is used
more effectively, sharing appropriately to highlight corruption risks earlier.
The force should improve its workforce’s knowledge and understanding of the
abuse of position for a sexual purpose, and integrity policies involving business
interests and notifiable associations.
The force should ensure it has full information technology (IT) monitoring to
effectively protect the information contained within its systems.
The force should complete a review of its occupational health unit (OHU), to
streamline processes and ensure a consistent and timely service is provided
for staff.
The force should improve how it records and monitors its ‘Focus’ discussions
to ensure they are consistently applied across the force, and effectively capture
issues such as wellbeing and counter-corruption.
The force should ensure that it has a talent programme that is open to everyone
and consistently applied.

The Chief Constable and PCC responded to the inspection and actions have been
put in place to address each of the areas highlighted above.
The 2020 Peel Inspections have been delayed due to Covid-19.

Page 45

8

NATIONAL INSPECTION REPORTS
In addition to Surrey specific inspections, HMICFRS carries out national
inspections which cover policing. These may include recommendations which
PCCs are required to respond to, having first sought comment from the Chief
Constable. National inspections since the last report to the panel in April 2019
are:

8















Crime Against Older People
Selection and Development of Chief Officers
Abuse of Position for a Sexual Purpose
Cyber-dependent Crime
County Lines Drug Offending - Protecting Vulnerable who are both Victim
and Offender
Evidence Led Domestic Abuse Prosecutions
Child Sexual Abuse in the Family Environment
Child Protection
Integrated Offender Management
Counter-Terrorism Policing
Contact Management
Roads Policing
Police to Police Collaboration

All HMICFRS reports can be viewed on the HMIC website:
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmicfrs
FORCE MANAGEMENT STATEMENTS
From October 2017, HMICFRS have required Chief Constables to prepare and
give to HMICFRS a self-assessment, called the Force Management Statement
(FMS). HMICFRS consulted on the design of the FMSs and published a template
and guidance in March 2018. It is up to Chief Constables to publish the statements
as they see fit. Surrey Police has carried out two FMSs, the latest of which can be
viewed at:
https://www.surrey.police.uk/police-forces/surrey-police/areas/au/aboutus/priorities-and-direction/
PCC RESPONSE
The PCC responded to each of the above reports. The responses are on the
HMICFRS website as well as the PCC’s website and can be viewed here:
http://www.surrey-pcc.gov.uk/information/HMICFRS/.

Page 46

ACTION TAKEN BY THE PCC
The OPCC ensures that all HMICFRS reports and recommendations made are
monitored. All of these actions have been accepted by Surrey Police and are part
of an internal action plan, monitored at regular meetings by the Force at which the
OPCC has a representative and by the Joint Audit Committee. The OPCC has full
access to the force action plan.
COMPARISON WITH OTHER FORCES
The HMICFRS reports are not aimed at comparing forces with one another.
However, a table of PEEL reports and the grades for each force is published by
HMICFRS and can be viewed here:
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmicfrs/peel-assessments/peel-2018/
RECOMMENDATIONS
That members of the Police and Crime Panel note the report and HMICFRS
findings.
LEAD OFFICER:
TELEPHONE:
E-MAIL:

Johanna Burne, Head of Performance and
Governance – OPCC
01483 630 200
surreypcc@surrey.pnn.police.uk

Page 47

8

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 9
SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

HOME OFFICE REVIEW OF POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONERS
– PART ONE
24 NOVEMBER 2020

SUMMARY
In July, the Home Office announced that it would be undertaking a review of the
role of Police and Crime Commissioners (PCCs), the first such exercise since their
inception in 2012. The intention is to ‘sharpen accountability, scrutiny and
transparency’ and ensure that PCCs put the ‘law-abiding silent majority’ at the
centre of decision-making.
The review delivers on the Government’s manifesto commitment to consider how
to strengthen and expand the role of PCCs as well as looking to raise standards
and improve accountability. It will also revisit the Government’s ambition to
sharpen the governance of fire and rescue services. Additionally, it will look at how
PCCs will align with the Government’s aim to increase the numbers of elected
mayors with responsibility for policing. This was due to be detailed in the now
delayed English Devolution and Local Recovery: White Paper.
The review is in two parts. The first took place over the summer and has been
reported to Ministers (though not yet publicly) in October. The second stage will
take place following the elections in May 2021 and will focus on longer term reform,
including what additional powers PCCs may need to better fight crime.
The review will not consider scrapping the PCC model nor look at the existing 43
force structure.
The Home Office’s Terms of Reference for the first part of the review are attached
to this paper (Appendix A), as is the PCC’s full response (Appendix B).
The Committee Manager (SCC) has included Surrey Police and Crime Panel’s
response on the Home Office’s PCC Review: Part-one – Response to Local
Government Association’s (LGA) Key Research Questions (Appendix C), as well
as the LGA’s response – 17 September 2020 (Appendix D) and the National
Association of Police, Fire and Crime Panels’ – NAPFCP response (Appendix E).
RECOMMENDATIONS
To note the report and appendices.

Page 49

9

9

LEAD OFFICER:

Alison Bolton, Chief Executive – OPCC

TELEPHONE NUMBER:

01483 630 200

E-MAIL:

Alison.bolton@surrey.pnn.police.uk

LEAD OFFICER:

Amelia Christopher, Committee Manager,
Surrey County Council

TELEPHONE NUMBER:

020 8213 2838

E-MAIL:

amelia.christopher@surreycc.gov.uk

Page 50

Appendix A

Review into the role of Police and Crime Commissioners
Terms of Reference for part-one of the Review
Purpose
The purpose of the two-part review, as set out by the Minister for Crime and
Policing, is to consider how the role of Police and Crime Commissioners
(PCCs) can be sharpened and expanded in line with our overarching
ambitions in respect of Mayoral devolution.
Objectives
The totality of the review will consider how the PCC role has developed over
the past eight years and provide recommendations as to how the existing
model may be improved through a future reform programme, which also
ensures consistency with the Government’s mayoral devolution agenda.
9
Part-one of the Review will be an internal review considering the following:
• How to reinforce and sharpen the accountability of PCCs to the
communities they serve, including how to raise the profile of the PCC
model and improve the ease with which the public can access
information about their PCC.
• How to ensure that PCCs have sufficient resilience in the event that
they cannot undertake their role, by considering existing arrangements
for appointing Deputies.
• How to improve the current scrutiny model for PCCs, including the
provision of common quality standards and considering the role of
Panel chairs.
• How to share and embed best practice among PCCs.
• The effectiveness of the current PCC and Chief Constable oversight
dynamic, including consideration of the process for the
suspension/dismissal of Chief Constables and reviewing the Policing
Protocol.
• Whether any steps are needed to strengthen accountability or clarity of
roles within the Mayoral PCC model; reflecting the direction of travel for
mayoral devolution.
• How we set out our long-term ambition on fire governance reform
ahead of the May 2021 PCC elections.
Outputs
The review team will report on part-one by October 2020 which will inform the
Government’s priorities for pre-May 2021 PCC model reform. The report
should provide recommendations on improvements which could be made to
the PCC model, including any legislation which may be required to achieve
them. Any recommendations should be evidence-based and proportionate,
with consideration given to their possible implementation and impact on the
model.

Page 51

Scope
The review should consider the role of PCCs as set out in the Policing and
Social Responsibility Act 2011 and will not consider a wholly new governance
model for policing (mayoral PCC transfers aside) or territorial structures. The
review may consider interdependencies of the model with wider reforms to
law enforcement or public services where relevant, although any reforms
which cut across ambitions for the transfer of PCC functions to mayors will be
out of scope.

9

Governance
The review team will be accountable to the Head of Unit for Police Strategy
and Reform, who will report to the SRO (Policing Director) and provide
strategic oversight to the work programme. There will be strong working level
links to the Fire Strategy and Reform Team to ensure work complements the
fire reform programme. This element of the programme will be led by the
Head of Fire Strategy and Reform Unit and report to the Fire and Resilience
Director. The Review programme will be ultimately accountable to the Home
Secretary.
Timing
The final part-one report, including recommendations, must be submitted to
the Secretary of State by October 2020. This will allow Ministers to consider
the report’s recommendations ahead of the agreed package of reform being
brought to the National Policing Board, with a view to final cross-Government
agreement being in place so recommendations can be taken forward prior to
the pre-election period for PCC elections (end March 2021).
Methodology
A time-limited internal review with rapid evidence gathering (including public
polling/focus groups, consultation with key sector stakeholders and other
departments (plus a review of existing secondary sources) and development
of potential legislative options. The Review Team will also engage with the
Advisory Group throughout the review as recommendations are being
developed.
Stakeholder Engagement
We will engage a sample of citizens and local/national victims’ groups through
polling/focus groups, as appropriate, and stakeholders within the sector,
during part-one of the Review.

Page 52

Appendix B

PCC Review – Response for Surrey Police & Crime Commissioner’s Office
1. Transparency and Accountability
The PCC Review asks: How to reinforce and sharpen the accountability of PCCs to the
communities they serve, including how to raise the profile of the PCC model and improve the
ease with which the public can access information about their PCC. How effectively do PCCs
engage the public? How do we ensure the public can more easily hold their PCC to account at
the ballot box, for reducing crime and delivering an effective and efficient police force?
The PCC engages with local communities in a wide range of different ways, from regular in-person
meetings with local groups, through to the use of social media channels. In terms of contact through
the PCC’s office, we have received 1,050 enquiries via email and social media so far in 2020, with an
average of 128 enquiries per month in 2019. The PCC’s website receives an average of 2,225 visits per
month, with ‘contact’ and ‘transparency’ in the top three pages visited in 11 out of the past 12 months.
In terms of face-to-face engagement, the PCC has met with a raft of local groups, organisations and
individuals, often at their request in response to a particular local issue. But also we have held planned
events in order to give local people an opportunity to engage with the PCC, learn more about the work
of the PCC and Surrey Police and help shape and influence the local policing response.
With one individual, a small team of staff and a population of c1.2million residents, engaging
communities will always prove challenging and require innovative approaches to reach as many people
as possible in the most relevant way.
‘Policing your Community’ engagement events
In May 2019 and January-February 2020, the PCC held events in all 11 boroughs/districts of Surrey.
These provided residents with the opportunity to listen and engage with the PCC, senior officers and
their neighbourhood police teams.




Attended by 462 residents in 2020 and approx. 380 in 2019
Key themes: Burglary, road safety and officer numbers
Over 4000 impressions and 160 comments on social media

Annual Council Tax Survey – 8th January – 6th February 2020






Completed by over 3112 residents with approx. reach of 30,000 people (online)
1,700 comments read by PCC and analysed by OPCC staff in feedback report
Survey and results shared via local media, website and social media
Results used to inform level of precept set by PCC
Leaflet delivered to every household in nine out of 11 boroughs and on website to describe
how precept increase would be used

Local press and public enquiries
The PCC regularly communicates news items and engages with the local press and radio in Surrey. The
Office of the PCC (OPCC) also receives correspondence direct from residents, local councillors and
neighbourhood groups:



Featured 127 times in local media since September 2019, including 48 times since lockdown
Contacted by over 55O unique individuals (1026 enquiries) since April 2020
OFFICIAL

Page 53

9

CASE STUDY
“Following on from our Q & A with the Commissioner, we have now managed to arrange a group of local
residents to form a community speed watch.”
In August 2020, three virtual and socially distanced meetings were held to hear residents’ concerns around
anti-social behaviour, anti-social parking and speeding.
Friends of Merstham were one group that approached the PCC concerning speeding and parking issues in their
area. The PCC joined an hour long virtual meeting including local councillors. The group has now established a
direct contact with a local officer to encourage better reporting and response to the issues raised, that have
been noted by the patrol team. The PCC and Surrey Police also provided information and are now supporting
the group to establish a Community Speed Watch.

9
Attendance at the Force IAG meetings
The PCC has been a regular attendee at the Force’s Independent Advisory Group meetings and events,
which provide an opportunity to engage with a range of community representatives and hear their
views on policing in the county.
Surrey examples:






PCC’s website provides all information required in legislation, including a specific transparency
section. Information can also be found on our website around size of the office and its budget
PCC has been awarded COPAC’s transparency award every year since its inception
Commissioning of services is user-led, involving local experts to inform decision-making. The
PCC runs a dedicated funding hub showing how funding is allocated to local services and
organisations
Clear information on our website about the PCC and his role, including around complaints. A
senior appointment was recently made to manage the complaints review process to ensure a
robust, fair and proportionate response to members of the public
The Police and Crime Panel agenda includes the opportunity for members and the public to
put questions to the PCC

Some positive praise for what PCCs do from the Government would be helpful but it will be difficult in
some cases to sway public opinion. PCCs certainly have a higher profile than the previous authority
governance structure as there is a figurehead (often to point the blame at). But there is evidently still a
lack of public knowledge around what the role involves. The HO could make more effort in the run up
to the election to a) explain this to the public and highlight the positive contributions and b) encourage
people to vote. Incidentally, the PCC does not support the first-past-the-post model for PCC elections.
The obvious dilemma with raising the PCC profile locally is that while promoting on social media, local
media and community events/engagement etc has value, it is limited. To significantly broaden that
reach costs money (i.e. county wide mail shots, advertising) and it is difficult to justify spending public
money in this way when at the same time you are asking the public to put their hand in their pocket to
pay for policing.

OFFICIAL

Page 54

2. Resilience and the role of Deputy PCCs
The PCC Review asks: How to ensure that PCCs have sufficient resilience in the event that they
cannot undertake their role, by considering existing arrangements for appointing Deputies. Is
the current model resilient enough to hold up when things go wrong?
To what extent do you think the role of Deputy PCCs helped to provide resilience to PCCs over
the past 8 years? Can you provide examples / case studies of where this is the case?
Surrey has had experience of a PCC who appointed a Deputy and currently, a PCC without a Deputy.
It could be argued that having a deputy provides some resilience and does allow PCCs to divide up
their considerable workload. However, it requires clear lines of responsibility and ways of working to
ensure PCC and DPCC understand the boundaries of each other’s roles. There may be instances where
a Deputy is assigned responsibility for a particular area of business, but may wish to make different
decisions to the PCC himself. This can lead to confusion among police personnel (and even OPCC staff)
where they seek a decision or view from a Deputy PCC who does not have the delegated power to
make it. It is difficult to ‘remove’ a DPCC in the event that they have a difference of opinion to the
PCC because they are protected by employment law in spite of being politically appointed.
PCCs are already prone to accusations that they have excessive numbers of staff (even in areas such
as Surrey which has a small team). The appointment of a Deputy can be seen a costly, unnecessary
addition. Monies saved could be put towards policing, or provision of other services to the community.
We do not believe that the role of Deputy PCC should be made mandatory. Whilst some PCCs (those
in particularly large geographic areas for instance) may consider this necessary, others prefer not to
operate in this way.
Without a Deputy PCC, the PCC remains fully accountable to the electorate. Some members of the
public wish to deal only with the elected individual and not an appointed Deputy. As the Deputy PCC’s
role is the only one among the PCC’s staff that does not need to be appointed on merit and be
politically restricted, it can draw criticism of cronyism.
If the PCC’s staff team is properly resourced with the right skills and powers of delegation, resilience
should not be an issue for the majority of the time.
Current legislation that allows for a member of the PCC’s staff to take on the role of PCC seems bizarre.
In those areas without a Deputy PCC, a member of politically-restricted staff would find themselves
having to take on the role of PCC. If this was the Chief Executive or Chief Finance Officer, how would
those individuals then also discharge their statutory responsibilities as Monitoring Officer/Section 151
officer if required to do so?
An alternative may be for the Police & Crime Panel to appoint one of their number or someone else.
Although realistically, any such individual may be ill-equipped to take up the role at very short notice.
Otherwise, candidates could be required to nominate a deputy to appear on the ballot paper with
them so that this individual then had a mandate. However, this does not overcome other issues such
as cost.

OFFICIAL

Page 55

9

3. PCC Scrutiny and Accountability
The PCC Review asks: How to improve the current scrutiny model for PCCs, including the
provision of common quality standards and considering the role of Panel chairs.
In Surrey, the PCC holds regular scrutiny meetings with the Chief Constable and his senior staff. Every
other one (every 3 months) is webcast for public viewing and papers are published on the OPCC’s
website. The OPCC Tweets throughout the meeting and publicises the webcast. These meetings have
continued throughout the Covid pandemic and Skype meetings have been recorded and made
available for public view.
https://www.surrey-pcc.gov.uk/2020/05/pccs-performance-meeting-with-the-chief-constable-21stmay-2020/

9

The PCC’s office maintains a forward programme of work which allows the PCC to scrutinise progress
against the Police & Crime Plan and any other issues of interest that arise. This formal process has
worked well and allows the PCC to probe areas of concern in detail. It is supplemented by more
informal discussions with the Chief Constable as and when required.
The PCC in Surrey has taken an open approach with the Police & Crime Panel, preferring to share as
much information as possible with members, even where this may strictly-speaking, be outside of
their remit. This has helped to improve their understanding of policing in Surrey and generally
fostered a more positive and constructive working relationship.
Specific work carried out by the panel includes a Finance Sub-Group who meet in advance of precept
setting to go through the precept proposals in detail. The OPCC’s Chief Finance Officer attends this
meeting to provide explanation and detail as required. The Panel also holds an ‘informal’ meeting
each year. This meeting is aimed at providing background, training and more in-depth insight into
areas the panel have an interest in. The Chief Constable, PCC and OPCC Chief Executive attend that
meeting and the panel can ask any question, including operational questions, to aid their knowledge.
Topics covered at the last such meeting included roads policing, call handling, crime recording and
recruitment/training of officers and staff. In those areas where CCs have no involvement at all with
panels, there could be some benefit in requiring a CC to attend no more than once a year if the purpose
of this meeting was very clearly established at the outset.
All meetings with the Panel are webcast and we have robust processes in place to follow up on actions
to ensure continuous improvement.
In Surrey, the relationship between PCC and Panel has always been predominately positive – a
reasonable mix of constructive challenge and support. However, has sometimes been difficult to focus
the Panel’s attention on the role of the PCC, rather than the Force. A great deal of time is spent on
negotiating the content of papers – trying to make sure that the Panel direct their focus and attention
on scrutinising the PCC (with the exception of the one meeting a year where the CC attends). This is
difficult when many members are interested in the operational and some sometimes struggle to draw
the boundaries between their role and that of the PCC.
Panels depend heavily on the support they get from the lead authority. Where a good officer is in
place, panels run more smoothly, agendas are properly focused and members appear better inducted.
We have processes to ensure members are trained when they take up their roles. We have seen
considerable amounts of churn among members and some instances where particular members don’t
seem to attend.

OFFICIAL

Page 56

A standard national induction training package for members would be welcomed which focusses on
the role of the panel e.g. scrutinising decisions of the PCC, precept scrutiny, Chief Constable
confirmation, police and crime panel and annual report. It would be useful to cover limits of the
panel in terms of operational scrutiny and input.
Whilst it would not be desirable to have a large and unwieldy panel, it may be that panels could benefit
from a greater proportion of independent members who are recruited specifically for particular skills
they could bring.
If a power of recall was to be introduced, any trigger should be set at a very high threshold. The
incumbent should be allowed to stand again.

9

OFFICIAL

Page 57

4. PCCs and Chief Constables
The PCC Review asks: The effectiveness of the current PCC and Chief Constable oversight
dynamic, including consideration of the process for the suspension/dismissal of Chief Constables
and reviewing the Policing Protocol. Are PCC powers around the removal and appointment of
chief constables correctly calibrated? ii. Is the balance right in the PCC/CC relationship? And what
changes might be needed to the Policing Protocol?

9

The PCC has undertaken two recruitment processes for Chief Constables since the start of his term of
office in 2016. Both were rigorous, robust and followed the guidance set out by the College of Policing
which was clear on how any process should be open and transparent. Care was taken to ensure as
large a field of candidates as possible, but this has always proven challenging in Surrey for a number
of reasons. There would be merit in more work being done to help improve this situation at a national
level as for some areas such as Surrey, neither the PCC nor Police Authority/HMIC model of old has
helped to attract candidates in any significant number.
Of particular note was the PCC’s process to include the views of a range of partner organisations in
the selection process. Candidates engaged with colleagues from local authorities, other blue-light
services, community and charitable organisations and the views of these representatives were fed
into the PCC’s panel to inform his decision-making.

The sole power to fire a CC is too arbitrary and should be seen as a tool of last resort. Could it be
subject to assent by a higher authority (the Privy Council for example)? Although actual sackings have
been very rare, the threat of such behaviour has contributed to unnecessary apprehensions.
The PCC and CC for Surrey have signed a concordat, based on the principles set out in the Policing
Protocol, to define their working relationship. Ultimately, the PCC/CC relationships depends very
much on a mutual understanding and respect for each other’s roles. Where this is found, the right
balance in the relationship is much easier to achieve.
Relationships between the PCC and CC are so dependent on the personal dynamic. If they seriously
don’t get on then no statutory edicts are going to improve them.

OFFICIAL

Page 58

5. Mayoral Model
The PCC Review asks: Whether any steps are needed to strengthen accountability or clarity of
roles within the mayoral PCC model, learning from the transfer of PCC and Fire & Rescue Authority
(FRA) functions to mayors. This will lay the foundations for our longer-term ambition to increase
the number of mayors with responsibility for public safety, which will be outlined in the
forthcoming Local Recovery and Devolution White Paper.
The PCC would support the appointment of an elected leader with a broad portfolio across their area.
The responsibility and accountability for a wide-range of functions are then sat in the hands of one
person which could make working across policing and local government easier. Such an individual is
likely to have a higher profile in the community.
An elected mayor would be voted in on a wide-range of issues, rather than solely policing. This may
reduce the choice that electors have to shape policing policy on its own. Care would be needed to
ensure a Mayor could balance all the demands of their office. It would be helpful to ensure that PCCs
are involved at an early juncture in any discussions within their local areas to move towards a Mayoral
model so that policing is properly considered.

OFFICIAL

Page 59

9

6 Fire Governance
The PCC Review asks: How we set out our long-term ambition on fire governance reform ahead
of the May 2021 PCC elections:

In Surrey, when the legislation was passed to allow transfer of Fire Governance to PCCs, a full project
was carried out to look at the potential business case including benefits and challenges. It is fair to
say that the conclusion of this exercise did not result in a clear cut decision for Surrey, where current
governance sits within the County Council. There were potential benefits to be made in transferring
governance, including:



9




Governance more accountable to Surrey electorate with a PCC than the local authority model
with an appointed Cabinet lead
A clear remit for the PCC to improve joined up working between police and fire - particularly
on estates, call centres, community safety and the potential to respond to certain calls
More transparent precept dedicated to Fire and Rescue, rather than part of a wider County
Council budget
Some potential savings, but not large scale

However, there were considerable challenges for a transfer of governance to the PCC, including:





A lack of change capacity in both organisations to deliver such large scale transition
Diversion from Surrey Police’s other strategic programmes to deliver savings (e.g.
collaboration with Sussex Police and the region)
Complexity to move F&R out of the County Council - it is a fully integrated service with all
support services subsumed within the Council. Cost of service provision would have been
difficult to estimate and transfer
Disruption to F&R collaboration plans with West and Essex Sussex Fire brigades

The full report and reasons for the PCC’s decision can be read here:
https://www.surrey-pcc.gov.uk/2017/11/decision-log-0312017-fire-rescue-governance-decision/
https://www.surrey-pcc.gov.uk/2018/09/pcc-makes-final-decision-not-to-seek-change-ofgovernance-for-fire-and-rescue-service-in-surrey /

However, carrying out the project was found to have been of benefit. The PCC, Surrey County Council
(SCC) and Surrey F&R service all worked well together to determine the best governance model for
the service and the public. The OPCC gained a greater understanding of fire governance which has
helped in subsequent collaboration.

OFFICIAL

Page 60

7 Preparing for Part 2 of the Review
The PCC Review also asks: In helping us prepare for Part Two, we are also interested in
understanding if the levers currently available to PCCs are sufficient to allow them to cut crime
effectively in their force areas.
A General Power of Competence
There are a number of benefits to PCCs acquiring a General Power of Competence (GPC).
Firstly, PCCs have limited powers to enter into property transactions unless they can show there is a
direct policing purpose that justifies each specific transaction. For instance, PCCs can own and
maintain section houses for police officers to live in, but if the demand for said houses then falls, the
PCC cannot currently benefit directly from the commercial development of these properties for sale
or rent to the general public or commercial organisations. This means that to maximise the additional
capital or revenue funds that could be realised from the commercial development of these properties,
which would help fund policing budgets more generally, PCCs have to sell surplus properties to third
parties who will then exploit the benefits that can be realised from the re-development of those
property assets. With a GPC, PCCs could extract a greater amount of financial benefit from any police
property assets that become surplus in the future.
Secondly, PCCs are currently statutorily designated as best value authorities, which means that they
are under a duty to achieve best value in the arrangements that they put in place when conducting
their business transactions. This means that on some occasions. when collaboration with other public
sector bodies can produce an optimum solution to a particular problem but requires one party to
trade off some of the benefit to others to make the overall collaboration work and maximise the
obtainable benefit to all parties as a whole, schemes might fall because the individual parties could
not singly meet the best value test, notwithstanding that collectively an overall benefit could have
been achieved. A PCC General Power of Competence would allow sensible arrangements to be
entered into for the collective good, irrespective of parochial best value considerations.
Thirdly, allowing PCCs to have a General Power of Competence in line with that given to Local
Authorities by the Localism Act 2011, will give them an explicit freedom (with the exception of raising
taxes which requires specific parliamentary approval) to act in the best interest of their residents,
unhindered by the absence of specific legislation that is currently needed to support particular actions
that the PCCs might take. This should empower PCCs to undertake innovative activity to drive
efficiency and to be able to take measured risks that will result in a maximisation of the benefits in
policing that can be achieved for local residents and businesses
Criminal Justice Devolution
Much debate has been had over the devolution of further elements of the CJ system to PCCs, but
progress has been slow. At present, the main forum for the Surrey PCC to engage with CJ partners is
through the joint Surrey/Sussex Criminal Justice Board. Whilst this Board works reasonably well and
is attended by senior representatives from the CPS, Court Services, police and offender management
and victims’ organisations, it has few if any ‘teeth’. The board could be strengthened by measures
such as:
a. Budget contributions by representatives should be made compulsory, not voluntary as at
present. There would clearly have to be safeguards to ensure that contributions remained
reasonable. If possible, contributions should be for at least a three-year period.
b. PCCs should be statutorily accountable for performance of elements of the criminal justice
system to their Police and Crime Panels in the same way as their oversight of their police
force.
OFFICIAL

Page 61

9

c. Conversely, PCCs should have the equivalent powers that they already possess as regards
their police force for the performance of the partners at the Board: notably the CPS (for
its non-operational work), courts services and others.

August 2020

9

OFFICIAL

Page 62

Appendix C
Committee Manager: Amelia Christopher
Telephone: 020 8213 2838
Email: amelia.christopher@surreycc.gov.uk

Surrey Police and Crime Panel
Home Office PCC Review – Views on key issues:
•

Panel powers

PCPs do have a substantive remit to hold the elected Police and Crime
Commissioner to account and seek to work in a constructive manner with the postholder with a view to supporting the effective exercise of his/her functions; acting as
a critical friend. PCPs have important decision-making powers in that it can veto the
precept and the chief constable appointment. The PCC attends every panel meeting
in order to provide answers posed by the Panel and the public.
•

Complaints role

The only issue is in the Panel/Sub-Committee’s handling of those minor complaints
where Panel Members feel they should be able to ask for clarification on documents
submitted by the Complainant or the PCC prior to the Complaint adjudication
Meeting i.e. Sub-Committee.
There remains a question of the value provided by a Panel/Sub-Committee in
handling complaints with limited powers if it the case that they should be given an
investigatory role versus the role to informally resolve complaints with regard to
conduct failure via a number of actions i.e. letter of apology. However, in accordance
with the 2012 Regulations we concur that the Sub-Committee should not have an
investigatory role into complaints as bodies such as the IOPC (Independent Office
for Police Conduct) which investigates serious incidents and the Independent Police
Complaints Commission (IPCC) investigates criminal complaints or conduct matters
can provide professional and independent expertise; whilst the Sub-Committee has
the responsibility to informally resolve noncriminal complaints about the conduct of
the PCC/criminal complaints referred back from the IPCC.
•

Panel membership and churn

Often a regular turnover as a result of staggered local elections raises the challenge
of consistency and re-running induction sessions. Difficulties with attracting a large
pool of applicants to the roles of independent co-opted member when they stand
down.
•

Role of panel chair

Rules of procedure on the chairman’s role and support of the committee clerk is
provided.

Page 63

9

Committee Manager: Amelia Christopher
Telephone: 020 8213 2838
Email: amelia.christopher@surreycc.gov.uk

•

Experience of PCC scrutiny in the fire/mayoral context

N/A
•

Local Recovery and Devolution White Paper

How will the change of a county council to a possible unitary authority affect the
current panel arrangements i.e. one elected councillor from each borough and
district council, the sizing implication of a new PCP in a unitary authority and what
are the implications of the change on the upcoming 2021 local elections?
PCC Review: Part-one – Response to Local Government Association’s (LGA)
Key Research Questions (Annex A)
9
1. How to reinforce and sharpen the accountability of PCCs to the
communities they serve, including how to raise the profile of the PCC
model and improve the ease with which the public can access
information about their PCC.
i)

How effectively do PCCs engage the public?

Our current PCC is quite proficient/has staff in the OPCC who are, in social media
(Facebook/Twitter) and holding public events. Regular 'Policing Your Community'
Engagement Events are held in public by the PCC and now virtually due to Covid-19.
ii)

How do we ensure the public can more easily hold their PCC to
account at the ballot box, for reducing crime and delivering an
effective and efficient police force?

Reduce the political nomination power by giving each candidate sufficient grant to
sell themselves at an election or enable each to have a pre-election web page.
Need to raise public understanding of the role of the PCC in order to increase the
turnout at elections to ensure legitimacy and effective representation.
2. How can we ensure that PCCs have sufficient resilience in the event that
they cannot undertake their role, by considering existing arrangements
for appointing Deputies?
i)

Is the current model resilient enough to ensure to hold up when
things go wrong?

We believe that every PCC should have a Deputy. For example, in our case the
CEO (expected Deputy) went on maternity leave and was replaced by an Interim
CEO which meant that we would have been in trouble if COVID-19 or other issues
arose.

Page 64

Committee Manager: Amelia Christopher
Telephone: 020 8213 2838
Email: amelia.christopher@surreycc.gov.uk

3. How to improve the current scrutiny model for PCCs, including the
provision of common quality standards and considering the role of
Panel chairs.
i)

Are the right checks and balances in place to make PCC-led
accountability work?

The Police and Crime Panel (PCP) is elected except for two independent co-opted
members. Possibly have funds for part time scrutiny officer to investigate more
issues or concerns, to facilitate an in depth focus on scrutiny and panel member
training.
ii)

Do police and crime panels have the right skills, tools and powers to
hold PCCs to account?
9

As above plus could have wished for a larger pool of Independent members to
choose from where skills might have been fitted in – difficulty in attracting
candidates.
Recognise the invaluable role of the LGA and NAPFCP in aiding scrutiny and
providing training to panel members.

iii)

Should a system of recall be introduced for PCCs, and if so, what
should be the trigger mechanism?

Most likely yes but would need various milestones to be met - crime, scandal,
misconduct, ill health with right of Appeal to Home Secretary.
4. The effectiveness of the current PCC and Chief Constable oversight
dynamic, including consideration of the process for the
suspension/dismissal of Chief Constables and reviewing the Policing
Protocol.
i)

Are PCC powers around the removal and appointment of chief
constables correctly calibrated?

Power to remove is sufficient, need transparency and selective process to prevent
appointments where a single in-house applicant is below the mark for position. Also
other Force experience at Assistant or Deputy Chief Constable level should be
mandatory for a proposed Chief Constable.
ii)

Is the balance right in the PCC/CC relationship? And what changes
might be needed to the Policing Protocol?

Yes, as the Policing Protocol Order 2011 sets out to all Police and Crime
Commissioners, Chief Constables, Police and Crime Panels how their functions will
be exercised in relation to each other. Point 35 of the Protocol: “The PCC and Chief
Constable must work together to safeguard the principle of operational

Page 65

Committee Manager: Amelia Christopher
Telephone: 020 8213 2838
Email: amelia.christopher@surreycc.gov.uk

independence, while ensuring that the PCC is not fettered in fulfilling their statutory
role.”
It would be useful to focus on point 43 of the Protocol and any conclusions made by
the Home Secretary on the stated periodic review: “The Home Secretary has a duty
to issue the policing Protocol, to which all parties must have regard when
discharging their functions. This Protocol will be subject to periodic review, in
particular during the first term of office of the first PCCs.”
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2011/2744/made

9

5. Whether any steps are needed to strengthen accountability or clarity of
roles within the mayoral PCC model, learning from the transfer of PCC
and Fire & Rescue Authority (FRA) functions to mayors. (Local Recovery
and Devolution White Paper)
i)

ii)
iii)

What do you see as the strategic benefits of having a single, elected
and accountable leader, who is responsible for a range of public
safety functions?
What are the opportunities and issues with transferring PCC and FRA
functions to mayors?
What are the lessons learned to date from transferring PCC and FRA
functions to mayoral models?

A model in which a mayor is elected but then they can use an unelected politician in
the PCC/PFCC (FRA) role is suspect; so they should probably not have the final say
on appointment, removal or the Annual Crime Plan etc.
One accountable directly elected leader will have to make decisions on the range of
public safety functions, as opposed to a system with devolved powers and
knowledge of the specific position and its terms of reference.
6. How we set out our long-term ambition on fire governance reform ahead
of the May 2021 PCC elections.
i)

What are the benefits and challenges of the current model for
transferring fire governance to PCCs?

Benefits - cost saving, (single employer etc) value for money, public view on Fire
Plan ensuring accountability and transparency.
Challenge - strategic not operational; PFCC would need two experts, would reduce
the management of Police and affect crime plans.
ii)

How can we strengthen the accountability and transparency of fire
governance?

Use the HMICFRS/HMIP inspection and reporting system to improve service and
value for money.

Page 66

Committee Manager: Amelia Christopher
Telephone: 020 8213 2838
Email: amelia.christopher@surreycc.gov.uk

iii)

How can we strengthen and clarify the distinction between strategic
and operational planning in fire?

Fire experts could provide this, will need to consider the role of County Councils as
the fire authority with the transferral of powers to the new PFCC.
iv)

Could governance change help maximise collaboration between
policing and fire?

Would assist with the overlapping services - blue light, control rooms, major incident
planning and implementation.
v)

What are the benefits of having a range of services and strategic
planning under one elected individual?

The ability to integrate services, strategies and achieve value for money and
savings.
N.B:

Page 67

9

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix D

Review into the role of Police and Crime Commissioners (part one): LGA
response September 2020
Two terms after the model was introduced, there continue to be mixed views
among the Local Government Association’s membership about the merits and
value of the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) role. However, the LGA
welcomes the opportunity to contribute to this review of the PCC model,
particularly in light of both the delay to the 2020 elections and the
Government’s ambitions to broaden the PCC role.

1. About the Local Government Association (LGA)
1.1. The Local Government Association (LGA) is the national voice of local
government, and our members include councils and fire and rescue authorities,
including Police, Fire and Crime Commissioners. We work with our members to
support, promote and improve local government.
1.2. We are a politically-led, cross party organisation which works on behalf of
councils to ensure local government has a strong, credible voice with national
government. We aim to influence and set the political agenda on the issues that
matter to councils, so they are able to deliver local solutions to national problems.
2. Key messages
2.1. Two terms after the model was introduced, there continue to be mixed views
among the Local Government Association’s membership about the merits and value
of the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) role. However, the LGA welcomes the
opportunity to contribute to this review of the PCC model, particularly in light of both
the delay to the 2020 elections and the Government’s ambitions to broaden the PCC
role.
In this response, the term Police and Crime Commissioner should be read as
including PCCs and where appropriate Police, Fire and Crime Commissioners.
2.2. We agree that the focus should be on making sure that there are appropriate
and consistent checks and balances in place to ensure the effectiveness of the role.
Additionally, more work is needed to raise awareness of the PCC role, give the
public the tools to judge performance and by doing so ensure genuine democratic
accountability at the ballot box.
2.3. The PCC model beyond the core policing role should be flexible, reflecting that
what is right for one area may not be appropriate for others, depending on local
circumstances and other governance structures. We do not believe that there should
be forced mergers of fire and policing governance; transfers of fire governance
should only take place where there is local agreement (as in Essex and
Northamptonshire). Where there is no local agreement, if the Government still

Page 69

9

intends to proceed with contested business cases , we believe that the process
should include an assessment by an independent panel.
2.4. We would support the introduction of an inspection of governance as part of Her
Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire and Rescue Services (HMICFRS)
inspection regime, to provide a baseline for assessing the effectiveness of
governance within the fire sector.

9

2.5. Police and Crime Panels provide the key scrutiny and accountability mechanism
for PCCs outside of the four-yearly election cycle. There is therefore a need to
ensure that PCPs are properly supported to fulfil this function, in terms of recognition
of the importance of the panel’s role, ensuring they have the tools to fulfil it,
resourcing and wider support. Many councils are subsidising the work of their local
panel and, for those panels claiming the full amount of their grant, there should be an
increase in funding to enable councils to adequately run, support and train members
of PCPs, rather than subsidise this from other budgets. Any underspend in the
overall PCP grant budget should be used to fund activity to support the wider
network of PCPs.
2.6. Although panels have a wide remit of scrutiny, many remain concerned that they
do not have the tools to effectively hold their PCC to account, and that there is a
case for looking again at the tools available to panels in terms of their complaints
role.
2.7. However, the key determinant of a panel’s influence with the PCC is often the
nature of the relationship between the panel and the PCC, alongside the
receptiveness of the PCC to the role of the panel. The Home Office should consider
how training and membership requirements could be used to help strengthen the
work of panels, as well as ensuring that it consistently emphasises the importance of
the role of panels rather than downplaying it. The LGA would be pleased to discuss
options for strengthening the support provided to panels.
2.8. Looking ahead to part two of the review, there is a need to assess and clarify
how PCCs are expected to work alongside Community Safety Partnerships and
Violence Reduction Units, in an evolving and increasingly complex community safety
landscape, particularly given that forthcoming legislation (the Domestic Abuse and
Serious Violence Bills) will place a significant emphasis on CSPs, and with CSPs
reliant on PCCs for some of their funding.
2.9. As part of this assessment of community safety governance, we would welcome
further consideration of the balance of statutory responsibilities and expectation,
relative to the way in which funding for victim support is routed between councils and
PCCs in issues such as domestic abuse. We also urge the review to consider the
need to increase the transparency of commissioning/ de-commissioning by PCCs
and strengthen approaches to funding, with an emphasis on consistency and
longevity of services and sustainable multi-year funding streams. This will help
prevent duplication of efforts across different partners in the community safety space
while also helping to build resilience in the services delivered by local partners.

Page 70

3. Detailed response
3.1. We have set out below our responses to the key research questions for part one
of the review.
How to reinforce and sharpen the accountability of PCCs to the communities
they serve, including how to raise the profile of the PCC model and improve
the ease with which the public can access information about their PCC.


How effectively do PCCs engage the public?



How do we ensure the public can more easily hold their PCC to account at the
ballot box, for reducing crime and delivering an effective and efficient police
force?

3.2. The majority of PCPs report that their local PCCs have worked hard to try to
engage the public in their work through a variety of different approaches including
public meetings and Q&A sessions, engaging with the local media and extensive use
of social media such as Twitter and Facebook: PCC grant schemes were also felt to
be a good way to engage the public on the issues they are concerned about, with
community groups able to apply for grants to improve community or road safety.
However, despite PCCs’ clear remit in policing and efforts to ensure the visibility of
this role, it was felt that many people are only likely to engage with the role when
they have a specific interest in doing so.
3.3. While it is the public’s democratic right not to engage unless they wish to, low
voter turnout for PCC elections remains a concern. The Government should consider
the scope for national awareness raising efforts ahead of the rescheduled PCC
elections in 2021 to help promote a higher turnout and by extension greater
democratic legitimacy.
3.4. To support voters in making informed decisions at election time, consideration
could also be given to how to make standardised information about the performance
of the PCC and local police based on work by HMICRSA, as well as reports from
PCPs, more easily accessible to local residents.
How to ensure that PCCs have sufficient resilience in the event that they cannot
undertake their role, by considering existing arrangements for appointing Deputies.


Is the current model resilient enough to hold up when things go wrong?

3.5. Some concerns have been raised about the resilience of a PCC model in
comparison to an authority model, in the event that the PCC is incapacitated.
However, there are different views on whether all PCCs should be required to
appoint a deputy PCC. Some panels feel that this is desirable, or that a deputy PCC
could be elected alongside the PCC, while others feel that the current model works
satisfactorily. The LGA does not have a specific position on this issue.
How to improve the current scrutiny model for PCCs, including the provision of
common quality standards and considering the role of Panel chairs.

Page 71

9

9



Are the right checks and balances in place to make PCC-led accountability
work?



Do police and crime panels have the right skills, tools and powers to hold PCCs
to account?



Should a system of recall be introduced for PCCs, and if so, what should be the
trigger mechanism?

3.6. PCPs provide the main check and balance on PCCs during the course of the
four-year PCC term. In many areas, PCCs and PCPs have developed strong,
collaborative relationships, to the benefit of the work of the PCC and overall benefit
of local communities. However, in other places, there have been challenges, in part
relating to the lack of a shared understanding of the role of PCPs. The LGA has
previously received queries from members of staff in PCC offices questioning
whether a PCP is permitted to question the PCC on a particular issue, or require
them to attend a panel meeting, suggesting a lack of understanding of the breadth of
the PCP’s scrutiny role. The Home Office could do more to reflect and acknowledge
the important role of panels to help ensure there is consistent understanding of this
among all stakeholders. HMICFRS should consider how it could engage with panels
in carrying out its own work to assess policing governance (matters?).
3.7. Alongside this, there are steps that could be taken to help strengthen the work of
panels. The requirement for political balance, coupled with differing electoral cycles
in councils in panel areas, can lead to regular churn in panel membership, yet in any
field of scrutiny – whether local government, policing, or school governance –
experience helps to develop skills and competence. The Home Office should
consider whether there are options that can blend the need to secure political
balance over the duration of the PCC’s term of office while at the same time seeking
to reduce this churn.
3.8. Consideration could also be given to the development of tools such as
consistent training content, guidance and skills audits to help develop and extend
panel expertise. In relation to independent panel members, we would also support
panels having more flexibility in being able to co-opt additional members to respond
to any skills gaps, rather than having to seek Home Office approval to do so.
3.9. The handling of police complaints has changed in recent years, but a consistent
concern from panels has been that they do not have the tools to adequately manage
complaints made against the PCC . Although a Home Office review on this several
years ago committed to the development of guidance on complaints handling, this
has yet to be produced, and many panels continue to argue that the power to
investigate complaints would enable them to undertake their complaints function
more effectively.
3.10. Although the LGA itself commissioned updated guidance for PCPs in 2019,
which covered complaints handling, we urge the Home Office to work with panels to
consider how effectively the complaints process is working, and whether further,
specific guidance is still necessary.

Page 72

3.11. Although panels have a broad remit to scrutinise the work of the PCC, many
have highlighted the limitations in their powers to require PCCs to respond to a
panel’s concerns. The panel’s power of veto is a clear illustration of this, with panels
able to veto the PCC’s first proposed precept, or proposed appointment of a chief
constable, but then powerless to require changes beyond this, even, if in the case of
the precept, the PCC makes only minor changes. Some panels have therefore
suggested that the power or veto could be strengthened to include a second power
of veto, or requirement for majority panel support following an initial veto. The idea of
pre-scrutiny of major decisions by the PCC has also been proposed.
3.12. Since their inception, panels have consistently raised concerns that the funding
provided by the Home Office grant does not support the effective resourcing of
panels. While many councils have subsidised the work of panels, typically through
the provision of panel support officers, some have also not claimed their full grant
entitlement.
9
3.13. The LGA would support consideration of a grant increase for those panels that
are claiming their full grant entitlement. However, we also believe that there is a case
for using the underspend on the overall grant funding pot to support measures that
can be put in place to support all panels. The LGA’s sector led improvement model
could be utilised to support the development of consistent tools and approaches
across panels, and we would be happy to work with the Home Office to explore the
scope for work in this area.
3.14. The LGA supports the objective of ensuring the highest standards of integrity
and conduct among all elected officials and works with our member organisations
and councillors to promote conduct and leadership that is in line with the seven
principles of standards in public life. We believe that there is a strong case for taking
a consistent approach in how standards issues are managed across different types
of elected officials. There is therefore a rationale for applying the same model of
recall to Police and Crime Commissioners as currently applies to Members of
Parliament, based on the same set of triggers; however, any recall process for PCCs
would also need to reflect the role of PCPs in the existing suspension process. The
effectiveness of the current PCC and Chief Constable oversight dynamic, including
consideration of the process for the suspension/dismissal of Chief Constables and
reviewing the Policing Protocol.


Are PCC powers around the removal and appointment of chief constables
correctly calibrated?



Is the balance right in the PCC/CC relationship? And what changes might be
needed to the Policing Protocol?

3.15. The LGA does not have specific insight on these questions. Whether any steps
are needed to strengthen accountability or clarity of roles within the mayoral PCC
model, learning from the transfer of PCC and Fire & Rescue Authority (FRA)
functions to mayors. This will lay the foundations for our longer-term ambition to
increase the number of mayors with responsibility for public safety, which will be
outlined in the forthcoming Local Recovery and Devolution White Paper.

Page 73

9



What do you see as the strategic benefits of having a single, elected and
accountable leader, who is responsible for a range of public safety functions?



What are the opportunities and issues with transferring PCC and FRA functions
to mayors?



What are the lessons learned to date from transferring PCC and FRA functions
to mayoral models?

3.16. The LGA believes that the mayoral model should be implemented only where
there is local agreement to do so. Where the PCC/mayor role is joined up, there is a
need to ensure that a single elected representative has appropriate capacity to fulfil
their role, and that robust scrutiny mechanisms are maintained: some concerns have
been raised about the capacity of PCCs to undertake fire on top of their policing
remit, especially if it is expanded into new areas. How we set out our long-term
ambition on fire governance reform ahead of the May 2021 PCC elections.
What are the benefits and challenges of the current model for transferring fire
governance to PCCs?


How can we strengthen the accountability and transparency of fire governance?



How can we strengthen and clarify the distinction between strategic and
operational planning in fire?



Could governance change help maximise collaboration between policing and
fire?



What are the benefits of having a range of services and strategic planning under
one elected individual?

3.17. The LGA believes it should be for local areas to determine how they are
governed. Transfers of fire governance to PCCs should only be made where there is
local agreement to the transfer: we do not agree with mandatory transfers of
governance. It is right that there is an opportunity to challenge and discuss the
transfer of governance at a local level so that there is assurance that the community
will receive the service that is right for them and issues around coterminosity can be
considered from the outset.
3.18. By ensuring that there is local support for transfers, this will lead to better
partnership outcomes and joined up working across a local area. Local determination
also allows for consideration to be made of the other partnerships maintained by the
fire and rescue services, for instance with adult social care or ambulance services.
3.19. Where there is no local agreement and a PCC proceeds to submit a business
case to the Home Secretary for determination, there should be clear guidance for
how to evidence the tests of economy, efficiency, and effectiveness or public safety.
Once the business case has been submitted an independent panel should examine
the business case and consider the tests of economy, efficiency and effectiveness or

Page 74

public safety. The panel should include expertise in fire, policing, local government
and finance to look at the different elements of the business case. An independent
panel with expertise in a range of subjects would ensure that the decision on the
business case was robust and less open to challenge, as has been the case
previously.
3.20. The LGA has welcomed the reintroduction of inspection to provide scrutiny of
the role of the fire and rescue services and help to identify further activities to
strengthen services. A similar process could be introduced for fire and rescue
authorities including PFCCs to ensure greater transparency to local communities.
HMICFRS has started to work on the creation of a governance inspection, and we
would support this inspection process being rolled out across the fire sector. This
would provide a baseline for examining governance and could strengthen
transparency for the sector. Although they are not directly elected to the specific role,
FRAs are locally accountable politicians and therefore they are accountable through
the ballot box, in a similar way to PCCs.
3.21. The respective roles of chief fire officers and fire and rescue authorities are
clear. Fire and rescue authorities hold the legal responsibility for services, including
the assets and budgets as well as being the employer. Chief Fire Officers provide
their professional expertise to FRAs to ensure that FRA members can make
strategic decisions, and then implement these decisions in the day to day
management of the service, in a similar way to council Chief Executives. The LGA
and National Fire Chiefs Council are committed to working together on the principles
that underpin good decision making in the fire sector, highlighting the distinct roles of
both the professional and political leadership. We do not feel that further legislative
change is necessary but training would ensure that there is a clear understanding of
how the professional and political leadership work together to run the service.
3.22. Collaboration agreements were a part of the Policing and Crime Act 2017 that
introduced the ability for PCCs to take on fire governance. This provision means that
FRAs have to keep under consideration all opportunities for collaboration with other
blue light services. We understand that a variety of FRAs are already undertaking
joint work with the police, regardless of their governance. Examples include joint fire
and police stations and headquarters, joint community safety teams, tri-service
officers etc.
3.23. The fire and rescue service also collaborates with a wider range of partners as
well as the police. The recent tripartite agreements during the Covid-19 pandemic
show the broad range of work that fire and rescue services undertake at a local level
supporting a broad range of partners, including adult social care, the NHS and the
ambulance service. It is important that local areas are able to retain the flexibility to
enter into partnerships and collaborations that suit their local areas needs.
4. Other issues
4.1. Although part one of this review is primarily focused on accountability and
standards, we would like to highlight two issues which we believe should be a focus
in part two of the review. At the strategic level, the review should consider how the
links between PCCs and councils should be strengthened. Tackling reoffending does

Page 75

9

not happen in a vacuum and the relationship to services such as housing, education
and skills, mental health services is critical, but could be improved. Partnership
working
4.2. PCCs and Community Safety Partnerships (CSPs) both work on a wide range of
community safety issues; including domestic abuse, anti-social behaviour, modern
slavery, burglary, county lines, knife crime etc. 4.3. Since PCCs were created, there
has been an expectation that CSPs will work closely with their PCC in order to
identify local crime types and assess what resources/ actions are needed to address
these challenges locally. The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011
outlines that due regard should be paid to the others’ priorities in both PCC and CSP
plans and includes a duty to co-operate.

9

4.4. Ideally, both the PCC annual plan and CSP should be closely aligned, reflecting
the key trends/ priorities of the local area. It is important that PCCs work with existing
partners and structures when constructing their Police and Crime Plan, crime
reduction strategies or specific crime type strategies. Engagement and consultation
is key to ensuring consistency, effectiveness, and co-ordination. Where there are
existing plans that are fit for purpose, duplication should be avoided.
4.5. In recent years there has been an increasing shift in the focus of CSPs from
volume crime to assessing threat, harm and vulnerability. A renewed focus on CSPs,
either directly or as related partnerships, has been driven by a mix of central
Government priorities and local need around “new” key risks – for example counter
terrorism, serious and organised crime, serious violence, modern day slavery,
counter extremism, county lines, child sexual exploitation etc. There have also been
some changes in the wider partnership landscape i.e. Children’s Safeguarding
Boards
4.6. In 2019, the Government introduced Violence Reduction Units in 18 police force
areas. We understand that some VRUs are closely linked with the PCC and local
CSPs, but there is some disparity in areas and partnership working could be
stronger. 4.7. Through the introduction of the Serious Violence Strategy and during
the COVID-19 response, there have been various funding pots made available to
PCCs to bid into. There has been an emphasis on working closely with local CSPs
when submitting a bid, but this does not happen consistently; the Home Office
should reinforce the need for jointly supported local bids.
4.8. In this complex and sometimes crowded landscape, there is a need for clarity on
how PCCs, CSPs and VRUs are expected to work together, given the overlapping,
but diverse range of community safety issues they cover and the varied funding
streams available to different partners. The need for guidance on this to support
better alignment by VRUs with existing statutory functions and partnerships was also
highlighted in the Home Office’s recent evaluation of VRUs. With forthcoming
legislation expected to amend the role and remit of Community Safety Partnerships
in the future, it will be important for PCCs and relevant partnerships to have clearly
defined roles and ways of working. There should be an emphasis on strong
partnership working and joint decision-making as the default position, including in
relation to funding bids.

Page 76

Funding and commissioning
4.9. Following the enactment of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act
2011, Government funding of Community Safety Partnerships was moved across to
PCCs. This has resulted in a varying picture nationally, with the cessation of grants
to many CSPs. From 2014, the majority of support services for victims provided at a
local level went via PCC budgets rather than CSPs.
4.10. The PCC therefore has a valuable role as the local victims champion, providing
grant funding to key areas of crime and disorder reduction. To do this effectively, it is
important that PCCs and their offices work closely with local community safety
partners to agree shared priorities, collaborative ways of working, and ensure that
funding is routed to address local crime issues in a way that builds resilience across
local services and partners.
4.11. We have some concern that in areas such as domestic abuse, there is a
mismatch between the statutory responsibilities which are placed on councils and
the fact that funding to support domestic abuse services is typically being routed
through Police and Crime Commissioners. As noted above, the level of partnership
input to PCC bids for funding is variable, and the Home Office should ensure that
funding opportunities are aligned with where new responsibilities are being created.
The review could also consider funding for victims of modern slavery, who may often
need support that does not fit neatly within existing council services (or eligibility).
4.12. The introduction of Violence Reduction Units has created an additional vehicle
for commissioning services, that (in some areas) sits wholly separate to the
Community Safety Partnerships work. It would be useful for all commissioning / decommissioning of relevant community safety services to be discussed between
partners. Consideration could be given to a requirement for PCCs to undertake a
needs assessment to help frame the approach to commissioning / decommissioning
and grant decisions across their term of office. This would help support consistent
and transparent commissioning processes and procedures and provide clarity for
local partners.
4.13. The review should consider how a more consistent commitment to the
provision of longer-term funding of specialist services can be embedded across
PCCs, rather than short term ‘quick win’ style funding of 12 months. While some
PCCs are very open to providing two to three years of funding, others continue to
fund for six-twelve months.
4.14. This can be problematic because short term funding can undermine the
resilience and effectiveness of services which need to build trust and relationships
with those who are vulnerable and make sustained changes to support a victim’s
journey and to build partnership working. Longer term funding commitments would
facilitate producing three-year strategies for issues such as domestic abuse,
providing much needed stability particularly regarding staffing and commissioning
arrangements. The Home Office should also continue how its own funding
opportunities can support a longer term approach to developing services.

Page 77

9

4.15. It should also be best practice to share evidence and evaluations of the
outcomes and results of commissioned or grant funded services by the PCC, with
existing partnerships and the Police and Crime Panel.
Contact Ellie Greenwood Senior Adviser (Community Safety)
Mobile: 07795 413660
Email: ellie.greenwood@local.gov.uk

https://www.local.gov.uk/review-role-police-and-crime-commissioners-part-one-lgaresponse-september-2020
17 September 2020
9

Page 78

Appendix E

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF POLICE, FIRE AND CRIME PANELS

Essex Police, Fire and Crime Panel
Essex County Council
Chelmsford
Essex
1 September 2020
Ms Rachel Watson – Policing Director,
Home Office
2 Marsham Street, Westminster
London, SW1P 4DF
9

Dear Ms Watson,
NAPFCP Response to the review of the Police and Crime Commissioner
Model – Part 1
The National Association of Police, Fire and Crime Panels welcomes the
Home Office review of Police and Crime Commissioners (PCCs) in England
and Wales. After several years of Commissioners being in place the model
has in the main worked efficiently and to the benefit of the public in terms
of accountability and value for money within Policing and, where
applicable, the Fire and Rescue service.
As can be expected there are areas that would benefit from efficiency and
efficacy improvement by mirroring the good practice developed and refined
by the many diverse and capable Commissioners over the last eight years.
Police and Crime Panels have played a vital role in scrutinising the decisions
made by Commissioners on behalf of the public, holding each Commissioner
to account through appropriate challenge and support disciplines.
Since the first PCC elections took place the Home Office has adopted a
“light touch approach” to the manner in which PCCs were able to carry out
their duties and role. Whilst potentially risky, this approach has had the
desired effect of helping the very capable PCCs to successfully develop their
role in a transparent and public facing way. A light touch approach was
also extended to Police and Crime Panels which has allowed panels the
opportunity to develop working partnerships and initiatives allowing them
to operate as a “critical friend” and support function as part of their duties
in scrutinising PCCs’ decisions.
The transition of Police and Crime Commissioners to Police, Fire and Crime
Commissioners has been equally successful, with Panels readily adapting
their approach to challenge and support to include the additional Fire and
Rescue scrutiny requirements at little additional cost overhead. The
NAPFCP believes successful partnership working has been possible through

NAPFCP Democratic Services Manager – Emma Tombs - T - 03330322709 emma.tombs@essex.gov.uk
postal address - Essex County Council, County Hall, Market Road, Chelmsford, CM1 1QH
NAPFCP Chairman - John Gili-Ross - 07957804621 e-mail - chair.NAPFCP@gmail.com

Page 79

Commissioners, Panels, Policing and Fire and Rescue organisations working
towards a common objective of making local communities safer for all.
As stated previously there is always room for improvement. The NAPFCP has
used the knowledge gained over the years in working with and consulting
Police, Fire and Crime Panels in England and Wales to identify significant
improvement initiatives for the Home Office to consider and implement.
Our primary objective in responding to this review is to highlight areas that
are in the main working well, areas that would benefit from improvement,
and to highlight areas where Commissioners appear reluctant to adopt good
practice sometimes to the detriment of the public they represent.

9

This review response has been compiled with input from the NAPFCP
Executive Committee through cross party and Independent non-political
membership. The review reflects learning experiences gained from diverse
Panels across England and Wales including direct experience provided by
Chairs, Vice Chairs, elected and co-opted panel members.
The Home Office decision to exclude Panel representation on the PCC
Review Part 1 Advisory Group is both disappointing and illogical,
particularly with PCC public scrutiny responsibility being a primary panel
remit. I suggest there would be significant benefit should the Home Office
reconsider this decision.

Yours sincerely,

John Gili-Ross
Chairman - National Association of Police, Fire and Crime Panels
07957804621

Page
2 80

Annex A Review into the role of Police and Crime Commissioners
Part One – Key Research Questions
1) How to reinforce and sharpen the accountability of PCCs to the communities
they serve, including how to raise the profile of the PCC model and improve the
ease with which the public can access information about their PCC.
Experience suggests the majority of the public are still uncertain as to the PCCs’
role and responsibilities within policing. In the main the public believe that
policing is the sole responsibility of Chief Constables who are perceived as having
many more public order priorities than the matters which impact the general
public. This perception is changing in some areas where PCCs have been willing
to make themselves accessible to the public at planned local level open events
or to targeted Unitary, Borough, District, Town or Parish Council audiences. One
of the most effective audiences used by PCCs is the Parish and Town Council
sector (PTC) where PCCs have exploited the direct communication links to the
public via local newsletters, community websites and social media channels.
Individual PTCs combine to make up a County Association of Local Councils
(CALC) which amongst other things centrally co-ordinate and distribute news
items to the various PTC members. Naturally for largely urban communities not
served by the PTC sector there is little central coordination for a PCC to use to
promote a successful profile in community safety.
The profile of a PCC has been enhanced within the community served when they
have implemented and remain actively engaged in community-based initiatives
such as Rural Crime Forums, Farm Watch, Community Speed, Neighbourhood and
Business Watch schemes.
Where PCCs have implemented community grant schemes this has greatly
assisted in reaching members of the public that in the past have felt largely
ignored. Grant disbursement to deserving community safety causes has provided
the public with an awareness of the benefits provided by having a successful and
highly influential elected Commissioner.
The public needs to see evidence that Community Safety Partnerships (CSPs) are
delivering against the strategic objectives set in the Police and Crime Plan and
not at the potential expense of delivering local CSP “pet projects”. The Home
Office used to fund CSPs but the allocation of funding has quite rightly moved to
PCC funding determination. It should be reasonable for a PCC to review each
CSP within the policing region, in terms of working practices, organisational
structure and the value for money benefits they provide to local tax payers. PCCs
are ideally placed to carry out annual CSP reviews to include operating model
fulfilment and processes that match county priorities.
CSPs should be
accountable to the public and their decisions made in a transparent manner.

Page
3 81

9

Commissioners need to demonstrate their Police and Crime Plans are intelligence
led and that police resources are assigned on a “needs” basis.
PCCs must ensure that grant funding is allocated to fulfil public benefit needs
with clearly demonstrable outcomes being set out at the application stage.
Social Return of Investment models need to be used to evaluate outcomes and
prevention and intervention services. If these principles are applied the public
may more easily identify with the significance of PCCs.
2) How effectively do PCCs engage the public?

9

Successful PCCs use the engagement methods described above. Most PCC
websites, social media outlets and newsletters are public facing, reasonably easy
to read and informative with respect to non-operational policing activities. This
extends to Fire and Rescue governance activities where applicable.
Most PCC websites include an invitation to visitors to sign up to receive
newsletters and / or social media channels.
Public information and question and answer sessions arranged my PCCs are
commonplace which have traditionally been well attended. Following the Covid19 outbreak many of these sessions have been moved to remote platforms,
however there is evidence that some PCCs appeared reluctant to make use of
remote platforms often citing concerns about non-secure technology. Some PCCs
also appear to have concerns about how they may appear from a presentational
perspective and the loss of control that may arise from such sessions being
recorded by attendees.
How do we ensure the public can more easily hold their PCC to account at the
ballot box, for reducing crime and delivering an effective and efficient police
force?
Under the present electoral system holding the PCC to account at the ballot box
can be a challenge and could vary tremendously between counties. Party
political dominance within a county will normally determine the candidate that
is elected and the public are unlikely to get a true picture of the candidate’s
potential to fill such a senior and influential role.
Assuming this question relates to a PCC who is seeking a further term, the
solution may be somewhat clearer. By election time the PCC will have had at
least 4 years in which to demonstrate their success in decision making and the
actions taken in regard to crime reduction and the delivery of effective police
force. At the beginning of their term PCCs create a Police and Crime Plan agreed
by the Chief Constable and approved by the PCP. The PCC is mandated to
produce an annual report for the public, to demonstrate progress made or
otherwise in policing. It is essential that annual reports are written as public
facing documents and one PCP objective when approving the annual report
should be to confirm its legitimacy and has been written for ease of public
digestion.

Page
4 82

There is evidence of public concern with the manner in which some PCCs have
appointed a deputy. Where a deputy is appointed the position should be subject
to a full and transparent selection process. This should be free of any partypolitical influence. There are examples of PCCs employing a transparent
selection process for their deputy and the Home Office should consider these
examples if seeking to mandate a process based on best practice.
To enhance the public awareness of the PCC role generally and in particular at
election times, the Government should fund a PCC information programme that
encourages the public to engage fully with the PCC election process. This should
in particular highlight that PCCs can be either independent or party-political
nominees.
3) How to ensure that PCCs have sufficient resilience in the event that they cannot
undertake their role, by considering existing arrangements for appointing
Deputies.
Is the current model resilient enough to hold up when things go wrong?
From the results of the NAPFCP survey of PCPs in May 2020, legitimate concerns
were expressed when a deputy PCC has not been appointed. The COVID-19
pandemic has highlighted the importance of having appropriate resilience in
place should the PCC or their OPCC staff be impacted. Appointing an identified
deputy through a transparent and independent process should be made
mandatory. The public would expect the appointment process used to select a
deputy to have a professional and independent selection panel.
4) How to improve the current scrutiny model for PCCs, including the provision of
common quality standards and considering the role of Panel chairs.
The perception amongst many Panels and their members is their work does not
appear to be valued by Government and in particular the Home Office. This
situation is not improved by the reluctance of the Home Office to include
PCP/PFCP representation on the PCC Review Advisory Group either through the
NAPFCP or by appointing individual Panel members.
Improving the PCC scrutiny model requires the appointment of Panel members
who are committed to providing professional, appropriate and transparent PCC
scrutiny. Such attributes may not always be apparent for Local Authorities
appointed Panel members who generally are appointed solely to represent the
interests of their specific Local Authority. Local Authority appointed Panel
members should have a term of appointment to maintain continuity, in effect
going some way to matching the term conditions set for co-opted members.
Naturally any such term of appointment for Local Authority members would be
subject to election changes, retirement or resignation conditions.
Since 2012, Panels have successfully scrutinised PCCs multi-million-pound
budgets together with the decisions made by the PCC on how budgets are used
to provide the public with effective and value for money policing. Panels should
have earned the Governments respect and trust to spend the Home Office grant
wisely and appropriately in the execution of their duties. Panels differ in the

Page
5 83

9

manner in which they operate to meet their scrutiny function and providing they
operate within set budgets; they should be permitted to use their grant for
purposes they believe maximises effectiveness and efficiency.
Panel members should be entitled to receive an appropriate allowance plus
expenses. The current maximum allowance set by the Home Office of £920.00
per annum is somewhat derisory and to some panel members is rightly or wrongly
an indicator of the value the Home Office places on quality PCC scrutiny. If
Panels are permitted to operate within the constraints of the Home Office grant,
then individual Panels can decide if an allowance should be paid and at what
amount.

9

Many Panel Chairs expend a great deal of time and effort on Panel activities, and
payment of an appropriate Chairs allowance is variable across the country, with
many not receiving one at all. This situation is further compounded where a
Panel Chair is a co-opted member where currently the maximum allowance
remains the same as any other Panel member in spite of often providing the
Panel with additional essential skills and capability.
Panels should be permitted to use part of their Home Office grant to support the
NAPFCP as an effective cross sector learning organisation. The Home Office has
quoted specific parts of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011
prevent the use of the grant for purposes outside of the policing area which
includes paying membership subscriptions the NAPFCP. Most Panels are
completely reliant on the Home Office grant to function.
Consequently, the NAPFCP has to operate on a self-help basis driven by an
Executive Committee to identify and promote best practice within Panels. An
indicator of Panel benefits provided through the NAPFCP functions and work
programmes include;
•
•
•
•
•

•

Responding to consultation documents such as this review as well as the
Police Foundation Policing Review,
Producing regular Key Lines of Enquiry questions to help PCPs challenge
their PCC in current matters.
Encouraging Panel members to undergo appropriate sector training
programmes currently organised through third party training partners.
Providing significant input to the LGA Policing and Fire Governance for
Police and Crime Panels to help maintain an accurate and balanced
guide that highlights good practice within the sector.
Carrying out Panel surveys and producing outcome reports which are
shared with all Panels, the Home Office and LGA. A survey is currently
underway to determine the perceived effectiveness of the complaints
process for PCCs and deputies as well as the new police complaints
process implemented by PCCs at the start of 2020.
Advising Panels – Chairs, deputies and support officers on best practice,
good PCC relationship building strategies, co-opted member
recruitment and how to maximise the number of quality applicants.

Page
6 84

•
•

Reviewing technology changes and their potential impact on PCC
budgets
Public promotion of a Panel’s role within policing and fire and rescue.

Are the right checks and balances in place to make PCC-led accountability
work?
The recent NAPFCP Panel survey asked Panels whether they possessed sufficient
or appropriate powers to carry out effective PCC scrutiny. The results as
measured suggests a 50:50 split of opinion by Panels. Where Panels had indicated
they felt more powers were needed the following direct and indirect powers
were cited as being potentially beneficial.
•

•
•
•
•

•

•

•

PCCs should be required to carry out an independent and transparent
deputy PCC selection process providing Panels with assurance during the
confirmation process that the successful candidate was the best match
for the position.
A deputy should be appointed within 6 months of the PCC taking office
or following resignation or retirement of a deputy.
Provide meaningful powers for Panels to veto a Deputy PCC appointment
or require their resignation or dismissal.
Panel Chairs or their designate should be a member of the selection panel
for a PCC deputy, CEO and chief finance officer of the OPCC, Chief
Constable, Chief Fire Officer (where applicable)
An independent and transparent process should be required for Chief
Constable and Deputy CC positions. PCCs should be given powers to
determine the composition of the selection panel. The average CC
appointment period is currently less than 5 years and it should not follow
that a DCC will be the prime candidate for the Chief Constable position.
The confirmation hearing for a Chief Constable is currently subject to an
initial veto by a Panel with Panels having no involvement prior to this
point, yet rejection of a candidate at a confirmation hearing is likely to
have a significant impact on their future career prospects. PCCs should
not be permitted to publicise the preferred candidate’s identity prior to
a confirmation hearing.
PCP has veto powers for the precept proposed but nothing substantial
beyond this. A PCC can make small changes that materially do not affect
the proposed precept and when submitted the PCP has no further power
of rejection. Successful PCCs encourage early engagement of PCP
members in the budget setting process and this should be strongly
encouraged by a PCC if not formally mandated.
Where a PCC proposes termination of a Chief Constable, the PCP, via the
Chair or their designate, should be engaged at the outset of the planned
termination process and in particular before any public announcement.

Do police and crime panels have the right skills, tools and powers to hold the
PCCs to account?

Page
7 85

9

PCPs have the ability to appoint more than the specified minimum of two
independent members to provide the right skills, tools and experience to hold
the PCC to account. Panels tend to regard the specified minimum as a maximum
number possibly to keep the overall panel membership to a manageable size.
Some Panel members seldom contribute to the PCC scrutiny or engage with other
work undertaken by the Panel. The appointment of elected members to a Panel
currently does not necessarily take into consideration members having
appropriate skills, willingness or enthusiasm to be an active and effective Panel
member and the current allowance scheme adds little to promote Panel member
engagement. Panel members appointed by local authorities are not subject to
defined term limits as apply to independent members. This point has been raised
earlier. This raises the question of potential discrimination between elected and
Independent (co-opted) panel members.
9

Where appropriate Fire and Rescue related skills can be added to the Panel
through the appointment of additional independent members if believed
necessary.
Should a system of recall be introduced for PCCs and if so, what should be the
trigger mechanism?
It is difficult to envisage how a suitable system of recall for a PCC could operate
unless a similar arrangement is implemented to that provided for an MP within
the Recall of MPs Act 2015.
How to share and embed best practice among PCCs.
Sharing of best practice between PCCs should fall within the remit of the
Association of Police and Crime Commissioners (APCC), who are the organisation
established and funded by PCCs for this very purpose as well as other vital
advisory functions that will benefit PCCs and DPCCs in their work. With an
effective and suitably funded APCC, best practice learning and experiences are
made available without further government financial support.
The APCC financial model works in that PCCs determine the value for money
provided by being subscribers and where the value to a PCC is not apparent then
they can lapse membership.
5) The effectiveness of the current PCC and Chief Constable oversight dynamic,
including consideration of the process for the suspension/dismissal of Chief
Constables and reviewing the Policing Protocol.
Are PCC powers around the removal and appointment of chief constables
correctly calibrated?
Transparency during the appointment process of both the CC and their deputy is
essential if public confidence is to be maintained. This should also apply to the
appointment of a Chief Fire Officer and their Deputy where relevant.

Page
8 86

The PCC should be made fully accountable to the public for the selection and
appointment process. It would be reasonable to expect the interview selection
panel to be made up of independent members as well as members with a policing
or fire and rescue background.
The current process of suspension / dismissal of the Chief Constable or Chief Fire
Officer appears adequate providing there is an understanding that prior to formal
suspension or removal process has begun the PCP Chairman (or their designate)
has been briefed on the planned actions by the PCC in this matter as they fulfil
a key stakeholder position.
Is the balance right in the PCC/CC relationship? And what changes might be
needed to the Policing Protocol?
PCCs hold Corporation Sole Powers including that of holding the Chief Constable
to account and to hire or dismiss them from their role. PCCs provide the public
with a direct say in policing within their area and are accountable to the public
through the ballot box. Police and Crime Plans are drawn up by the PCC and are
operationally agreed with a CC prior to plans being approved by the Police and
Crime Panel. These aspects alone provide a sound platform to engender a
balanced relationship between the PCC and CC providing each fully understands
the extent of their statutory remit.
Training for policing and fire and rescue senior roles must include significant
elements aimed at promoting good practice and PCC relationship development
at a professional level. The training methods currently employed do not appear
to acknowledge the importance of relationship working at a senior level.
The NAPFCP believes that across the UK and Wales, there is appropriate balance
in PCC/CC relationships and that in general suitable remedies are available to
rectify any imbalance where necessary. Where there is a disagreement in
respect of the operational activities that are in place to support the Police and
Crime Plan the CC may rely on citing that operational matters are at their sole
discretion in order to hold sway. In such cases the PCC must be able to insist on
an operational review process requiring the CC to be duty bound to provide
adequate and appropriate resource and records.
The Police and Crime Act 2017 introduced significant changes to the handling of
police complaints and the discipline system. Although changes through the Act
came into effect in late 2018, it was not until the end of 2019 that many policing
areas had a fully functioning system under the control of a PCC. The NAPFCP are
not aware of any significant issues created by the revised process or with regard
to the option chosen to be implemented by a PCC. The NAPFCP has begun to
consult with Panels as to the methods employed by PCCs and the real or
perceived effectiveness as measured by public satisfaction. Outcomes from this
consultation are expected to be available by December 2020.
6) Whether any steps are needed to strengthen accountability or clarity of roles
within the Mayoral PCC model; learning from the transfer of PCC and Fire &
Rescue Authority (FRA) functions to mayors. This will lay the foundations for our

Page
9 87

9

longer-term ambition to increase the number of mayors with responsibility for
public safety, which will be outlined in the forthcoming Local Recovery and
Devolution White Paper.
What do you see as the strategic benefits of having a single, elected and
accountable leader, who is responsible for a range of public safety functions?

9

The introduction of Commissioners with responsibility for policing and latterly
fire and rescue services has been significant and has been regarded as a much
needed and positive change from previous arrangements through Police and or
Fire Authorities. In general Commissioners provide the public with stable finance
and governance accountability in policing matters and FRS where this is within
their remit. A benefit evidenced in Essex when governance of Fire and Rescue
services moved to the Commissioner. In particular significant cultural change in
work force capability and flexibility was made possible in a relatively short
period of time.
Few could doubt the success created by moving fire and rescue governance under
a capable Commissioner through changes achieved in a short period of time.
Prior to PCC engagement the public held deep rooted respect and confidence in
the FRS, this confidence and support having continued in spite of significant
service transformation of internal working practices being implemented.
Commissioners are required to produce a business case for Home Office approval
to justify the benefits of transferring FRS governance under their control. The
reduction in staff numbers feared by many within the service has not
materialised, and on the contrary the service has improved through workforce
role diversity, continuing the emphasis on community focussed safety
programmes in addition to fire related activities. It may not have been possible
to achieve the speed, efficiency and effectiveness of changes to working
practices under the Fire Authority governance model.
If this efficient way of working for both police and fire and rescue is to continue
under a Mayoral model it is vital that PCCs retain corporate sole powers for both
services. The model where the Deputy Mayor has public safety within their
control appears to work well. Whatever model is promoted by government it is
important that Chief Constables and CFOs are held to account directly by the
PCC (or Deputy Mayor) and this function does not become a function determined
by the Mayor.
What are the opportunity and issues with transferring PCC and FRA functions to
mayors?
The opportunities and issues identified through those Panels where transfer has
taken place include potential cost saving through shared services and facilities
including IT services, estates availability and maintenance, vehicle supply and
maintenance, and back office support functionality planning.
Bringing FRS under the governance of the PCC can provide the opportunity to
appoint an independent, non-fire and rescue CFO with the skills and remit to
transform the working practices and organisational structure to meet modern

Page
10 88

working environments. Operational FRS experience and senior management is
available by capable and skilled deputy CFOs.
Transformation of HR and support service functions by a non-fire and rescue
experienced CFO can provide the opportunity for implementing work force
cultural changes in a speedy and efficient manner. FRS has for too long been
able to operate using outdated working practices, limited and inappropriate
career development expectations and archaic recruiting processes that to the
general public would be considered unacceptable.
PCCs are in a position to determine a remuneration package for a CFO and
therefore senior staff within FRS. This also removes or severely impacts the
historical expectation by senior managers of receiving significant (and to the
public, unjustifiable) retirement lump sum payments.
This provides the opportunity to share support function capability between FRS
and Policing. For example, improved road safety forms a significant part of PCCs
policing plans. Duplication of core services met by both police and FRS can be
removed to ensure that valued capability is placed with either the police or FRS.
What are the lessons learned to date from transferring PCC and FRA functions
to mayoral models?
Changes planned for local government reform will lead to potentially a greater
number of mayoral models resulting in control of community safety through
policing and FRS moving further away from Home Office direct control.
The current governance model in place with a duly elected mayor with a remit
to include community safety governance would appear to be working
satisfactorily. If PCCs are to be included within a mayoral administration it is
vital that they retain (as deputy mayor or other position) corporation sole power.
Major crime and organised gangs is a national issue. If the mayoral model
becomes more widely implemented it is unclear if the National Crime Agency
will need to significantly increase in size, numbers employed, financial models
and areas of operation etc and would this result in areas of activity conflict or
duplication at the local policing area level.
7) How we set out our long-term ambition on fire governance reform ahead of the
May 2021 PCC elections.
What are the benefits and challenges of the current model for transferring fire
governance to PCC’s?
As the composition and structure of FRS varies by county and in some cases across
counties, it appears that reform of FRS boundaries will be needed which, in spite
of obvious public benefits, will likely face significant opposition by the Fire
Authorities, Councils and Trade Unions. This may mean that a mandated change
will be necessary through Home Office decree before any FRS can come under
PCC governance.

Page
11 89

9

The financial benefits (by way of cost savings) of change are likely to be
significant using existing governance models in place under PFCCs.
Where a Local Authority has responsibility and control of FRS, this has in some
cases allowed the LA to divert FRS funding to help underpin LA budget shortfalls
at the expense of the emergency service. Transferring financial governance of
FRS to a PCC ensures relevant and appropriate funding is ringfenced for their
intended use.

9

Impact on the workload of Panels does increase but is largely manageable as
scrutiny methods and tools for a PCP are the same for a PFCC with only additional
time being required at Panel meetings. The additional workload of Panels will
impact and potentially increase support officer time in producing and
researching FRS activities in addition to the time taken for policing activities.
The Home Office grant must take this into consideration when setting Panel
grants.
How can we strengthen and clarify the distinction between strategic and
operational planning in fire?
The review should seriously consider the benefits of producing a joint community
risk management plan between FRS and the police when governance for both
aspects falls within Commissioners’ remit. This would be a multi-agency plan
with clearly defined intelligence led objectives, actions and outcomes. The
current FRS Integrated Risk Management Plan (IRMP) uses the principle of “right
resources in the right place at the right time” and these principles require a
more forensic and objective approach within the planning stage. This would in
turn help to make the case for up-stream intervention and prevention resulting
in long term benefits through efficiency savings and cultural change culminating
into the establishment of a prevention culture.
Could governance change help maximise collaboration between policing and
fire?
As just one example, significant and rapid progress has been made in developing
effective partnership working in relation to “Protecting the NHS” during the
Covid-19 pandemic by the emergency services. This should not be lost and police
and FRS joint working in intelligence led multi agency hubs should become the
norm for all PFCC areas. There are some good examples of best practice that
have been formed under PFCC governance models and the resulting clearly
defined partnership approach has helped mitigate the myth and fear perpetuated
by the prospect of FRS becoming a policing body.
What are the benefits of having a range of services and strategic planning
under one elected individual?
These benefits have already been described under earlier questions. In summary
however those Panel members exposed to the transition from separate
governance for police and FRS to a single elected individual is one that is
positive. The old systems where governance was held by the Police Authority
and Fire Authority has shown to be far less efficient than the current model.

Page
12 90

Governance through a single elected PCC has modernised the two blue light
services in a much-needed manner.
8) In helping prepare for Part Two, we are also interested in understanding if the
levers currently available to PCCs are sufficient to allow them to cut crime
effectively in their force areas.
Cutting crime in a force area through PCC direct intervention will require much
greater control and leverage over the activities of the CC and hence police
officers. PCCs control the policing budget but having successfully raised annual
budgets, through increased precepts, a PCC has little control over operational
policing to support a successful delivery of a policing plan.
Modern policing continues to change. For change to be acceptable it has to
receive the support and backing of policing stakeholders, not just policing senior
management but also Local Authority stakeholders and the Police Federation.
From the public’s perspective policing change is perceived to be successful when
the number of police officers rises and the local crime figures are reduced. A
significant amount of organised crime is national and can and does impact many
police areas. This possibly leads to duplication of effort between the NCA and
the individual police force areas under a CC. Formation of the NCA appears to
be successful in tackling serious and organised crime. Funding of the NCA must
be sufficient to meet organised crime requirements and funded totally via the
Home Office. Local county-based police area activities under a CC / PCC should
be funded through local precept generation. This will help provide a means by
which PCCs can legitimately engage in operational activities agreed with the CC
to meet local plan objectives.

Page
13 91

9

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 10
SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
BUILDING THE FUTURE – UPDATE
24 NOVEMBER 2020
1.

INTRODUCTION
The purpose of this report is to update the Panel on key aspects of delivery
for the strategic change programme ‘Building the Future’ (BTF) since the
Panel’s last meeting in September 2020.
The Building the Future Programme was initiated in August 2016 with an
initial high level strategic business case prepared in April 2017 approving
the overall financial envelope and the purchase of the 10 acre new HQ site
in Leatherhead.
10

2.

PROGRAMME PROGESS
The PCC chaired a meeting of the BTF Board on 20th October where a
number of key decisions and papers were considered.
The Leatherhead site
The programme is currently in the Royal Institute of British Architects
(RIBA) plan of work Stage 2 – Concept Design – which is set to conclude
in December 2020. RIBA Stage 2 is progressing well with proposals being
prepared to meet the operational and functional requirements of the
Project Brief within the defined funding envelope.
The design team are working with the Force’s BTF team and the wider
organisation to interrogate the Project Brief and have planned visits to all
areas of the Force to meet with staff and officers to understand
requirements fully.
Dog School
A project team has been put together to consider options for the future of
the Dog School, currently located at Mount Browne.
Agile Working Project:
This will be progressing again after a pause in light of the Covid-19
situation.
Neighbourhood bases for Mole Valley and Reigate
Work has started to assess requirements and set out proposals and
costings ready for December 2020.

Page 93

Site Disposals
In depth work has now begun with regard to the five disposal sites with a
view to achieving maximum value and an additional sensitivity analysis is
being finalised.
Financial Model
A full financial model has been built that includes all the various work
streams. This is currently being tested to ensure the overall affordability of
the programme. A full review will be undertaken at the end of RIBA Stage
2, when more detailed costings will be available.

RECOMMENDATIONS
That the Panel note the contents of this report.
EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS
None arising
10
LEAD OFFICER:

Alison Bolton, Chief Executive - OPCC

TELEPHONE
NUMBER:

01483 630 200

E-MAIL:

Alison.bolton@surrey.pnn.police.uk

Page 94

Item 11
SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
FEEDBACK ON PERFORMANCE MEETINGS
24 NOVEMBER 2020
INTRODUCTION
One of the main responsibilities of the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) is
to hold the Chief Constable to account for delivery of the Police and Crime Plan.
David Munro has set up a governance framework to discharge this duty. The main
part of this framework is to hold six-weekly Performance Meetings where the Chief
Constable reports on progress against the Police & Crime Plan and other strategic
issues. This is supplemented by workshops and one to one discussions between
the PCC and Chief Constable, and other senior officers, when required.
Every other performance meeting is webcast for the public and partners to view.
The PCC chairs the meeting which is also attended by the Chief Executive and
Treasurer from the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC). Other
members of staff from the OPCC attend as required, depending on the agenda.
The Chief Constable attends along with the Deputy Chief Constable and other
force staff as required.
This report provides an update on the meetings that have been held and what has
been discussed in order to demonstrate that arrangements for good governance
and scrutiny are in place.
PERFORMANCE MEETINGS
Since the last report on performance meetings to the panel, one Performance
Meeting has been held – 8 September 2020.
8 September 2020 – Webcast Meeting
Agenda items were:








Performance Report
Finance Report
Body Worn Video
Disproportionality
EU Transition Briefing
Roads Policing
Strategic Policing Requirement

Page 95

11

The Chief Constable (CC) went through the public facing Performance Report in
detail. During lockdown, reported crime decreased significantly, with an uplift seen
in recent weeks. Surrey still has the 6th lowest crime rate overall in England and
Wales which is a positive picture in terms of victimisation. Despite this the CC still
has ambitions of Surrey being the safest county to live in in England and Wales.
The CC outlined that there is more work to do on improving performance in
positive outcomes of crimes reported. This entails getting the offender charged
and summoned to court. Surrey Police have seen a 7% decline in this area.
Volume crime shows a reduction of positive outcomes, a decline of nearly 800
offences. There were 11,100 positive outcomes at this time last year compared
to 10,348 this year. The CC is particularly concerned where those crimes are
high harm offences; Domestic Abuse for example. The CC assured that the force
had not eased off in this area during lockdown and have been revising their
investigation structure, looking at restructuring the team to get more positive
outcomes.

11

Work has been developed to tackle local crime and anti-social behaviour (ASB)
issues. New analysts/tactical advisors have increased the amount of problem
solving work taking place and are showing real promise. This has shown a real
benefit in the area of Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB). Confidence levels in policing
have gone up to 92%, up 4% during the pandemic. Surrey are currently standing
7th nationally in the country for public confidence levels in the police. The CC
commented that the force did a great deal during lockdown to support all
communities and it shows in the figures.
Updates were also provided on victim satisfaction, which showed a slight
decrease, the missing people unit, with reductions in repeat missing individuals,
work to tackle repeat domestic abuse perpetrators, and increased incidents
involving people with mental health needs.
The Surrey Police Chief Finance Officer (CF) provided an update on the Finance
Report to the PCC. The revenue budget at quarter one was reporting a small
forecast underspend for the year, although it is early in the year to make firm
forecasts. Force expenditure has been incurred for Personal Protective
Equipment (PPE), with expectations of reimbursement from central Government.
The Capital Fund was underspent, due to delays following the Covid-19
pandemic and lockdown activity impacting on construction work.
An update was provided on the roll-out of Body Worn Video (BMV) to Surrey
Police officers. BWV is in place for all areas and is providing efficiencies. A new
cloud storage system is in place with excellent feedback from colleagues with 11
physical docking locations across Surrey and Sussex. All officers who need BWV
now have access to the kit.
The Deputy Chief Constable (DCC) presented a report on disproportionality,
particularly focussing on the BAME (Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic)
community. In the 12 months up to 30th June – 6,771 incidents of stop and

Page 96

search were recorded in Surrey. This increased during the restricted part of the
pandemic. It was easier to stop criminal activity during this time as offenders
were not always abiding by the lockdown rules. Individuals stopped and
searched from Black, Asian, Minority Ethnic (BAME) groups increased by over
3%. The average age of BAME individuals was younger than the white
individuals stopped when looking at a median age. From the County Lines
offenders identified, half of these individuals were black and coming in to Surrey
from other areas. The DCC assured the PCC that there is a robust scrutiny
process around the use of stop and search looking at conscious and
unconscious bias. Dip testing analysis is conducted on those stopped, 46 BAME
individuals and 46 white individuals. Reviews of body worn video are also
conducted. The force use people from outside policing to assist with scrutiny
from different backgrounds.
The Crime Satisfaction Survey showed that 92% of white people compared with
86.8% of black people were confident in Surrey Police at the start of the year.
There has been a reduction in confidence levels over the year from the BAME
community which is concerning but is in correlation with events/campaigns that
have occurred internationally and nationally with the murder of George Floyd and
Black Lives Matter movements.
BAME recruits were 46% up on last year’s figures. Although this is still not where
Surrey Police want to be, it is a marked improvement on previous years. The
force are doing a great deal to bring in a more diverse workforce; ways to join up
are more varied. The DCC is optimistic and working to improve on this figure.
The DCC said that he would like to see more reporting on other areas of minority
categories in line with the 9 protected characteristics named under the Equality
and Diversity Act 2010.
An update was provided on Operation Merrywood - the response to the police
elements of the EU transition. The CC assured the PCC that Surrey Police have
a fairly robust command strategy in place for this. Plans are well rehearsed and
exercised including a scenario plan with partners. The CC has met the Chair of
the Local Resilience Forum ensuing that the Police are involved in all
conversations about this. Challenges foreseen with the exit from the EU are
protests, affected transport links, port issues, and Surrey’s locality in being
adjacent to Hampshire and Kent with their own port-related issues. The CC is
confident that Surrey is as prepared as they can be.
The Surrey Police response to the national inspection report into Roads
Policing was discussed. The focus across Surrey is in denying criminals the use
of the road network and reducing the number of individuals killed/seriously
injured (KSI). The figure for KSIs remains low in Surrey and is significantly lower
than last year. The CC explained Operation Crackdown where members of the
public can share footage of anti-social driving with the Police. The force are keen
to share the learning across Surrey. The process is user friendly and has seen
investigations launched where necessary for occurrences of dangerous driving.
The PCC confirmed his intention to invest in Roads Policing in line with the

Page 97

11

recommendations outlined in the report and publically thanked the Police for all
their good work and efforts in this area.
The Chief Constable gave an update on how Surrey Police is meeting the
Strategic Policing Requirement, SPR. The SPR is a national requirement of all
forces and PCCs to provide resources to combat national threats of terrorism,
organised crime, organised child abuse, public order, civil emergencies and the
cyber threat. The PCC needs to ensure that the Chief Constable can provide
adequate resources to the national effort if and when required. A report is
requested by the PCC annually to seek that assurance. The detailed information
is operationally sensitive, but the PCC was content to note the report and that
arrangements had been put in place.
RECOMMENDATION
That the Police and Crime Panel note the update on the PCC’s Performance
Meetings.

LEAD/ CONTACT OFFICER:
11

TELEPHONE NUMBER:
E-MAIL:

Johanna Burne, Head of Performance
and Governance – OPCC
01483 630200
SurreyPCC@surrey.pnn.police.uk

Page 98

Item 12
12

SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
COMMISSIONER’S QUESTION TIME
24 NOVEMBER 2020

SUMMARY
At the 8 December 2016 Police and Crime Panel meeting it was unanimously agreed
for an item called ‘Commissioners Question Time’ to be included as a standing item
to each Panel meeting agenda. The purpose of this item is for Police and Crime
Panel Members to raise any issues or queries concerning crime and policing in
Surrey with the Commissioner and also to provide an opportunity to ask further
questions (for example questions relating to previous agenda items or urgent matters
not included on the agenda).
Questions must be submitted in advance and must focus on strategic issues within
the Commissioner’s remit, questions regarding operational issues will be deemed
inappropriate. There will be an opportunity for Panel Members to ask supplementary
questions. Questions and responses will be appended to the minutes.

RECOMMENDATIONS
For the Police and Crime Panel to raise any issues or queries concerning Crime and
Policing in Surrey with the Commissioner.

LEAD OFFICER:

Amelia Christopher, Committee Manager, Surrey
County Council

TELEPHONE
NUMBER:

020 8213 2838

E-MAIL:

amelia.christopher@surreycc.gov.uk

Page 99

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 13
SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
13

SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL ANNUAL REPORT 2019-2020
24 NOVEMBER 2020

SUMMARY
In accordance with best practice for scrutiny and transparency as noted in Schedule 3 –
In-Year Monitoring Information Requirements of the Home Office Grant Agreement, an
annual report by Police and Crime Panels is an important Key Performance Indicator
(KPI) to be monitored and reported on.
This is a newly introduced report which provides a summary of the activity of the Surrey
Police and Crime Panel during July 2019 - May 2020 and the next annual report of the
Panel will be aligned to its annual meeting in June 2021.
DETAIL
1. BACKGROUND
Police and Crime Commissioners (PCCs) were introduced through the Police Reform
and Social Responsibility Act 2011, which significantly changed the arrangements for
police governance and accountability in England and Wales. Police and Crime Panels
(PCPs) were established through this legislation in order to provide scrutiny and support
to PCCs.
The Panel is a Committee of the Council under sections 101 and 102 of the Local
Government Act 1972. The county and each of the eleven borough and district
authorities across Surrey shall appoint one member as its representative on the Panel,
and two independent persons will also be co-opted to the Panel. All fourteen members
of the Police & Crime Panel may vote in proceedings of the Panel.
The twelve local authorities making up the Surrey Police and Crime Panel and adopting
these constitutional arrangements are:
Elmbridge Borough Council
Epsom & Ewell Borough Council
Guildford Borough Council
Surrey Heath Borough Council
Mole Valley District Council
Reigate & Banstead Borough Council

Spelthorne Borough Council
Surrey County Council (host authority)
Runnymede Borough Council
Tandridge District Council
Waverley Borough Council
Woking Borough Council

Surrey County Council is the host authority responsible for the Panel’s governance and
administration. All Home Office funding for the Panel will be received and
administered by the host authority.

Page 101

13

In accordance with Surrey Police and Crime Panel’s Constitution, the Panel will hold the
elected Police and Crime Commissioner to account and will seek to work in a
constructive manner with the post-holder with a view to supporting the effective exercise
of his/her functions.
The Panel’s Terms of Reference (ToR) is summarised below:
1.1 To review the draft police and crime plan, or draft variation, given to the Panel by the
Police & Crime Commissioner (PCC) and make a report and recommendations to the
PCC, who must have regard to them.
1.2 To review the PCC’s annual report and ask questions, make reports and
recommendations at a public meeting, which the PCC must attend.
1.3 To review or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, by the PCC in connection
with the discharge of the PCC’s functions.
1.4 To publish any reports or recommendations made to the PCC.
1.5 To require the PCC and members of their staff to attend the Police & Crime Panel to
answer questions.
1.6 To hold a confirmation hearing to review, make a report and put forward a
recommendation in respect of senior appointments made by the PCC. The Police
Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 identifies senior appointments as the
Commissioner’s Chief Executive, the Commissioner’s Chief Finance Officer and a
Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner.
1.7 To hold a confirmation hearing to review and make a report on the proposed
appointment of the Chief Constable, with the power to veto the appointment by a twothirds majority.
1.8 To hold a scrutiny hearing to review and report on the PCC’s proposals to remove a
Chief Constable.
1.9 To review the PCC’s level of precept, with the power to veto the precept by a two-thirds
majority.
1.10 To suspend the PCC on their being charged in the United Kingdom, the Channel Islands
or the Isle of Man with a criminal offence that carries a maximum term of imprisonment
exceeding two years.
1.11 To appoint an acting PCC where the elected PCC is incapacitated, resigns or is
disqualified.
1.12 To handle complaints about the conduct of the PCC and/or Deputy PCC and engage in
informal resolution of such complaints, passing serious complaints to the Independent
Police Complaints Commission (IPCC) as appropriate.
1.13 The Police and Crime Panel may not exercise any functions other than those conferred
by the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 (as outlined in paragraphs 1.1
– 1.12 above).

Page 102

2. MEMBERSHIP
Elmbridge Borough Council

Councillor Christine Elmer

Epsom & Ewell Borough Council

Councillor David Reeve

Guildford Borough Council

Councillor Fiona White

Surrey Heath Borough Council

Councillor Josephine Hawkins

Mole Valley District Council

Councillor Hazel Watson

Reigate & Banstead Borough Council

Councillor Victor Lewanski

Spelthorne Borough Council

Councillor Richard Barratt

Surrey County Council

Councillor Andrew Povey

Runnymede Borough Council

Councillor John Furey

Tandridge District Council

Waverley Borough Council

Councillor Ken Harwood
(Chairman), Councillor Bob Milton
from 7 May 2020
Councillor John Robini

Woking Borough Council

Councillor Will Forster

Independent Member

Mr David Fitzpatrick-Grimes
(retired 30 October 2019), Vacant
Mr Bryan Cross
(Vice-Chairman)

Independent Member

The Panel will be made up of twelve appointed members, one from each local authority
in Surrey, and two independent members. All fourteen members of the Police and Crime
Panel may vote in proceedings of the Panel.
All county, district and borough councillors are eligible to be members of the Police and
Crime Panel. Appointments will be made at the relevant council’s annual meeting, with
the term of office agreed by that council.
Panel Members, both appointed and co-opted, may be re-appointed and may serve a
maximum of eight years on the Panel.
A Chairman and a Vice-Chairman will be elected annually, at the annual meeting in
June.
Councillor Ken Harwood, the Panel’s Chairman 2019-2020 sadly passed away in March
2020. The Panel offered its deepest condolences to his family and thanks for his service
to the Panel over the last eight years. The Vice-Chairman took over chairmanship in the
interim.

Page 103

13

3. MEETINGS

13

The Panel holds five public meetings a year in which the Police and Crime
Commissioner for Surrey, David Munro, is invited to answer questions that the public
and Panel Members may have. The Panel holds one informal meeting with the Chief
Constable a year. The Panel also has Finance Sub-Group which meets annually and the
Complaints Sub-Committee which meets as an when complaints against the PCC arise.
The Panel met on the following occasions for the reporting year 2019-2020:






18 September 2019
31 October 2019 – Informal meeting
27 November 2019
7 February 2020 – Budget meeting
20 April 2020 (cancelled due to the COVID-19 pandemic)

A summary of the agenda items is provided below. Any RESOLVED recommendations
that fall within the Panel’s statutory remit in line with the Police Reform and Social
Responsibility Act 2011 are included; as the Panel ‘notes’ non-statutory items:



18 September 2019
 PUBLIC QUESTIONS
There were none.
 POLICE AND CRIME PLAN 2018-2020 – PROGRESS
The PCC published a refreshed Police and Crime Plan in May 2018 for the
period 2018 to 2020. This built on the previous plan issued in 2016. The
refresh was informed by emerging crime trends, consultation, scrutiny of
current force performance and meetings and visits with Surrey Police, public
and partners.
 VICTIM AND WITNESS CARE UNIT STAFFING AND GOVERNANCE
On 1 April 2019 Surrey Police opened its new Victim and Witness Care Unit,
based out of Guildford Police Station. This professionally trained team has
been established by the OPCC and Surrey Police to help victims of crime
cope and, as far as possible, recover from their experience, putting in place
care plans tailored to the needs of the individual.
 RURAL CRIME STRATEGY
The report presented the panel with an update on the progress against the
force rural crime strategy.
 INDEPENDENT CUSTODY VISITING SCHEME
The report presented the Annual Report for the OPCC for Surrey’s Custody
Visiting Scheme.
 PCC PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT
The report detailed how the PCC seeks to engage with the Surrey public
through face-to-face meetings and events, communications and consultation.
 CCTV
The Police and Crime Panel asked for an update on the Surrey Police CCTV
(Closed Circuit Television) strategy.

Page 104

Standing items – these appear on every agenda:
 FEEDBACK ON MANAGEMENT MEETINGS BETWEEN THE POLICE AND
CRIME COMMISSIONER AND CHIEF CONSTABLE
The report provided an update on the meetings that have been held: 24 June
and 2019 (private meeting) and 14 August 2019 (webcast meeting); and what
has been discussed in order to demonstrate that arrangements for good
governance and scrutiny are in place.
 COMMISSIONER'S QUESTION TIME
The Panel to raise any issues or queries concerning crime and policing in
Surrey with the Commissioner. The following key points were raised:
 Knife Crime
 High harm crimes – Positive Outcome rate
 101 calls – average time to answer
 Vetting of staff/partners
 Parking controls
 COMPLAINTS RECEIVED SINCE THE LAST MEETING
The Complaints Sub-Committee received no complaints since the last Panel
meeting.
 RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME
To Panel reviewed the Recommendations Tracker and Forward Work
Programme.


31 October 2019 – Informal meeting (private)
 CHIEF CONSTABLE UPDATE
 Strategic observations, Demand for Services and Managing demand.
 EQUIP PROGRAMME UPDATE
 ROADS POLICING
 CALL HANDLING AND RESPONSE
 CRIME RECORDING
 RECRUITMENT AND TRAINING
 BUILDING THE FUTURE - VERBAL BRIEFING



27 November 2019
 PUBLIC QUESTIONS
There were none.
 CONFIRMATION HEARING - APPOINTMENT OF CHIEF FINANCE
OFFICER
The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 (the Act) provides that
the Police and Crime Commissioner for a police area must appoint a person
to be responsible for the proper administration of the Commissioner’s financial
affairs (referred to in the Act as the Chief Finance Officer).
RESOLVED: The Panel reviewed the proposed appointment and would
publish a report to the Commissioner on the proposal recommending the
appointment of the candidate, Kelvin Menon.
 SURREY POLICE GROUP FINANCIAL REPORT FOR MONTH 12
FINANCIAL YEAR 2019/20
The purpose of the report was to inform the Police & Crime Panel of the
Surrey Police Group (i.e. Finances of both the PCC and Chief Constable)

Page 105

13

13








financial position as at the 30th September 2019, comparing the expenditure
and income incurred by both Surrey Police and the Office of the Surrey Police
& Crime Commissioner, with the revenue and capital budgets approved by
the Police & Crime Commissioner in January 2019 for the financial year
2019/20.
OFFICE OF THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER 2019/20 END OF
YEAR FINANCIAL REPORT
The purpose of the report was to inform the Police & Crime Panel of the
OPCC’s financial performance. The purpose of this report is to inform the
Police & Crime Panel of the OPCC’s financial performance at Month 7 for the
2019/20 financial year. The report compares the expenditure and income,
incurred and received by the Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner up to
the 31st October, against the financial budget approved by the PCC in
January 2019.
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN
The purpose of the report was to provide the Police and Crime Panel with the
latest projections on the expected financial position of the Surrey Police
Group for the period 2019/20 to 2022/23.
BUILDING THE FUTURE - UPDATE
The purpose of the report was to set out for the Panel the governance
arrangements for the strategic change programme ‘Building the Future’ (BTF)
and provide an update on key aspects of its delivery.
RECRUITMENT AND WORKFORCE PLANNING
The increase in the police precept for 2019/2020 meant that the police
establishment will be increased by 104 police officers and operational staff. In
June 2019 the PCC presented a paper to the panel providing information on
where the extra resources would be directed. Since then, the Government
have announced extra funding for police officers nationally. The paper
provided an update on numbers, recruitment plans and timescales.
VICTIM AND WITNESS CARE UNIT UPDATE
The paper had been created at the request of the PCC’s Office to highlight
the current ‘as is’ status of the Victim and Witness Care Unit (V&WCU), six
months post implementation.

Standing items – these appear on every agenda:
 FEEDBACK ON PERFORMANCE MEETINGS BETWEEN THE POLICE
AND CRIME COMMISSIONER AND CHIEF CONSTABLE
This report provides an update on the meetings that have been held: 25
September 2019 (private meeting) and 6 November 2019 (webcast meeting);
and what has been discussed in order to demonstrate that arrangements for
good governance and scrutiny are in place.
 COMMISSIONER'S QUESTION TIME
For the Panel to raise any issues or queries concerning crime and policing in
Surrey with the Commissioner. The following key points were raised:
 There were none.
 COMPLAINTS RECEIVED SINCE THE LAST MEETING
The Complaints Sub-Committee received no complaints since the last Panel
meeting.

Page 106

 SURREY PCP BUDGET 2018/19
The Surrey Police and Crime Panel has accepted a grant from the Home
Office to meet the costs of the Panel, including the administrative support.
This paper is to report on the use of the grant in 2018/19.
The following key points were raised:
 The Home Office grant for 2018/19 was £66,180.
 The apportioned costs for time spent by officers and their associated
overheads will be reclaimed against the Home Office grant and will
amount to £60,677 for 2018/19 – consisting of Panel administration costs
and Member expenses.
 The Panel voted unanimously that the report be deferred to Part 2 at an
upcoming meeting, whereby an officer from the Finance department would
answer the Panel’s concerns on the reporting figures as it was noted that
the accounts had been prepared on the same basis as in the previous
year.
 RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME
To Panel reviewed the Recommendations Tracker and Forward Work
Programme.


7 February 2020 – Budget meeting
 PUBLIC QUESTIONS
There were none.
 POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER'S PROPOSED PRECEPT 2020/21
The Police and Crime Panel was required to consider and formally respond to
the Police and Crime Commissioner’s Proposed Precept for 2020/21. The
purpose of the item was to allow the Commissioner to outline his proposals in
more detail and to answer any questions that Panel Members might have.
Following consideration of the Commissioner’s proposed precept, the Panel
must either:
a) agree the precept without qualification or comment;
b) b) support the precept and make comments or recommendations
concerning the application of the revenues generated;
c) or c) veto the proposed precept. Report to follow – due to the late
Government announcement detailing the grant and precept cap level.
RESOLVED: The Panel voted unanimously: That it agreed the proposed
Surrey Police Council Tax Precept of £270.57p for a Band D Property for the
financial year 2020/21.
Action: On behalf of the Panel, the Vice-Chairman wrote to the
Commissioner to confirm agreement of the 2020/21 precept proposal (7
February 2020).
 OFFICE OF THE POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONER'S BUDGET FOR
2020/21
The paper was provided to the Police & Crime Panel for information only to
give Panel Members oversight of the intended budget, to fund the Office of
the Police & Crime Commissioner (OPCC) for the financial year 2020/21.

Page 107

13

13

 SURREY POLICE GROUP FINANCIAL REPORT FOR MONTH 8
FINANCIAL YEAR 2019/20
The purpose of the report was to inform the Police & Crime Panel of the
Surrey Police Group (i.e. Finances of both the PCC and Chief Constable)
financial position as at the 30th November 2019, comparing the expenditure
and income incurred by both Surrey Police and the Office of the Surrey Police
& Crime Commissioner, with the revenue and capital budgets approved by
the Police & Crime Commissioner in January 2019 for the financial year
2019/20.
 OFFICE OF THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER 2019/20 END OF
YEAR FINANCIAL REPORT
The purpose of the report was to inform the Police & Crime Panel of the
OPCC’s financial performance at Month 8 for the 2019/20 financial year. The
report compares the expenditure and income, incurred and received by the
Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner up to the 30th November 2019,
against the financial budget approved by the PCC in January 2019.
 BUILDING THE FUTURE - UPDATE
The purpose of the report was to update the Panel on key aspects of delivery
for the strategic change programme ‘Building the Future’ (BTF).
 POLICE COMPLAINTS REFORM
The report informed the Panel of the main changes to the police complaints
system and how they are being implemented in the Surrey Office of the Police
and Crime Commissioner (OPCC).
Standing items – these appear on every agenda:
 FEEDBACK ON PERFORMANCE MEETINGS BETWEEN THE POLICE
AND CRIME COMMISSIONER AND CHIEF CONSTABLE
The report provided an update on the meetings that have been held: 16
December 2019 (private meeting); and what has been discussed in order to
demonstrate that arrangements for good governance and scrutiny are in
place.
 COMMISSIONER'S QUESTION TIME
For the Panel to raise any issues or queries concerning crime and policing in
Surrey with the Commissioner. The following key points were raised:
 There were none.
 COMPLAINTS RECEIVED SINCE THE LAST MEETING
The Complaints Sub-Committee had received one complaint since the last
Panel meeting, which would be reviewed within four weeks of receipt and the
outcome presented to the Panel at its next meeting (PCP 0033).
 SURREY PCP BUDGET 2018/19 - ADDENDUM The report set out additional
information regarding the expenditure of the Home Office grant for the Surrey
Police and Crime Panel.
The following key points were raised:
 Queried the high percentage allocation for Democratic Services
Officers supporting the Panel at 90% Full Time Equivalent charge
during that year, as support officers looked after a number of other
committees.
 Queried the high amount of days spent by Legal officers, Accountants
and Managers assisting the Panel under the Employee Costs
breakdown 2018/19, which was excessive as the Panel met formally
five times a year.

Page 108




Queried where the under spend of the Home Office grant went.
Queried the £120 spent on refreshments between three meetings in
2018.
 REPORT ON INDEPENDENT MEMBERS - RECRUITMENT
The Panel was asked to note the ongoing open recruitment process for two
co-opted independent members of the Police and Crime Panel.
 RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME
To Panel reviewed the Recommendations Tracker and Forward Work
Programme.


20 April 2020 (cancelled due to the COVID-19 pandemic)
 COVID-19 BRIEFING NOTE
The report was provided to the Panel by the OPCC in the absence of a
meeting.
Key topics raised:
 Budget and resources
 Crime statistics
 Public feedback/dissatisfaction
 Arrests and Fixed Penalty Notice
 Social media campaigns

Sub-Committees:
The Panel is empowered to establish sub-committees to fulfil any of its functions except
those that by law may not be delegated. Sub-committees may not co-opt members (3.29
ToR). The Panel currently has a Complaints Sub-Committee and a Finance Sub-Group
which is re-established at the Panel’s annual meeting – usually in June.
Complaints Sub-Committee:
Purpose:
To informally resolve non-criminal complaints about the Surrey Police and Crime
Commissioner (PCC), as well as criminal complaints or conduct matters that are referred
back to it by the Independent Office for Police Conduct (IOPC) on behalf of the Surrey
Police and Crime Panel.
Membership:
Three - six appointed members of the Surrey Police and Crime Panel, including an
Independent Member.
Frequency:
The Complaints Sub-Committee meets as and when a complaint that falls under its remit
arises, in line with the agreed Complaints Protocol and the Elected Local Policing Bodies
(Complaints and Misconduct) Regulations 2012.
The Complaints Sub-Committee received one complaint on 22 January 2020 and met on
18 February 2020 to consider complaint PCP 0033. The outcome in summary was that:

Page 109

13



13




The Sub-Committee noted that the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) had
apologised for and recognised that there were some irregularities concerning the
recording of complaints by staff from the Office of the Police and Crime
Commissioner (OPCC) and the unacceptable delays in the OPCC’s response to
your complaint. The Sub-Committee acknowledged that subsequent actions had
been taken to redress those matters.
The Sub-Committee considered the complaint as set out in the summary above
and not the opinion by the OPCC that the complaints were ‘persistent’ and
‘vexatious’.
The Sub-Committee recommended that it would be helpful if the PCC further
explained to you his ability to hold the Chief Constable to account on strategic
matters only.

The Complaints Sub-Committee has a non-investigatory role and the complainant if
unsatisfied with the Sub-Committee’s outcomes, may make a complaint to the LGO
(Local Government Ombudsman).
Finance Sub-Group:
Purpose:
To monitor and review the Surrey Police and Crime Commissioner’s budget proposals
(including the proposed precept) and make recommendations to the Panel as
appropriate.
Membership:
Three - six appointed members of the Surrey Police and Crime Panel, including an
Independent Member.
Frequency:
The Sub-Group meets annually in advance of the Panel’s annual budget meeting, in
order to review the PCC’s proposed precept by scrutinising the financial information
provided in support of the precept and to identify any further information which might be
required.
The Sub-Group met on 5 February 2020 to consider the Police and Crime
Commissioner’s Proposed Precept 2020/21, receiving a summary of the intention of the
PCC’s proposed precept of 3.84% - representing a £10 flat increase on last year’s Band
D property figure to £270.57p – which emulated the Minister of Policing’s proposal in his
statement in January without triggering a referendum. The £1.4mn savings programme
put Surrey Police in a better financial position adding on the precept increase and
Government grant.
The Sub-Group raised the following topics:







Surrey Police officer/staff pay increase
Recruitment based on the uplift
Building the Future’ project
Budgeted Savings
Areas of concern – financial risk/overspend
Government’s Comprehensive Spending Review and Police Funding Formula

Page 110

4. PANEL’S BUDGET
In establishing Police and Crime Panels, the Home Office agreed that a limited grant would
be provided to each local authority acting as the host authority in providing the administrative
support and management and maintaining the Police and Crime Panel. The host authority
for the Surrey PCP is Surrey County Council.

The Panel’s arrangements, agreed with the Home Office in 2013, stated that:
The annual costs associated with the operation, organisation and administration for the
Panel shall be offset by the Home Office grant to be managed by the host authority. All
of the relevant costs incurred by the host authority in connection with the work of the
Panel shall be met from the funding allocated by the Home Office unless the authorities
agree otherwise. The host authority shall monitor all expenditure incurred and make
provision for an annual report.
In January 2013 the Panel agreed that Members (host authority) would not use the Home
Office grant to draw allowances for members of the Panel.

HOME OFFICE GRANT 2019 MID-YEAR CLAIM: 1 April 2019 - 30 September 2019
In accordance with Schedule 3 – In-Year Monitoring Information Requirements of the
Home Office Grant Agreement, a mid-year claim was produced.
To be returned to the Home Office by 31 October 2019 to remain eligible for the payment
covering the second half of the financial year

The Home Office grant available for the 2019 mid-year claim was £33,090 (total grant =
£66,180).
The actual expenditure was: £23,192.
Any underspend must be returned to the Authority (Home Office) and any overpayment of
grant will be recovered.
OUTTURN FORECAST: 1 October 2019 – 31 March 2020
In accordance with Schedule 4 – Outturn Forecast of the Home Office Grant Agreement,
an outturn forecast was produced.
To be returned to the Home Office by 6 March 2020 to remain eligible for the payment
covering the second half of the financial year

The Home Office grant available for the outturn forecast was £33,090 (total grant =
£66,180).
The actual expenditure was: £21,900.
Any underspend must be returned to the Authority (Home Office) and any overpayment
of grant will be recovered.

Page 111

13

HOME OFFICE GRANT 2019-2020 END-YEAR CLAIM: 1 April 2019 – 31 March 2020

13

The Home Office grant available for 2019-2020 was £66,180.
The actual expenditure was: £50,811
(£23,192 - Mid-Year Claim plus £21,900 - Outturn Forecast)
To be returned to the Home Office by 31 July 2020 to remain eligible for the payment
covering the second half of the financial year – sent 7 May 2020.

Any underspend must be returned to the Authority (Home Office) and any overpayment
of grant will be recovered.
5. VISITS, EVENTS AND TRAINING






As part of new Panel Member’s induction, the OPCC provides a tour round its
headquarters at Mount Browne, Guildford as well as the Contact Centre there.
Automatic Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) - following the Panel meeting on
18 September 2019, Panel members received a presentation on ANPR from the
ANPR & Vehicle Recovery Manager, Surrey Police.
Haywards Heath - Two Members visited the Surrey and Sussex Cyber Crime
Unit based at Hayward’s Heath Police Station - 23 October 2019.
Cyber Crime Presentation - following the Panel meeting on 7 February 2020,
Panel members received a presentation on the Surrey and Sussex Cyber Crime
Unit.
Burpham Firearms Department - The scheduled visit on 23 March 2020 was
postponed due to COVID-19 and will be rescheduled in due course.

6. FURTHER INFORMATION
For further details about the Panel including meeting agendas and minutes please visit the
Surrey County Council website:https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/people-andcommunity/emergency-planning-and-community-safety/surrey-police-and-crime-panel
The website of the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Surrey (PCC) can be
accessed through the following link: https://www.surrey-pcc.gov.uk/

RECOMMENDATIONS
That Panel members note the Surrey Police and Crime Panel’s Annual Report 20192020.
LLEAD OFFICER:
TELEPHONE NUMBER:

Amelia Christopher, Committee Manager, Surrey County
Council
020 8213 2838

E-MAIL:

amelia.christopher@surreycc.gov.uk

Page 112

Item 14
SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
SURREY PCP BUDGET MID-YEAR CLAIM 2020
24 NOVEMBER 2020
SUMMARY
The Surrey Police and Crime Panel has accepted a grant from the Home Office to meet
the costs of the Panel, including the administrative support. This purpose of this paper is
to report on the use of the grant in 2020 (April 2020 - September 2020), as noted in the
Panel’s mid-year claim submission to the Home Office submitted by the 31 October
2020 deadline.
RECOMMENDATION
The Police and Crime Panel is asked to note the report.
1.0

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

1.1

In establishing Police and Crime Panels, the Home Office agreed that a limited
grant would be provided to each local authority acting as the host authority in
providing the administrative support and management and maintaining the Police
and Crime Panel. The host authority for the Surrey PCP is Surrey County
Council.

1.2

The Panel’s arrangements, agreed with the Home Office in 2013, stated that:
The annual costs associated with the operation, organisation and administration
for the Panel shall be offset by the Home Office grant to be managed by the host
authority. All of the relevant costs incurred by the host authority in connection
with the work of the Panel shall be met from the funding allocated by the Home
Office unless the authorities agree otherwise. The host authority shall monitor all
expenditure incurred and make provision for an annual report.

2.0

HOME OFFICE GRANT 2020 MID-YEAR CLAIM

2.1

The Home Office grant available for the 2020 mid-year claim is £33,090 (total
grant = £66,180). The grant is paid by the Home Office in two instalments over
the year and only spending relating to the two six-month periods can be claimed.
Any underspend must be returned to the Authority (Home Office) and any
overpayment of grant will be recovered.

Page 113

14

2.2

The actual expenditure for 2020 April 2020 – September 2020 is therefore:
Table 1: Expenditure breakdown for 2020 (mid-year claim)
£
Details
Panel Expenses – webcasting,
590 Includes cost of webcast
printing and postage
software per hour, operator and
meeting support
SCC overheads
5,095 Based on rate card calculations
(other staff costs not including
salary i.e. back office costs such
as office accommodation, HR
etc
0
Refreshments
0 Panel Members and/or
Training
Democratic Services Officers
0
Venue Hire
5,685
SUB TOTAL
113 This is wholly travel costs
Members expenses
Employee Costs (see breakdown
12,445 This includes NI contributions
in table 2)
and pension costs
18,243 (rounded)
TOTAL

14

Table 2: Employee Costs breakdown 2020 (mid-year claim)

Democratic Services Officers

Managers
Legal
Accountants
TOTAL
3.0

Details
£
10,180 This is based on the
percentage of salary costs of
the supporting officer 45% of a
FTE
1,329 This equates to 12 days.
614 This equates to 5 days.
323 This equates to 10 days.
12,445 (rounded)

DETAIL ON PANEL EXPENDITURE APRIL 2020 TO SEPTEMBER 2020
a) Panel administration (including meeting expenses)

3.1

Costs for panel administration as detailed in Tables 1 and 2 include Surrey
County Council (SCC) overheads, employee costs, refreshments, training; and
Panel Expenses – webcasting, and printing and postage (Table 3). Some Panels
have appointed a full-time officer to support the Panel; within Surrey a number of
officers have some involvement in the Panel, but none works on it full-time.

3.2

The apportioned costs for time spent by officers and their associated overheads
will be reclaimed against the Home Office grant and will amount to £18,243 for
2020, the mid-year claim.
Officer time and support for the Panel is constantly reviewed and monitored in
the light of changes to its workload, with assistance provided by Managers where
necessary. In addition, some funding is allocated to Legal Services for
assistance from the Legal Services Manager and the Director of Law and

Page 114

Governance in resolving complaints, which vary in number and complexity.
Some funding is also allocated to Accountants/Finance to oversee the spending
of the grant.
3.3

Provision of paid refreshments from external suppliers are agreed with the
Chairman on a meeting-by-meeting basis. Due to pandemic and remote
meetings, the refreshment charge is £0.

3.4

Panel member training and conference sessions from external suppliers have
been free of charge, which has meant that the training cost is £0.

3.5

The £590 Panel Expenses – webcasting, and printing and postage cost includes
the cost of the webcast software per hour, the operator and meeting support; and
the printing and postage costs for all committee and sub-committee meetings
including letters to respond to complainants and other correspondence. The cost
of agenda and correspondence printing will vary depending on the number of
pages, any colour copying and how the papers are collated. Costs per agenda
can range from £1 to £20 per agenda for printing and postage.

3.6

3.7

b) Member expenses
Members of the Panel can claim expenses in line with Surrey County Council’s
Members’ Allowances Scheme for travel, subsistence, and for child care and the
care of other dependants. Claims from Panel members for costs involved with
attendance at Panel and Sub-Committee meetings are significantly reduced £113 - due to the pandemic and meetings being remote.
c) Allowances
In January 2013 the Panel agreed that Members would not use the Home Office
grant to draw allowances for members of the Panel.

3.8

At the Council AGM on 25 May 2018 it was agreed that the Special
Responsibility Allowance for scrutiny of the Police and Crime Commissioner is
abolished, and the concept of a ‘Lead Member’ abandoned and replaced by the
designation of an ‘SCC Representative’. In addition, the Police and Crime Panel
should be invited to use its powers to review any allowances to be paid.

4.0

WEBCASTING

4.1

Each meeting of the Police and Crime Panel is webcast live for public viewing.
Table 3 below shows the numbers of views both live and post-meeting.

Table 3: Webcasting stats for 2020
Title
PCP
PCP
PCP

Live Date
20 April 2020
(CANCELLED)
30 June 2020
15 September 2020

Hits*
N/A
32
23

Live** Archive***
N/A
20
12

N/A
12
11

*Hits: Total number of views
**Live: Views that happened as the meeting was occurring
***Archive: Views that occurred post meeting

Page 115

Recording Time
N/A
1hr 40 mins
1hr 17 mins

14

14

5.0

TRANSPARENCY

5.1

Under the Home Office grant agreement, PCPs must “publish as a minimum on
their website, details of all their expenditure (or, where that is not possible, on the
host authority’s website).” i.e. this report.

6.0

ON-GOING HOME OFFICE FUNDING

6.1

The Home Office grant has been confirmed for 2020/21 as £66,180.

6.2

The Panel’s Outturn Forecast will be sent to the Home Office by 5 March 2021
and the end of year claim including expenditure between April 2020 - March
2021 will be submitted to the Home Office by 31 July 2021, to be reported to the
Panel in September 2021.

6.3

Adjustments will continue to be made to costings in light of the pandemic and
meetings being held remotely.

7.0

BACKGROUND INFORMATION



Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011
Grant agreement between Secretary of State for the Home Department and
Surrey County Council.

Contact Officer:
Telephone Number:
Email:

Amelia Christopher, Committee Manager, Surrey County
Council
020 8213 2838
amelia.christopher@surreycc.gov.uk

Page 116

Item 15

SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
COMPLAINTS RECEIVED SINCE THE LAST MEETING
24 NOVEMBER 2020
15
SUMMARY
This report sets out all complaints against the Police and Crime Commissioner that have
been received since the last meeting of the Police and Crime Panel.
RECOMMENDATIONS
The Police and Crime Panel is asked to:
(i)

Note the content of the report.

1.0

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

1.1

The Elected Local Policing Bodies (Complaints and Misconduct) Regulations 2012
make Surrey’s Police and Crime Panel responsible for overseeing complaints
made about the conduct of the Police and Crime Commissioner.

1.2

Where a complaint is received by the Panel1, a report is produced for the next
available meeting, setting out the nature of the complaint(s) received and details
of any action taken.

2.0

ANALYSIS AND PROGRESS

2.1

The Panel has a responsibility to informally resolve non-criminal complaints about
the conduct of the PCC, as well as criminal complaints or conduct matters that are
referred back to it by the Independent Office for Police Conduct (IOPC).

2.2

For the above, the Panel agreed at its meeting on 13 December 2012 to delegate
informal resolution of complaints to a Complaints Sub-Committee.

2.3

However, in accordance with the Regulations, complaints received by the Panel
that do not relate to the conduct of the PCC (such as operational concerns and
policy disputes) are referred to the most appropriate body for resolution instead of
the Complaints Sub-Committee.

1

At its meeting on 13 December 2012 the Panel agreed to delegate initial receipt / filtering of
complaints to the Chief Executive of the PCC’s Office.

Page 117

15

3.0

COMPLAINTS RECEIVED SINCE THE LAST MEETING

3.1

The Complaints Sub-Committee have received one complaint since the last
Panel meeting as noted in Appendix A which sets out details of the complaint
and the action taken.

4.0

EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

4.1

It is vital that any complaints process is accessible to all residents and that each
and every complainant is treated with respect and courtesy. The Complaints
Protocol agreed by the Panel on 13 December 2012 is designed to be an
equitable process and will be monitored by the Panel’s Support Officer to ensure
that it is fit for purpose.

5.0

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1

The Panel is asked to note the information in Appendix A.

6.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

6.1

To allow the Panel to have oversight of complaints made against the Police and
Crime Commissioner.

7.0

WHAT HAPPENS NEXT

7.1

Any future complaints will be reported to the next available meeting of the Panel.

SUPPORT OFFICER:

Amelia Christopher, Committee Manager - Surrey County
Council

TELEPHONE NUMBER:

020 8213 2838

E-MAIL:

amelia.christopher@surreycc.gov.uk

Page 118

Appendix A

Complaints considered since the last PCP meeting of 15 September 2020

Date
received

Nature of complaint

Did the complaint,
or an element of
the complaint,
relate to conduct
of a relevant office
holder?

2 September
2020 (from
complainant)

Ref: PCP 0035 –

Yes

Page 119

8 September
2020 (from
OPCC).

This is the second time since the complainant’s initial
complaint to the Police and Crime Panel in July 2017,
that the Police and Crime Commissioner’s Office has
allowed Surrey Police to conceal a criminal offence by
an officer and the involvement of many officers and
the Chief Constable in doing so; leading to a culture
of widespread corruption, gross misconduct and a
breach of duties under the Police Reform Act 2002.
-

-

Noting that both the PCC and Chief Constable
were aware that an officer of Surrey Police
committed an offence and that the Chief
Constable approved a breach of the HOCR
(Home Office Counting Rules for Recorded
Crime) and the NCRS (National Crime Recording
Standard) requirements to record the crime.
The breach of the HOCR and NCRS crime
recording requirements led to the deliberate
failure to refer the matter to the Crown
Prosecution Service (CPS). The PCC and police
have no discretion not to record an offence and to
make a charging decision themselves. Due to the
concealment by the PCC and Chief Constable the
CPS could not comment on the severity of the
criminal conduct and how much the officers had

Did the
complaint, or an
element of the
complaint, relate
to an alleged
criminal
offence?
Yes – not upheld
by IOPC

Details / Action taken

The complainant and PCC were contacted by the
Committee Manager to provide detail on the complaint.
After liaising with the Director of Law and Governance and
the Senior Principal Lawyer at Surrey County Council and
in accordance with section 3 of the Panel’s agreed
Complaints Protocol on the disapplication of the Elected
Local Policing Bodies (Complaints and Misconduct)
Regulations 2012, it was recommended that the complaint
should not be subjected to resolution by the Police and
Crime Panel Complaints Sub-Committee with regard to
Part 4 of the Regulations and therefore that no further
action should be taken.
The Complaints Sub-Committee may only disapply the
Regulations if the complaint falls into any one of the
specified categories. As listed in the Complaints Protocol,
in this case the complaint PCP 0035 was:
-

-

A complaint that is more than 12 months old,
where there is no good reason for the delay
or the delay would be likely to cause injustice.
A complaint that is repetitious.

The complainant and the Commissioner were informed of
the outcome on 5 October 2020.

15

15
Appendix A

-

perverted the course of three criminal
investigations.
The Chief Constable sent a legal team to assist in
evidence manipulation which deliberately
misrecorded details of a trial and that team
encouraged Hampshire Police to take that
account as accurate and not to interview
witnesses or request evidence from the High
Court committing perjury.

Page 120

Item 16

SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK
PROGRAMME
24 NOVEMBER 2020
16
SUMMARY
The updated Recommendations Tracker and Forward Work Programme are
presented at each meeting of the Police and Crime Panel. The Recommendations
Tracker lists all the information requested by the Panel at previous meetings.
Substantial updates or reports relating to those actions are contained in the annex to
the tracker. The Work Programme is for Panel Members to discuss the details of
items they wish to see at future meetings and the most relevant time to receive the
reports.

RECOMMENDATIONS
For the Police and Crime Panel to raise any issues or queries concerning the
information received on the Tracker and to discuss the Work Programme to ensure
timeliness of reports to future meetings.

APPENDICES
Appendix 1: Recommendations Tracker
Appendix 2: Forward Work Programme

LLEAD OFFICER:

Amelia Christopher, Committee Manager, Surrey
County Council

TELEPHONE NUMBER:

020 8213 2838

E-MAIL:

amelia.christopher@surreycc.gov.uk

Page 121

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 1 - SURREY POLICE & CRIME PANEL
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER- 24 NOVEMBER 2020
The actions and recommendations tracker allows Police & Crime Panel Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes
against their recommendations or requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each Panel meeting.
Date of
meeting

Item

February
2020

Surrey Police
Group Financial
Report For Month
8 Financial Year
2019/20

Page 123

June 2020

June 2020

Police and Crime
Plan 2018-2020 –
Progress

Building the
Future Update

Recommendations/Actions

R7/20 - The PCC was happy to
provide the Panel with regular
updates on the progress of the
EQUIP project in Part 2.

Responsible
Officer/ Member

PCC

Comments

30/06/2020 - The PCC will provide a verbal update as
required by the Panel, Part 2.

Suggested
Date of
Completion

Ongoing

An update on EQUIP would be provided in due course –
kept live.

R17/20 - The new long-term
strategy for police housing will
be provided to the Panel in due
course.

OPCC

R19/20 - The chosen
architectural firm to lead on the
design and building of the new
Leatherhead headquarters will
be announced in due course.

OPCC

15/09/2020 – The PCC provided an update on EQUIP to
the Panel in Part 2.
The OPCC note that the strategy is still under
development.

Early 2021

10/11/2020 - Not yet finalised but an update will be
provided to a future meeting.
A verbal update was provided at the September Panel
Meeting.
10/11/2020 - The contract has yet to be signed.

Early 2021

16

16

June 2020

June 2020

Page 124

September
2020

Building the
Future Update

Tackling Rural
Crime Strategy
Update

Surrey Police
Recruitment and
Workforce
Planning

R20/20 - The Panel will receive
a briefing note on the disposal
strategy for Mount Browne, once
there was more detail on the
strategy.

OPCC

R22/20 - An update on the
Country Watch crime prevention
initiative would be provided to
the Panel with an indication of
the time-scale for when it will be
received, after discussing the
initiative at the next
Performance Meeting.

OPCC

R31/20 - The PCC will look into
whether the more detailed
breakdown on the distribution of
the newly recruited staff and
officers by 2021/22 could be
shared with the Panel as Part 2
confidential information.

PCC

The OPCC note that the briefing note has not yet been
developed as more detail was needed on the strategy.

Early 2021

10/11/2020 - Work is being developed on the disposal of
the five sites, but not yet detailed for sharing with the
Panel.

The OPCC note that the lead for this in Surrey Police has
been on leave. An update will be provided as soon as
they are able.
27/10/2020 – Raised by the Vice-Chairman at the
Panel’s informal meeting, in response the Chief
Constable noted that he raised the idea of reviving the
initiative at the recent annual NFU meeting and he would
look into plans to revive it.
10/11/2020 - A briefing note on the breakdown is being
developed and will be provided shortly.

Early 2021

November
2020

Completed Actions/To be Deleted

June 2020

Police and
Crime Plan
2018-2020 –
Progress

R18/20 - The PCC will look into
adding an extra column
regarding the ‘% of force budget
spent on front-line policing’ KPM
to show the number of police
officers on the front-line
following the increased
recruitment funded through the
Government Grant and
increased precept from Council
Tax.

PCC

The next police and crime plan update has been requested for
November where the data can be added into the performance
information.

Novemb
er 2020

This has been added to report titled: Police and Crime Plan
2018-2021 – Progress in November’s agenda.

Page 125

Septembe
r 2020

Medium Term
Financial Plan
(MTFP)
Update
2020/21 to
2024/25

R26/20 - The Panel will write to
Surrey MPs and the
Government raising its concerns
on the predicted 3.5% deficit in
Council Tax collection.

Committee
Manager/Chief
Finance
Officer
&Treasurer

13/10/2020 - In liaison with the CFO - OPCC, the Committee
Manager sent a letter to the Secretary of State for Housing,
Communities and Local Government and Surrey MPs raising the
Panel’s concerns on the predicted 3.5% deficit in Council Tax
collection.

October
2020

Septembe
r 2020

Medium Term
Financial Plan
(MTFP)
Update
2020/21 to
2024/25

R27/20 - The Chief Finance
Officer & Treasurer would clarify
the apparent 10% rise in the
Home Office Grant funding from
£69.5 million at present to £76.7
million for 2021/22; and whether
it was the overall Home Office
grant including the uplift.

Chief Finance
Officer &
Treasurer

The grant figures are as follows:

Novemb
er 2020

2020/21 grant
Add 1% Increase
Add: Operation uplift
(104 x £0.062)
TOTAL

£69.5m
£0.7m
£6.5m
£76.7m

N.B. Neither the 1% nor the Uplift money are guaranteed.
Septembe
r 2020

Coronavirus

R28/20 - The PCC will clarify
how much funding is given to

PCC

OPCC funding for Surrey Mediation is £90k per year for 3 years
from 2020/21.

Novemb
er 2020

16

16

Surrey Mediation, in providing
anti-social behaviour support.

Septembe
r 2020

Coronavirus

R29/20 - The Panel is to be kept
updated on the provision of
Covid-19 secure marshals and
any enforcement involvement of
Surrey Police.
-

OPCC/CC

The Chief Constable to
provide an update at the
Panel’s October
informal.

Page 126

Septembe
r 2020

Coronavirus

R30/20 - The PCC will look into
the organisations being liaised
with regarding the cocommissioning of enhanced
substance misuse support and
to consider both Alcoholics, and
Narcotics Anonymous.

PCC

Septembe
r 2020

Building the
Future Update

R32/20 - The PCC to consider
whether he is able to share with
the Panel the sensitivity analysis
on capital receipts of the six
sites earmarked for disposal,
reported to August’s Building the
Future Board.

OPCC

27/10/2020 – At the Panel’s informal meeting, the Chief
Constable, as the co-chair of the Strategic Co-ordinating Group
(SCG), explained that the COVID marshal scheme would be
kept under review as there was not county-wide appetite for the
scheme. He added that the funding of COVID marshals was
down to borough and district councils - some had redeployed
staff to encourage social-distancing behaviour - and ensuring
consistent communications across the county was key, alerting
but not alarming residents.

October
2020

A briefing note is included as an annex to this tracker.

Novemb
er 2020

The PCC has considered this request. Given the commercial
sensitivities of the report requested, it is not possible to share
this more widely. Furthermore, it is currently subject to further
revision. However, the PCC will keep the panel regularly
updated on the disposals strategy as it develops.

Novemb
er 2020

Page 127

Septembe
r 2020

Police
Complaints
Reform

R33/20 - The Chief Executive
and Monitoring Officer will look
into whether the responsibility of
the OPCC for the three different
types of categories of complaint
would be different across the
three Models.

Chief
Executive and
Monitoring
Officer
(OPCC)

Septembe
r 2020

National
Association of
Police, Fire
and Crime
Panels
(NAPFCP)

R34/20 - The Committee
Manager will write to the
Chairman of the National
Association of Police, Fire and
Crime Panels (NAPFCP) noting
the Panel’s decision to become
a member.

Septembe
r 2020

Surrey PCP
Budget 201920

R35/20 - The summary of the
Panel’s mid-year claim between
April-September 2020 will be
provided to the Panel at its next
meeting so ongoing expenditure
in relation to the Home Office
grant can be kept track of.

Whatever model a PCC has chosen for their wider role in
complaints, the three categories of complaint that can be
reviewed (i.e. appealed) remain the same.

Novemb
er 2020

Committee
Manager

29/09/2020 – The Committee Manager sent a letter to the
Chairman of the National Association of Police, Fire and Crime
Panels (NAPFCP) noting the Panel’s decision to become a
member.

Septemb
er 2020

Committee
Manager

Included in November’s agenda as a report titled: Surrey PCP
Budget Mid-Year Claim 2020.

Novemb
er 2020

16

This page is intentionally left blank

Annex to the Recommendations Tracker
R30/20 - The PCC will look into the organisations being liaised with regarding the cocommissioning of enhanced substance misuse support and to consider both Alcoholics, and
Narcotics Anonymous.
Introduction:
There have been a number of constructive changes to the integrated commissioning of
substance misuse treatment in the last decade including the introduction of Police and Crime
Commissioning in 2012 and the move of Drug and Alcohol Action Teams to Local Authorities
Public Health in 2013. A significant financial challenge began 2015, as a result of the
financial crisis, which reduced the available financial resource that could be deployed to the
needs of Surrey residents and a key contract for substance misuse provision in the Criminal
Justice System was ended.
In the last four years key stakeholders in substances misuse treatment, the National
Probation Service, Community Rehabilitation Company and Surrey Police have ensured that
effective offender management, drug and alcohol treatment and policing are available to
residents whose needs are both the Criminal Justice System (CJS) and the drug or alcohol
treatment service, however, meeting these needs can be challenging for both services and
residents as was highlighted in a 2019 HMICFRS thematic review of Integrated Offender
Management (IOM).
The system and individual pressures as a result of COVID 19 both within the local CJS and
national lockdown pressures in prisons and courts has resulted in an increased risk to those
residents who have found it the most difficult to confront their offending and drug and alcohol
misuse behaviour. They are a small cohort in the overall population who tend to have
difficulty in engagement with treatment, health risks including blood borne virus infection,
harm or death from overdose and repeat offences resulting in custodial sentences.
Outline of proposed service:
This proposal outlines an approach to reduce risk and increase successful engagement for
this cohort in both the CJS and drug and alcohol treatment. The drivers for the approach are:






Increased CJS population as a result of Prison early prison release scheme.
(National)
Delay in court operation during COVID-19 lockdown resulting an increased CJS
population with treatment needs. (National)
Increased risks of drug misuse deaths; primarily opioid overdose, as drug market reestablishes during lockdown relaxation or end. (Local)
The local evidence base from the “Access Project” (2004 -2006) in NW Surrey which
demonstrated the effectiveness of integrated treatment and CJS system for service
user outcomes. (Local)
Recommendation for Surrey around improving substance misuse provision in the
2019 HMIP and HMICFRS joint thematic review of IOM (Local).

Substance Misuse/Nurse Specialists would be employed when services are able to offer
more face to face appointments. 2x agency workers would cost £9,094 per month (overall
cost of service £112K for 12 month pilot).

Page 129

16

Role of workers:






16

Provide intensive key working and structured intervention for service users in the
CJS on a weekly basis.
Be the named workers for the CJS and to liaise closely with all the CJS partners.
Support service users to engage in treatment, adhering to their prescriptions etc.
Provide robust risk assessment and intervention as needed.
Link in with the existing outreach resource in order to keep service users in treatment
and engage as necessary (including AA and NA where appropriate).

This will involve specialist drug and alcohol keyworkers delivering a greater intensity of care
planned structured interventions and targeting those (60 service users) who would have
previously been unsuccessful in sustained engagement. The package will be a collaborative
approach between specialist teams in i-access, Surrey Police and the National Probation
Service (NPS).
The two agency workers will work in the CJS settings i.e. probation offices etc. This would
be dependent on the buildings and infection control measures being available and
appropriate.
Current position:
The proposal from Surrey County Council Public Health has received support and the
service will be co-commissioned by the OPCC and the NPS with funding having been
provided by both organisations and from Surrey Police (Section 27 drugs confiscations
monies). A meeting of all stakeholders to discuss next steps will take place early November
2020 and it is hoped the service will commence in early 2021.

Page 130

Appendix 2

Surrey Police and Crime Panel - Forward Work Programme 2020/2021
The purpose of this document is to provide a summary of work due to be undertaken by the Surrey Police and Crime Panel. It is provided for
information purposes at each meeting of the Panel and updated between meetings by officers to reflect any future areas of work. Members can
suggest items for consideration to the Chairman or the Panel Support Officer.

2020
DATE
November 2020

Page 131

ITEM
Budget Update
(Twice per year - Nov & Feb)
 Surrey Police Group Financial
Report for Month Six Financial
Year 2020/21
 Office of the Police and Crime
Commissioner 2020/21 Financial
Report for Month Six

PURPOSE
As agreed at the precept setting
meeting on 6 February 2013, to allow
the Panel to have oversight of the
latest financial position.

OFFICER
Chief Finance Officer

Police and Crime Plan Update
(Twice yearly – April (June) /Nov)

To consider progress made against
the agreed Police and Crime Plan.

OPCC

Home Office Review of Police & Crime
Commissioners – Part One

To consider the implications of the
Home Office PCC Review – Part 1:
 raise the profile of PCCs
(uncoupled from the Local Recovery &
Devolution White Paper item – moved  give the public better access to
information about the performance
to February 2021)
of their PCC
 share best practice so that PCCs
are delivering consistently across
the country
 reviewing the relationship between
PCCs and Chief Constables

OPCC / Committee Manager / Panel

16

16

Appendix 2




Performance Review:
HMICFRS Inspection Results

Panel’s response to LGA’s key
research questions
update from the LGA with collated
views from other Panels
update on NAPFCP’s response to
LGAs key research questions

To receive an update on what the
force is doing to address key areas
highlighted in the HMICFRS
inspections – annual report
2018/2019 (latest).



Page 132



OPCC

How effective is the force at
investigating crime?
How well does the force
understand the current and
likely future demand?
Summary of Legitimacy,
Effectiveness and Efficiency.

Surrey PCP Budget Mid-Year Claim
2020

Mid-year report detailing the Panel’s
expenditure of the Home Office Grant.

Committee Manager

PCP Annual Report 2019-2020

A new report noting the work of the
Panel in the last year.

Committee Manager

Surrey and Sussex Cyber Crime Unit

Presentation to Panel members after
the Panel meeting from an officer of
the Unit.

Committee Manager

Standing Items – see list below

Appendix 2

DRAFT - 2021
DATE
Feb 2021

ITEM
The Police and Crime Commissioner’s
Proposed Precept

Page 133

Budget Update
(Twice per year – Feb & Nov)
 Surrey Police Group Financial
Report for Month Eight Financial
Year 2021/22
 Office of the Police and Crime
Commissioner Financial Report
for Month Eight Financial Year
2021/22

PURPOSE
The Police and Crime Panel is
required to consider and formally
respond to the Police and Crime
Commissioner’s proposed precept for
2021/22.
As agreed at the precept setting
meeting on 6 February 2013, to allow
the Panel to have oversight of the
latest financial position.

OFFICER
Chief Finance Officer

Chief Finance Officer

16

16

Appendix 2
Local Recovery & Devolution White
Paper

TBC

Page 134

Community and Partnership
Engagement

To consider the implications of the
White Paper detailing the review to:
 Mayoral PCC model - learning
from the transfer of PCC and Fire
& Rescue Authority (FRA)
functions to mayors. This will lay
the foundations for the longer-term
ambition to increase the number of
mayors with responsibility for
public safety - outlined in the
forthcoming White Paper.
 Detailing the changing governance
structure in response to unitary
authority bids








Local meetings with residents
(PiYN)
Social media
Volunteering
Diversity
JETs
Key partners

OPCC / Committee Manager / Panel

OPCC

Standing Items – see list below
DATE
March 2021

Action R8/20: The Committee
Manager will liaise with
Members to consider how they
wished to scrutinise the OPCC
in fulfilling the new duties as a

ITEM
Police and Crime Plan Update
(Twice yearly – April (March)/Nov)
Rural Crime Strategy - Update

PURPOSE
To consider progress made against
the agreed Police and Crime Plan.
The PCC to provide an update on the
strategy’s results.

Police Complaints Reform

The Panel to receive a 1 year review
report from the OPCC on its fulfilment
of the new duties as a result of the
complaints reform and adoption of
‘Model 1’.

OFFICER
OPCC
OPCC

OPCC

Appendix 2
result of the complaints reform
(OPCC internal complaints
reform).
Action R3/20: The PCC to
provide an update report every
three months detailing the
allocation of newly recruited
officers as a result of the
20,000 uplift, how many
officers were in training and
how many were on patrol.

TBC

Page 135

Surrey Police Recruitment and
Workforce Planning

The PCC to provide an update report
every three months detailing the
allocation of newly recruited officers
as a result of the 20,000 uplift, how
many officers were in training and
how many were on patrol.

OPCC

Victim and Witness Care Unit - Update

The PCC to provide an update on the
Unit.

OPCC

Hate Crime

To note the work of the PCC in
tackling Hate Crime ensuring that
none of Surrey’s communities are
subjected to discrimination.

OPCC

Standing Items – see list below

DATE
June 2021 – AGM

ITEM
Introduction from the Surrey Police
and Crime Commissioner 2021-2024
following the election

Governance Items 2021/22:
 Election of Chairman
 Election of Vice Chairman
 Re-establish Complaints SC

PURPOSE
In light of Covid-19, elections for a
Police and Crime Commissioner for
Surrey had been postponed by a year
until May 2021.
The PCC to provide an introduction.
Panel to agree memberships and
Terms of Reference.

OFFICER
OPCC

Committee Manager

16

16

Appendix 2

 Re-establish Finance SC
PCC Annual Report

Police and Crime Plan 2020-21
Surrey Police Group End of Year
Financial Report for 2020/21
Office of the Police and Crime
Commissioner End of Year
Financial Report for 2020/21
PCP Annual Report 2020-2021

Page 136

The Police Reform and Social
Responsibility Act (2011) places a
duty on Police and Crime
Commissioners to produce an Annual
Report. Members of the Panel are
asked to comment on the report prior
to its formal publication.

OPCC

To provide an update on the report.
To provide the report.

OPCC
OPCC – Chief Finance Officer

To provide the report.

OPCC – Chief Finance Officer

A summary of the PCP’s activity over
the last year.

Committee Manager

Standing Items – see list below

DATE
September 2021

Action R3/20: The PCC to
provide an update report every
three months detailing the
allocation of newly recruited
officers as a result of the
20,000 uplift, how many
officers were in training and
how many were on patrol.

ITEM
Police and Crime Plan - 2020-2025

Medium Term Financial Plan
Surrey Police Recruitment and
Workforce Planning

Surrey and Sussex Cyber Crime Unit

PURPOSE
The PCC to bring a new Police and
Crime Plan 2020-2025 for the Panel
to comment on.
To note the MTFP.
The PCC to provide an update report
on recruitment and workforce
planning - to include the retention rate
and strategy.

Report/presentation from a member
of the unit.

OFFICER
OPCC

Treasurer/CFO
OPCC

OPCC/Committee Manager

Appendix 2
Surrey PCP Budget 2020-21

End of year report detailing the
Panel’s expenditure of the Home
Office Grant.

Committee Manager

ITEM
Informal Meeting

PURPOSE
Private informal meeting of the Panel
with the Chief Constable of Surrey
Police – Panel members to suggest
items and Committee Manager to
liaise with OPCC.

OFFICER
Committee Manager/OPCC

ITEM
Budget Update
(Twice per year – Feb & Nov)
 Surrey Police Group Financial
Report for Month Six Financial
Year 2021/22
 Office of the Police and Crime
Commissioner Financial Report
for Month Six Financial Year
2021/22

PURPOSE
As agreed at the precept setting
meeting on 6 February 2013, to allow
the Panel to have oversight of the
latest financial position.

Police and Crime Plan Update
(Twice yearly – June/Nov)
Performance Review:
HMICFRS Inspection Results

To consider progress made against
the agreed Police and Crime Plan.
To receive an update on what the
force is doing to address key areas
highlighted in the HMICFRS
inspections reports.

Standing Items – see list below

DATE
October 2021

Page 137

DATE
November 2021



OFFICER
Johanna Burne / Chief Finance Officer

OPCC
OPCC

How effective is the force at
investigating crime?

16

16

Appendix 2




How well does the force
understand the current and
likely future demand?
Summary of Legitimacy,
Effectiveness and Efficiency.

Summary of PCC’s responses to
reports published by Her Majesty’s
Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire
& Rescue Services (HMICFRS) about
Surrey Police.
Surrey PCP Budget Mid-Year Claim
2021
Standing Items – see list below

Mid-year report detailing the Panel’s
expenditure of the Home Office Grant.

Committee Manager

Page 138

Appendix 2

Subject/Title

STANDING ITEMS: these will appear on every agenda
Dates
Purpose

Page 139

Feedback on Performance Meetings

All

Building the Future Update

All

Surrey Police Recruitment and Workforce
Planning

Twice a
Year

Recommendations Tracker and Forward Work
Programme

All

Commissioners Question Time

All

Complaints

All

Contact Officer

To consider issues raised during monthly
discussions between the PCC and the Chief
Constable.
A standing item to update the Panel on the
future of police estates.
The PCC to provide an update report every
three months detailing the allocation of newly
recruited officers as a result of the 20,000
uplift, how many officers were in training and
how many were on patrol.
To monitor responses, actions and outcomes
against recommendations or requests for
further actions. To provide a summary of work
due to be undertaken by the Surrey Police and
Crime Panel and work that has recently been
completed.

Johanna Burne - OPCC

For the Panel to raise any issues or queries
concerning crime and policing in Surrey with
the Commissioner – questions to be provided
four working days in advance.
To monitor complaints received against the
PCC and / or the DPCC

Committee Manager

Johanna Burne - OPCC
Johanna Burne - OPCC

Committee Manager

Committee Manager

16

16

Appendix 2

Working Groups – re-established June 2020:
Group
Complaints Sub-Committee

Membership








Page 140

Finance Sub-Group








Purpose

Reporting Dates

Panel Chairman Councillor David Reeve
Panel Vice-Chairman Councillor Hazel Watson
Councillor John Robini
Councillor John Furey
Independent Member
Councillor Christine Elmer
Councillor Josephine
Hawkins

To resolve non-criminal
complaints against the PCC
and/or the DPCC.

Report to each meeting of the PCP,
detailing any complaints dealt with
since the last meeting.

Panel Chairman Councillor David Reeve
Panel Vice-Chairman Councillor Hazel Watson
Councillor John Furey
Independent Member
Councillor Andrew Povey
Councillor Fiona White

To provide expert advice to the
PCP on financial matters that falls
within its remit.

Reports verbally to the formal precept
setting meeting of the Panel in
February.

